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Cautionary Language Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q ("Form 10-Q") contains forward-looking statements that are based on our management's expectations as of the filing date of
this report with the SEC. Statements that are not historical facts are hereby identified as forward-looking statements. In addition, words such as "estimate,"
"anticipate," "project,” "plan," "intend," "believe," "expect," "likely," "predicted," any variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. Such statements include plans, projections and estimates contained in "Part I—Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Part I—Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" herein. Such forward-looking
statements include (1) expectations regarding anticipated growth in the wireless communication industry, carriers' investments in their networks, new tenant additions,
customer consolidation or ownership changes, or demand for our wireless infrastructure, (2) expectations regarding non-renewals of tenant leases (including the
impact of Sprint decommissioning its iDEN network and the impact of the decommissioning of the former Leap Wireless, MetroPCS and Clearwire networks), (3)
availability and adequacy of cash flows and liquidity for, or plans regarding, future discretionary investments including capital expenditures, (4) potential benefits of
our discretionary investments, (5) anticipated growth in our future revenues, margins, Adjusted EBITDA, and operating cash flows, (6) expectations regarding our
capital structure and the credit markets, our availability and cost of capital, or our ability to service our debt and comply with debt covenants and the benefits of any
future refinancings, (7) expectations related to remaining qualified as a real estate investment trust ("REIT") and the advantages, benefits or impact of, or
opportunities created by, our REIT status, (8) the realization and utilization of our net operating loss carryforwards ("NOLs"), (9) expectations regarding the inclusion
of portions of our small cells within our REIT, (10) our dividend policy, including the timing, amount or growth of any dividends, (11) the potential sale of CCAL,
(12) the anticipated closing of the Proposed Sunesys Acquisition (as defined in note 11), and (13) the anticipated closing of the 2015 Tower Revenue Notes offering,
and subsequent utilization of offering proceeds.

non non

Such forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including prevailing market conditions, risk factors described in
"Item 1A. Risk Factors" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 ("2014 Form 10-K") and other factors. Should one or more
of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those expected. As used herein,
the term "including," and any variation of thereof, means "including without limitation." The use of the word "or" herein is not exclusive.
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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net
Prepaid expenses
Deferred income tax assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Deferred site rental receivables

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(In thousands of dollars, except share amounts)

ASSETS

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $5,605,820 and $5,438,781, respectively

Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net

Deferred income tax assets

Long-term prepaid rent, deferred financing costs and other assets, net

Total assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Deferred revenues
Other accrued liabilities
Current maturities of debt and other obligations
Total current liabilities
Debt and other long-term obligations
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (note 7)

CCIC stockholders' equity:

Common stock, $.01 par value; 600,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding: March 31, 2015—333,761,959 and December 31, 2014—

333,856,632

4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, $.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding: March 31, 2015

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

and December 31, 2014—9,775,000; aggregate liquidation value: March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014—$977,500

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Dividends/distributions in excess of earnings
Total CCIC stockholders' equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

March 31, December 31,
2015 2014
(Unaudited)
240,153 $ 175,620
136,964 147,411
292,565 329,229
144,334 155,070
30,105 29,961
83,393 94,211
927,514 931,502
1,292,630 1,260,614
9,139,703 9,148,311
5,215,348 5,210,091
3,650,945 3,715,700
18,620 20,914
860,717 856,144
21,105,477 $ 21,143,276
146,894 $ 167,662
68,697 66,943
327,270 348,338
163,096 202,657
115,998 113,335
821,955 898,935
11,954,093 11,807,526
38,152 39,889
1,732,484 1,659,698
14,546,684 14,406,048
3,339 3,339
98 98
9,503,335 9,512,396
8,304 15,820
(2,978,356) (2,815,428)
6,536,720 6,716,225
22,073 21,003
6,558,793 6,737,228
21,105,477 $ 21,143,276




CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Unaudited)
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Net revenues:
Site rental
Network services and other
Net revenues
Operating expenses:
Costs of operations®©:
Site rental
Network services and other
General and administrative
Asset write-down charges
Acquisition and integration costs
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs
Interest income
Other income (expense)
Income (loss) before income taxes
Benefit (provision) for income taxes
Net income (loss)
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders
Dividends on preferred stock
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders
Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Amounts reclassified into "interest expense and amortization deferred financing costs", net of taxes (see note 3)

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income (loss)
Less: Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average common shares outstanding (in thousands):
Basic

Diluted

Dividends/distributions declared per common share

(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately.

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2015 2014
767,606 $ 747,162
173,395 128,788
941,001 875,950
240,980 228,076

88,878 72,874
79,487 64,849
8,623 2,733
2,019 5,659
258,060 250,191
678,047 624,382
262,954 251,568
(134,439) (146,400)
109 173
(230) (2,736)
128,394 102,605
(3,282) 188
125,112 102,793
2,325 1,296
122,787 101,497
(10,997) (10,997)
111,790 $ 90,500
125,112 $ 102,793
7,491 16,182
(16,262) 12,137
(8,771) 28,319
116,341 131,112
1,070 1,944
115,271 $ 129,168
0.34 $ 0.27
0.34 $ 0.27
332,712 332,034
333,485 333,045
0.82 $ 0.35



CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income (loss)

(In thousands of dollars)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation, amortization and accretion

Amortization of deferred financing costs and other non-cash interest

Stock-based compensation expense
Asset write-down charges
Deferred income tax benefit (provision)

Other non-cash adjustments, net

Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of acquisitions:

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues, deferred ground lease payables, other accrued liabilities and other liabilities

Decrease (increase) in receivables

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses, deferred site rental receivables, long-term prepaid rent, restricted cash and other assets

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Payments for acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired

Capital expenditures

Other investing activities, net

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Principal payments on debt and other long-term obligations

Purchases of capital stock

Borrowings under revolving credit facility
Payments under revolving credit facility
Payments for financing costs

Net (increase) decrease in restricted cash
Dividends/distributions paid on common stock

Dividends paid on preferred stock

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Three Months Ended
March 31,

2015 2014
125,112 $ 102,793
258,060 250,191

11,736 20,881
15,244 11,956
8,623 2,733
(800) (2,332)
(557) (774)
1,754 (1,021)
(7,211) (10,601)
22,426 34,900
36,661 4,896
(10,254) (51,339)
460,794 362,283
(17,493) (62,228)
(204,753) (142,943)
(514) 952

(222,760) (204,219)
(31,497) (27,739)
(29,372) (21,417)
230,000 83,000
(65,000) (89,000)

(1,904) (5,854)
10,214 14,743

(273,685) (116,829)
(10,997) (11,363)

(172,241) (174,459)

(1,260) (6,462)

64,533 (22,857)
175,620 223,394
240,153 $ 200,537




CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EQUITY
(In thousands of dollars, except share amounts) (Unaudited)

CCIC Stockholders

4.50% Mandatory
Convertible Preferred
Common Stock Stock AOCI
Foreign
Additional Currency Derivative
(5.01 ($.01 Paid-In Translation Instruments, Dividends/Distributions Noncontrolling
Shares Par) Shares Par) Capital Adjustments net of tax in Excess of Earnings Interest Total
Balance, January 1, 2015 333,856,632 $ 3,339 9,775,000 $ 98  $9,512,396 $ 34,545 $ (18,725) $ (2,815,428) $ 21,003 $6,737,228
Stock-based compensation related activity, net
of forfeitures 238,416 2 — — 20,309 — — — 20,311
Purchases and retirement of capital stock (333,089) ) — — (29,370) — — — (29,372)
Other comprehensive income (loss)® — — — — — (15,007) 7,491 — (1,255) (8,771)
Common stock dividends/distributions — — — — — — (274,718) — (274,718)
Preferred stock dividends — — — — — — (10,997) — (10,997)
Net income (loss) — — — — — — 122,787 2,325 125,112
Balance, March 31, 2015 333,761,959  $ 3,339 9,775,000 $ 98  $9,503,335 $ 19,538 $ (11,234) $ (2,978,356) $ 22,073 $6,558,793

(@) See the condensed statement of operations and other comprehensive income (loss) for the components of "other comprehensive income (loss)" and note 3 with respect to the reclassification adjustment.

CCIC Stockholders

4.50% Mandatory
Convertible Preferred

Common Stock Stock AOCI
Foreign
Additional Currency Derivative
($.01 (5.01 Paid-In Translation Instr Dividends/Distributi Noncontrolling
Shares Par) Shares Par) Capital Adjustments net of tax in Excess of Earnings Interest Total
Balance, January 1, 2014 334,070,016  $3,341  9,775000 $ 98 $9,482,769 $§ 58261 $ (81,873) $ (2,535,879) $ 14,458 $6,941,175
Stock-based compensation related activity,
net of forfeitures 14,031 — — — 11,956 — — — — 11,956
Purchases and retirement of capital stock (288,066) 3) — — (21,414) — — — — (21,417)
Other comprehensive income (loss)® — — — — — 11,489 16,182 — 648 28,319
Common stock dividends/distributions — — — — — — — (117,162) — (117,162)
Preferred stock dividends - — - - - - - (10,997) — (10,997)
Net income (loss) — — — — — — — 101,497 1,296 102,793
Balance, March 31, 2014 333,795,981  $3,338 9,775000 $ 98 $9473311 $§ 69,750 $ (65691) $ (2,562,541) $ 16,402 $6,934,667

(@) See the condensed statement of operations and other comprehensive income (loss) for the components of "other comprehensive income (loss)" and note 3 with respect to the reclassification adjustment.

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.



CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. General

The information contained in the following notes to the consolidated financial statements is condensed from that which would appear in the annual consolidated
financial statements; accordingly, the consolidated financial statements included herein should be reviewed in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, and related notes thereto, included in the 2014 Form 10-K filed by Crown Castle International Corp. ("CCIC") with the
SEC. References to the "Company" include CCIC and its predecessor, as applicable, and their subsidiaries unless otherwise indicated or the context indicates
otherwise.

The Company owns, operates and leases shared wireless infrastructure, including: (1) towers, and to a lesser extent, (2) small cell networks, and (3) third party
land interests. The Company conducts operations through subsidiaries of CCOC, including (1) certain subsidiaries which operate wireless infrastructure portfolios in
the United States, including Puerto Rico ("U.S." or "CCUSA") and (2) a 77.6% owned subsidiary that operates towers in Australia (referred to as "CCAL"). The
Company's core business is providing access, including space or capacity, to its wireless infrastructure via long-term contracts in various forms, including licenses,
subleases and lease agreements. Our wireless infrastructure can accommodate multiple tenants for antennas or other equipment necessary for the transmission of
signals for wireless communication.

As part of CCUSA's effort to provide comprehensive wireless infrastructure solutions, it offers certain network services relating to its wireless infrastructure,
consisting of (1) the following site development services relating to existing or new antenna installations on its wireless infrastructure: site acquisition, architectural
and engineering, or zoning and permitting and (2) tenant equipment installation or subsequent augmentations (collectively, "installation services").

Effective January 1, 2014, the Company commenced operating as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In addition, the Company has certain taxable
REIT subsidiaries ("TRSs"). See note 4.

Approximately 52% of the Company's towers are leased or subleased or operated and managed under master leases, subleases, and other agreements with
Sprint, T-Mobile, and AT&T. The Company has the option to purchase these towers at the end of their respective lease terms. The Company has no obligation to
exercise such purchase options.

Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements included herein are unaudited; however, they include all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to fairly state the consolidated financial position of the Company at March 31, 2015, and the
consolidated results of operations and the consolidated cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. The year-end condensed consolidated
balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by GAAP. Accounting measurements at interim dates
inherently involve greater reliance on estimates than at year end. The results of operations for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results
to be expected for the entire year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements are disclosed in the 2014 Form 10-K.
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

No accounting pronouncements adopted during the three months ended March 31, 2015 had a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued new guidance on the presentation of debt issuance costs. The guidance requires debt
issuance costs be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount



CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

of the related debt liability, consistent with debt discounts and premiums. The update requires retrospective application and the guidance is effective for the Company
on January 1, 2016. The Company is evaluating the guidance, including the impact on its consolidated financial statements.

3.  Debt and Other Obligations

Bank debt - variable rate:
2012 Revolver
Tranche A Term Loans

Tranche B Term Loans
Total bank debt
Securitized debt - fixed rate:
January 2010 Tower Revenue Notes
August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes
2009 Securitized Notes
WCP Securitized Notes
Total securitized debt
Bonds - fixed rate:
5.25% Senior Notes

2012 Secured Notes
4.875% Senior Notes
Total bonds
Other:
Capital leases and other obligations

Total debt and other obligations

Less: current maturities and short-term debt and

other current obligations

Non-current portion of long-term debt and other

long-term obligations

Contractual Outstanding Outstanding Stated Interest
Original Maturity Balance as of Balance as of Rate as of
Issue Date Date (a) March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 March 31, 2015(a)(b)
Nov. 2018/Jan.
Jan. 2012 2019 $ 860,000 © $ 695,000 1.9%
Nov. 2018/Jan.
Jan. 2012 2019 641,797 645,938 1.9%
Jan. 2019/Jan.
Jan. 2012 2021 2,828,348 © 2,835,509 3.0%
4,330,145 4,176,447
Jan. 2010 2037 - 2040 @ 1,600,000 1,600,000 6.0%
Aug. 2010 2035 - 2040 @ 1,550,000 1,550,000 4.5%
July 2009 2019/2029 156,014 160,822 7.5%
Jan. 2010 Nov. 2040 @ 256,913 262,386 5.7%
3,562,927 3,573,208
Oct. 2012 Jan. 2023 1,649,969 1,649,969 5.3%
Dec. 2017/Apr.
Dec. 2012 2023 1,500,000 1,500,000 3.4%
Apr. 2014 Apr. 2022 846,175 846,062 4.9%
3,996,144 3,996,031
Various Various 180,875 175,175 Various
12,070,091 11,920,861
115,998 113,335
$ 11,954,093 $ 11,807,526

(@) See the 2014 Form 10-K, including note 7, for additional information regarding the maturity and principal amortization provisions and interest rates relating to the Company's indebtedness.
(b) Represents the weighted-average stated interest rate.
(c) During January and February 2015, the Company amended its 2012 Credit Facility agreement and increased the capacity of the 2012 Revolver to an aggregate revolving commitment of approximately
$2.2 billion. As of March 31, 2015, the undrawn availability under the 2012 Revolver is $1.4 billion.
(d) If the respective series of such debt is not paid in full on or prior to an applicable date then Excess Cash Flow (as defined in the indenture) of the issuers of such notes will be used to repay principal of
the applicable series, and additional interest (of an additional approximately 5% per annum) will accrue on the respective series. See the 2014 Form 10-K for additional information regarding these

provisions.

(e) As of March 31, 2015, the Company's Tranche B Term Loans, including the Incremental Tranche B Term Loans and the Incremental Tranche B-2 Term Loans, consist of $2.3 billion aggregate principal
amount due January 2021 and $564.1 million aggregate principal amount due January 2019.

See note 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements regarding our May 2015 pricing of $1.0 billion of 2015 Tower Revenue Notes.



CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Contractual Maturities

The following are the scheduled contractual maturities of the total debt and other long-term obligations outstanding as of March 31, 2015. These maturities
reflect contractual maturity dates and do not consider the principal payments that will commence following the anticipated repayment dates on the Tower Revenue
Notes and the rapid amortization date on the WCP Securitized Notes.

Nine Months Ending

December 31, Years Ending December 31, Total Debt and
Total Cash Unamortized Other Obligations
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Obligations Adjustments, Net Outstanding
Scheduled
contractual
RS $ 83,105 $ 124565 $ 621,524 $ 1,490,513 $ 597,469 $ 9,154,129 $ 12,071,305 $ (1,214) $ 12,070,091

Interest Expense and Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs
The components of interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs are as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014
Interest expense on debt obligations $ 122,703 $ 125,519
Amortization of deferred financing costs 5,619 5,641
Amortization of adjustments on long-term debt (881) (955)
Amortization of interest rate swaps® 7,491 16,182
Other, net of capitalized interest (493) 13
Total $ 134,439 $ 146,400

(@) Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

4. Income Taxes

Effective January 1, 2014, the Company commenced operating as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a REIT, the Company is generally entitled to
a deduction for dividends that it pays and therefore is not subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax on its net taxable income that is currently distributed to its
stockholders. The Company also may be subject to certain federal, state, local, and foreign taxes on its income and assets, including (1) alternative minimum taxes,
(2) taxes on any undistributed income, (3) taxes related to the TRSs, (4) certain state, local, or foreign income taxes, (5) franchise taxes, (6) property taxes, and (7)
transfer taxes. In addition, the Company could in certain circumstances be required to pay an excise or penalty tax, which could be significant in amount, in order to
utilize one or more relief provisions under the Internal Revenue Code 1986, as amended ("Code") to maintain qualification for taxation as a REIT.

The Company's small cells are currently included in one or more wholly owned TRSs. In August 2014, the Company received a favorable private letter ruling
from the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), which provides that the real property portion of the Company's small cells and the related rents qualify as real property
and rents from real property, respectively, under the rules governing REITs. The Company is evaluating the impact of this private letter ruling and, subject to board
approval, expects to take appropriate action to include at least some part of the Company's small cells as part of the REIT during 2015. Once the Company has
completed its evaluation and necessary actions to include small cells in the REIT, the Company expects to de-recognize its net deferred tax liabilities related to such
part of the Company's small cells.

Additionally, the Company has included in TRSs its tower operations in Australia and certain other assets and operations. Those TRS assets and operations
(along with any part of the Company's small cells that may remain in a TRS) will continue to be subject, as applicable, to federal and state corporate income taxes or
to foreign taxes in the jurisdictions in which such assets and operations are located. The Company's foreign assets and operations (including its tower operations in
Puerto Rico and Australia) most likely will be subject to foreign income taxes in the jurisdictions in which such assets and operations are located, regardless of
whether they are included in a TRS or not. The Company will be subject to a federal corporate level tax rate (currently 35%)
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

on the gain recognized from the sale of assets occurring within a specified period (generally 10 years) after the REIT conversion up to the amount of the built in gain
that existed on January 1, 2014, which is based upon the fair market value of those assets in excess of the Company's tax basis on January 1, 2014. This gain can be
offset by any remaining federal net operating loss carryforwards.

For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and the three months ended March 31, 2014, the Company's effective tax rate differed from the federal statutory rate
predominately due to the Company's REIT status, including the dividends paid deduction. The income tax provision for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and
the three months ended March 31, 2014 primarily related to the TRSs.

5.  Fair Value Disclosures

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Level in Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Hierarchy Amount Value Amount Value
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1 $ 240,153 $ 240,153 $ 175,620 $ 175,620
Restricted cash, current and non-current 1 141,964 141,964 152,411 152,411
Liabilities:
Long-term debt and other obligations 2 12,070,091 12,532,541 11,920,861 12,286,161

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash approximate the carrying value. The Company determines the fair value of its debt securities
based on indicative, non-binding quotes from brokers. Quotes from brokers require judgment and are based on the brokers' interpretation of market information,
including implied credit spreads for similar borrowings on recent trades or bid/ask prices or quotes from active markets if available. There were no changes since
December 31, 2014 in the Company's valuation techniques used to measure fair values.

6. Per Share Information

Basic net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, per common share, excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income (loss)
attributable to CCIC common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income (loss) attributable
to CCIC common stockholders, per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period plus any potential dilutive common share equivalents, including shares issuable (1) upon the vesting of
restricted stock awards and restricted stock units as determined under the treasury stock method and (2) upon conversion of the Company's Convertible Preferred
Stock, as determined under the if-converted method.

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2015 2014

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders $ 122,787  $ 101,497
Dividends on preferred stock (10,997) (10,997)
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders $ 111,790  $ 90,500
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding (in thousands):

Basic weighted-average number of common stock outstanding 332,712 332,034

Effect of assumed dilution from potential common shares relating to restricted stock units and restricted stock awards 773 1,011

Diluted weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 333,485 333,045
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, per common share:

Basic $ 034 §$ 0.27

Diluted $ 0.34 $ 0.27



CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company granted 1.0 million restricted stock units. For the three months ended March 31, 2015, 11.5
million common share equivalents related to the Convertible Preferred Stock were excluded from the dilutive common shares because the impact of such conversion
would be anti-dilutive, based on the Company's common stock price as of March 31, 2015.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various claims, lawsuits or proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While there are uncertainties inherent in the
ultimate outcome of such matters and it is impossible to presently determine the ultimate costs or losses that may be incurred, if any, management believes the
resolution of such uncertainties and the incurrence of such costs should not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position or results
of operations. Additionally, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries are contingently liable for commitments or performance guarantees arising in the ordinary
course of business, including certain letters of credit or surety bonds. In addition, the Company has the option to purchase approximately 52% of the Company's
towers at the end of their respective lease terms. The Company has no obligation to exercise such purchase options.

8. Equity
Declaration and Payment of Dividends

During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the following dividends were declared or paid:

Aggregate
Payment
Dividends Per Amount
Equity Type Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Share (In millions)
Common Stock February 12, 2015 March 20, 2015 March 31, 2015 $ 082 $ 2747 @
Convertible Preferred Stock December 22, 2014 January 15, 2015 February 2, 2015 $ 1.1250 $ 11.0
Convertible Preferred Stock March 27, 2015 April 15, 2015 May 1, 2015 $ 11250 $ 110 ®

(@) Inclusive of dividends accrued for holders of unvested restricted stock units.
(b) Represents amount paid on May 1, 2015 based on holders of record on April 15, 2015.

Purchases of the Company's Common Stock

For the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company purchased 0.3 million shares of its common stock utilizing 29.4 million in cash.

9. Operating Segments

The Company's reportable operating segments are (1) CCUSA, primarily consisting of the Company's U.S. operations and (2) CCAL, the Company's Australian
operations. Financial results for the Company are reported to management and the board of directors in this manner.

The measurement of profit or loss currently used by management to evaluate the results of operations for the Company and its operating segments is earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion, as adjusted ("Adjusted EBITDA"). The Company defines Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) plus
restructuring charges (credits), asset write-down charges, acquisition and integration costs, depreciation, amortization and accretion, amortization of prepaid lease
purchase price adjustments, interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs, gains (losses) on retirement of long-term obligations, net gain (loss) on
interest rate swaps, impairment of available-for-sale securities, interest income, other income (expense), benefit (provision) for income taxes, cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle, income (loss) from discontinued operations and stock-based compensation expense. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended as an
alternative measure of operating results or cash flow from operations (as determined in accordance with GAAP), and the Company's measure of Adjusted EBITDA
may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. There are no significant revenues resulting from transactions between the Company's
operating segments. Inter-company borrowings and related interest between segments are eliminated to reconcile segment results and assets to the consolidated basis.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Consolidated Consolidated
CCUSA CCAL Elim@ Total CCUSA CCAL Elim@) Total
Net revenues:
Site rental $ 731,380 $ 36,226 $ — $ 767,606 714,792 $ 32,370 $ — 3 747,162
Network services and other 169,091 4,304 — 173,395 126,971 1,817 — 128,788
Net revenues 900,471 40,530 — 941,001 841,763 34,187 — 875,950
Operating expenses:
Costs of operations®:
Site rental 232,213 8,767 — 240,980 218,644 9,432 — 228,076
Network services and other 86,918 1,960 — 88,878 71,799 1,075 — 72,874
General and administrative 74,056 5,431 — 79,487 58,641 6,208 — 64,849
Asset write-down charges 8,555 68 — 8,623 2,636 97 — 2,733
Acquisition and integration costs 2,016 3 — 2,019 5,659 — — 5,659
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 251,806 6,254 — 258,060 245,176 5,015 — 250,191
Total operating expenses 655,564 22,483 — 678,047 602,555 21,827 — 624,382
Operating income (loss) 244,907 18,047 — 262,954 239,208 12,360 — 251,568
Interest expense and amortization of deferred
financing costs (134,439) (3,051) 3,051 (134,439) (146,400) (3,683) 3,683 (146,400)
Interest income 56 53 — 109 114 59 — 173
Other income (expense) 2,827 (6) (3,051) (230) 947 — (3,683) (2,736)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 1,434 (4,716) — (3,282) 3,040 (2,852) — 188
Net income (loss) 114,785 10,327 — 125,112 96,909 5,884 — 102,793
Less: net income (loss) attributable to the
noncontrolling interest — 2,325 — 2,325 — 1,296 — 1,296
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC
stockholders $ 114,785 $ 8,002 $ — $ 122,787 96,909 $ 4,588 $ — 101,497
Capital expenditures $ 201,653 $ 3,100 $ — $ 204,753 138,838 $ 4,105 $ — $ 142,943

(a)  Elimination of inter-company borrowings and related interest expense.
(b)  Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretions shown separately.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

The following is a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to increase (decrease) net income
(loss):

Asset write-down charges
Acquisition and integration costs

Depreciation, amortization and accretion

Amortization of prepaid lease purchase price
adjustments

Interest expense and amortization of deferred
financing costs

Interest income

Other income (expense)

Benefit (provision) for income taxes
Stock-based compensation expense

Adjusted EBITDA®

Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

Consolidated Consolidated
CCUSA CCAL Elim®@ Total CCUSA CCAL Elim®@ Total

$ 114,785 $ 10,327 $ — $ 125,112 $ 96,909 $ 5884 $ — 3 102,793
8,555 68 — 8,623 2,636 97 — 2,733

2,016 3 — 2,019 5,659 — — 5,659

251,806 6,254 — 258,060 245,176 5,015 — 250,191

5,174 — — 5,174 3,895 — — 3,895

134,439 3,051 (3,051) 134,439 146,400 3,683 (3,683) 146,400
(56) (53) — (109) (114) (59) — (173)

(2,827) 6 3,051 230 (947) - 3,683 2,736
(1,434) 4,716 — 3,282 (3,040) 2,852 — (188)

16,842 582 = 17,424 11,956 981 = 12,937

$ 529,300 $ 24,954 $ — $ 554,254 $ 508,530 $ 18,453 $ — $ 526,983

(a)  Elimination of inter-company borrowings and related interest expense.
(b)  The above reconciliation excludes line items included in the Company's Adjusted EBITDA definition for which there is no activity for the periods shown.

10. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable for purchases of property and equipment

Purchase of property and equipment under capital leases and installment purchases

11. Subsequent Events

Proposed Sunesys Acquisition

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014
$ 120,949 $ 126,540
2,498 7,400
(13,557) (7,582)
12,407 8,012

On April 30, 2015, the Company announced a definitive agreement to acquire Quanta Fiber Networks, Inc. ("Sunesys") for approximately $1.0 billion in cash,
subject to certain limited adjustments ("Proposed Sunesys Acquisition"). Sunesys, a wholly owned subsidiary of Quanta Services, Inc., is a fiber services provider that
owns or has rights to nearly 10,000 miles of fiber in major metropolitan markets across the U.S. Approximately 60% of Sunesys' fiber miles are located in the top 10
basic trading areas in the U.S. The Proposed Sunesys Acquisition is expected to close by the end of 2015.

2015 Tower Revenue Notes Offering

On May 1, 2015, the Company announced that it had priced $1.0 billion of Senior Secured Tower Revenue Notes (2015 Tower Revenue Notes") which will be
issued by certain of its indirect subsidiaries. The 2015 Tower Revenue Notes consist of (1) $300 million of 3.222% Notes with an expected life of seven years and a
final maturity date of May 2042, and (2) $700 million of 3.663% Notes with an expected life of ten years and a final maturity date of May 2045.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

The Company expects to use the net proceeds received from this offering (1) to repay $250.0 million of August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes with an anticipated
repayment date of August 2015, (2) to pay fees and expenses related to the offering of the 2015 Tower Revenue Notes and repayment of the August 2010 Tower
Revenue Notes, and (3) for general corporate purposes. The Company expects the offering of the 2015 Tower Revenue Notes to close on or about May 15, 2015.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the response to Part I, Item 1 of this report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Company including the related notes and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" ("MD&A") included in
our 2014 Form 10-K. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Item have the same meaning given to them in our 2014 Form 10-K. Unless this Form 10-Q
indicates otherwise or the context requires, the terms "we," "our," "our company," "the company,"” or "us" as used in this Form 10-Q refer to Crown Castle
International Corp., and its predecessor, as applicable, and their subsidiaries unless otherwise indicated or the context suggests otherwise.

non non
>

General Overview
Overview

We own, operate and lease shared wireless infrastructure. Site rental revenues represented 82% of our first quarter 2015 consolidated net revenues. CCUSA, our
largest operating segment, accounted for 95% of our first quarter 2015 site rental revenues. The vast majority of our site rental revenues is of a recurring nature and
has been contracted for in a prior year.

Strategy

Our strategy is to create long-term stockholder value via a combination of (1) growing cash flows generated from our portfolio of wireless infrastructure, (2)
returning a meaningful portion of our cash provided by operating activities to our stockholders in the form of dividends and (3) investing capital efficiently to grow
long-term dividends per share. We measure our efforts to create "long-term stockholder value" by the combined payment of dividends to stockholders and growth in
our per share results. The key elements of our strategy are to:

. Grow cash flows from our wireless infrastructure. We seek to maximize the site rental cash flows derived from our wireless infrastructure by adding
tenants on our wireless infrastructure through long-term leases as our customers deploy and improve their wireless networks. We seek to maximize new
tenant additions or modifications of existing tenant installations (collectively, "new tenant additions") through our focus on customer service and
deployment speed. Due to the relatively fixed nature of the costs to operate our wireless infrastructure (which tend to increase at approximately the rate of
inflation), we expect increases in our site rental cash flows from new tenant additions and the related subsequent impact from contracted escalations to
result in growth in our operating cash flows. We believe there is considerable additional future demand for our existing wireless infrastructure based on
their location and the anticipated growth in the wireless communication services industry. Substantially all of our wireless infrastructure can accommodate
additional tenancy, either as currently constructed or with appropriate modifications to the structure, which we expect to have high incremental returns.

. Return cash provided by operating activities to stockholders in the form of dividends. We believe that distributing a meaningful portion of our cash
provided by operating activities appropriately provides stockholders with increased certainty for a portion of expected long-term stockholder value while
still retaining sufficient flexibility to invest in our business and deliver growth. We believe this decision reflects the translation of the high-quality, long-
term contractual cash flows of our business into stable capital returns to stockholders.

. Invest capital efficiently to grow long-term dividends per share. We seek to invest our capital available, including the net cash provided by our operating
activities and external financing sources, in a manner that will increase long-term stockholder value on a risk-adjusted basis. Our historical investments
have included the following (in no particular order):

o purchase shares of our common stock from time to time;

o acquire or construct wireless infrastructure;

o acquire land interests under towers;

o make improvements and structural enhancements to our existing wireless infrastructure; or
o purchase, repay or redeem our debt.

Our strategy to create long-term stockholder value is based on our belief that additional demand for our wireless infrastructure will be created by the expected
continued growth in the wireless communication services industry, which is predominately driven by the demand for wireless data services by consumers. We believe
that such demand for our wireless infrastructure will continue, will result in growth of our cash flows due to new tenant additions on our existing wireless
infrastructure, and will create other growth opportunities for us, such as demand for new wireless infrastructure.
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Business Fundamentals and Results

The following are certain highlights of our business fundamentals and results as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2015.
»  Effective January 1, 2014, we commenced operating as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

o As a REIT, we are generally entitled to a deduction for dividends that we pay and therefore are not subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax on
our taxable income that is distributed to our stockholders.

o To qualify and be taxed as a REIT, we will generally be required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, after the utilization of our
NOLs, (determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding net capital gain) each year to our stockholders.

o See note 4 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion of our REIT status.

+  Potential growth resulting from wireless network expansion and new entrants

o We expect wireless carriers will continue their focus on improving network quality and expanding capacity by adding additional antennas or other
equipment on our wireless infrastructure.

o We expect existing and potential new wireless carrier demand for our wireless infrastructure will result from (1) new technologies, (2) increased
usage of wireless data applications (including mobile entertainment, mobile internet usage, and machine-to-machine applications), (3) adoption of
other emerging and embedded wireless devices (including laptops, tablets, and other devices), (4) increasing smartphone penetration, (5) wireless
carrier focus on expanding quality and capacity, or (6) the availability of additional spectrum.

o Substantially all of our wireless infrastructure can accommodate additional tenancy, either as currently constructed or with appropriate
modifications to the structure.

o U.S. wireless carriers continue to invest in their networks.

o Qur site rental revenues grew $20.4 million, or 3%, from the three months ended March 31, 2014 to the three months ended March 31, 2015. This
growth was predominately comprised of the following, exclusive of the impact of straight-line accounting:

*  An approximate 6% increase from new leasing activity.

*  An approximate 3% increase from cash escalations.

= An approximate 4% decrease in site rental revenues caused by the non-renewal of tenant leases.
»  Site rental revenues under long-term tenant leases with contractual escalations

o Initial terms of five to 15 years with multiple renewal periods at the option of the tenant of five to ten years each.

o Weighted-average remaining term of approximately seven years, exclusive of renewals at the tenant's option, currently representing
approximately $22 billion of expected future cash inflows.

*  Revenues predominately from large wireless carriers

o Approximately 87% of our consolidated site rental revenues were derived from AT&T, Sprint, T-Mobile, and Verizon Wireless. See also "Item 2.

MD&A—General Overview—Outlook Highlights" presented below.
*  Majority of land interests under our towers under long-term control

o Nearly 90% and 75% of our site rental gross margin is derived from towers that reside on land that we own or control for greater than ten and 20
years, respectively. The aforementioned amounts include towers that reside on land interests that are owned, including fee interests and perpetual
easements, which represent approximately one-third of our site rental gross margin.

» Relatively fixed wireless infrastructure operating costs

o Our wireless infrastructure operating costs tend to increase at approximately the rate of inflation and are not typically influenced by new tenant
additions.

*  Minimal sustaining capital expenditure requirements

o Sustaining capital expenditures represented less than 2% of net revenues.

»  Debt portfolio with long-dated maturities extended over multiple years, with the majority of such debt having a fixed rate (see "Item 3. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for a further discussion of our debt)

o 64% of our debt has fixed rate coupons.

o Our debt service coverage and leverage ratios were comfortably within their respective financial maintenance covenants.

o During January and February 2015, we amended our 2012 Credit Facility agreement and increased the capacity of the 2012 Revolver to an
aggregate revolving commitment of approximately $2.2 billion.

o In May 2015, we priced $1.0 billion of 2015 Tower Revenue Notes and expect the offering to close on or about May 15, 2015. See note 11 to our
condensed consolidated financial statements.

»  Significant cash flows from operations

o Net cash provided by operating activities was $460.8 million.

o We expect to grow our core business of providing access to our wireless infrastructure as a result of contractual escalators and future anticipated
demand for our wireless infrastructure.
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*  Returning cash flows provided by operations to stockholders in the form of dividends
o During March 2015, we paid a common stock cash dividend of $0.82 per share, totaling approximately $273.7 million. We currently expect our
anticipated quarterly dividends to result in aggregate annual cash payments of approximately $1.1 billion during 2015, or an annual amount of
$3.28 per share. Over time, we expect to increase our dividend per share generally commensurate with our realized growth in cash flows. Future
dividends are subject to the approval of our board of directors.
» Investing capital efficiently to grow long-term dividends per share
o Discretionary capital expenditures were $187.8 million, including wireless infrastructure improvements in order to support additional site rentals,
construction of wireless infrastructure and land purchases.
o In April 2015, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Sunesys for approximately $1.0 billion in cash, subject to certain limited
adjustments. See note 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Outlook Highlights

The following are certain highlights of our full year 2015 outlook that impact our business fundamentals described above.

*  We expect that our full year 2015 site rental revenue growth will be benefited by similar levels of tenant additions as in 2014, as large U.S. wireless
carriers upgrade their networks, partially offset by an increase in non-renewals of tenant leases. During 2015, we expect non-renewals of tenant leases to
result from (1) Sprint's decommissioning of its legacy Nextel iDEN network and (2) the decommissioning of the former Leap Wireless, MetroPCS and
Clearwire networks ("Acquired Networks"), at least in part, which we expect to occur predominately from 2015 through 2018. See "Item 1A—Risk
Factors" in our 2014 Form 10-K.

*  We expect sustaining capital expenditures of approximately 2% of net revenues for full year 2015.
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Consolidated Results of Operations

The following discussion of our results of operations should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and our 2014 Form
10-K. The following discussion of our results of operations is based on our condensed consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP, which
requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts (see "Item 2. MD&A—Accounting and Reporting Matters—Critical Accounting Policies
and Estimates" and note 2 to our consolidated financial statements on our 2014 Form 10-K).

Comparison of Consolidated Results
The following information is derived from our historical consolidated statements of operations for the periods indicated.

Three Months Ended March 31,

Percent
2015 2014 Change®
(Dollars in thousands)
Net revenues:
Site rental $ 767,606 $ 747,162 3%
Network services and other 173,395 128,788 35 %
Net revenues 941,001 875,950 7 %
Operating expenses:
Costs of operations®:
Site rental 240,980 228,076 6 %
Network services and other 88,878 72,874 22 %
Total costs of operations 329,858 300,950 10 %
General and administrative 79,487 64,849 23 %
Asset write-down charges 8,623 2,733 *
Acquisition and integration costs 2,019 5,659 *
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 258,060 250,191 3 %
Total operating expenses 678,047 624,382 9%
Operating income (loss) 262,954 251,568 5%
Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs (134,439) (146,400) 8)%
Interest income 109 173
Other income (expense) (230) (2,736)
Income (loss) before income taxes 128,394 102,605
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (3,282) 188
Net income (loss) 125,112 102,793
Less: net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest 2,325 1,296
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders 122,787 101,497
Dividends on preferred stock (10,997) (10,997)
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders $ 111,790 $ 90,500

* Percentage is not meaningful
(@) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately.
(b) Inclusive of the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations. See "Item 2. MD&A—Comparison of Operating Segments—CCAL."

First Quarter 2015 and 2014. Our consolidated results of operations for the first quarter of 2015 and 2014, respectively, consist predominately of our CCUSA
segment, which accounted for (1) 96% and 96% of consolidated net revenues, (2) 95% and 96% of consolidated gross margins, and (3) 93% and 95% of net income
(loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders. Our operating segment results, including CCUSA, are discussed below (see "Item 2. MD&A—Comparison of Operating
Segments").
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Comparison of Operating Segments

Our reportable operating segments for the first quarter of 2015 are (1) CCUSA, consisting of our U.S. operations, and (2) CCAL, our Australian operations. Our
financial results are reported to management and the board of directors in this manner. See "Item 1. Business—The Company" of our 2014 Form 10-K for a discussion
of our plans to explore a potential sale of CCAL. There can be no assurances that the exploration of a potential sale will result in a transaction.

See note 9 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for segment results and a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA (defined
below).

Our measurement of profit or loss currently used to evaluate our operating performance and operating segments is earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,
amortization and accretion, as adjusted ("Adjusted EBITDA"). Our measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other
companies, including companies in the tower sector or other similar providers of wireless infrastructure, and is not a measure of performance calculated in accordance
with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is discussed further under "Item 2. MD&A—Accounting and Reporting Matters—Non-GAAP Financial Measures."

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) plus restructuring charges (credits), asset write-down charges, acquisition and integration costs, depreciation,
amortization and accretion, amortization of prepaid lease purchase price adjustments, interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs, gains (losses) on
retirement of long-term obligations, net gain (loss) on interest rate swaps, impairment of available-for-sale securities, interest income, other income (expense), benefit
(provision) for income taxes, cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, income (loss) from discontinued operations and stock-based compensation
expense (see note 9 to our condensed consolidated financial statements). The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to our net income (loss) is set forth in note 9 to our
condensed consolidated financial statements. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended as an alternative measure of operating results or cash flows from operations as
determined in accordance with GAAP, and our definition of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. Adjusted
EBITDA is discussed further under "Item 2. MD&A—Accounting and Reporting Matters—Non-GAAP Financial Measures."

CCUSA—First Quarter 2015 and 2014

Net revenues for the first quarter of 2015 increased by $58.7 million, or 7%, from the same period in the prior year. This increase in net revenues resulted from
an increase from the same period in the prior year in (1) site rental revenues of $16.6 million, or 2%, and (2) network services and other revenues of $42.1 million, or
33%.

The increase in site rental revenues was impacted by the following items, inclusive of straight-line accounting, in no particular order: new tenant additions
across our entire portfolio, renewals or extensions of tenant leases, escalations, acquisitions, construction of wireless infrastructure, and non-renewals of tenant leases.
Tenant additions were influenced by our customers' upgrading to LTE and their ongoing efforts to improve network quality and capacity. See "Item 2. MD&A—
Business Fundamentals and Results."

Site rental gross margins for the first quarter of 2015 increased by $3.0 million, or 1%, from the same period in the prior year. The increase in the site rental
gross margins was related to the previously mentioned 2% increase in site rental revenues.

Network services and other gross margin increased by $27.0 million, or 49%, from the same period in the prior year. The increase in our gross margin from our
network services and other revenues is a reflection of (1) the volume of activity from carrier network enhancements such as LTE upgrades, (2) the volume and mix of
network services and other work, and (3) the expansion in the size of our wireless infrastructure portfolio due to the T-Mobile Acquisition and the AT&T Acquisition.
Our network services and other offerings are of a variable nature as these revenues are not under long-term contracts.

General and administrative expenses for the first quarter of 2015 increased by $15.4 million, or approximately 26%, from the same period in the prior year.
General and administrative expenses were 8% of net revenues for the first quarter of 2015 and 7% of net revenues for the first quarter of 2014. General and
administrative expenses are inclusive of stock-based compensation charges. The increase in general and administrative expenses in nominal dollars was related to (1)
the expansion in the size of our wireless infrastructure portfolio primarily due to the AT&T Acquisition and small cell network activities and (2) growth in network
services. Typically, our general and administrative expenses do not significantly increase as a result of new tenant additions on our existing wireless infrastructure.

Adjusted EBITDA for the first quarter of 2015 increased by $20.8 million, or 4%, from the same period in the prior year. Adjusted EBITDA was positively
impacted by the growth in our site rental and network services activities.

Depreciation, amortization and accretion for the first quarter of 2015 increased by $6.6 million, or 3%, from the same period in the prior year. This increase
predominately resulted from a corresponding increase in our gross property and equipment.
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Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs decreased $12.0 million, or 8%, from the first quarter of 2014 to the first quarter of 2015 as a result
of (1) an $8.7 million decrease in the amortization of interest rate swaps and (2) our refinancing activities. For a further discussion of our debt, see note 3 to our
condensed consolidated financial statements and see note 7 to our consolidated financial statements in our 2014 Form 10-K.

For the first quarter of 2015 and 2014, the effective tax rate differed from the federal statutory rate predominately due to our REIT status including the
dividends paid deduction. See note 4 to our condensed consolidated financial statements and also note 10 to our consolidated financial statements in our 2014 Form
10-K.

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders for the first quarter of 2015 was income of $114.8 million compared to income of $96.9 million for the first
quarter of 2014. The increase in net income attributable to CCIC stockholders was primarily due to (1) an increase in our operating income and (2) the previously
mentioned decrease in our interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs.

CCAL—First Quarter 2015 and 2014

The increases and decreases between the first quarter of 2015 and the first quarter of 2014 were inclusive of exchange rate fluctuations. The average exchange
rate of one Australian dollar expressed in U.S. dollars for the first quarter of 2015 was approximately 0.79, a decrease of 12% from approximately 0.90 for the same
period in the prior year. See "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk."

Net revenues increased by 19%, inclusive of the aforementioned decrease in exchange rates. Site rental revenues, site rental gross margins and Adjusted
EBITDA increased from the first quarter of 2014 to the first quarter of 2015 by 12%, 20% and 35%, inclusive of the negative impact from the aforementioned change
in exchange rates. This increase in site rental revenues exclusive of the negative exchange rates was driven by various other factors, inclusive of straight-line
accounting, including in no particular order: tenant additions on our wireless infrastructure, renewals of tenant leases, acquisitions, escalations, and non-renewals of
tenant leases. The change in site rental gross margin and Adjusted EBITDA was primarily due to the same factors that drove the changes in site rental revenues. Net
income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders for the first quarter of 2015 was net income of $8.0 million, compared to net income of $4.6 million for the first
quarter of 2014.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

General. Our core business generates revenues under long-term leases (see "Item 2. MD&A—General Overview—Overview") predominately from the largest
U.S. wireless carriers. Our strategy is to create long-term stockholder value via a combination of (1) growing cash flows generated from our portfolio of wireless
infrastructure, (2) returning a meaningful portion of our cash provided by operating activities to our stockholders in the form of dividends and (3) investing capital
efficiently to grow long-term dividends per share. We measure our efforts to create "long-term stockholder value" by the combined payment of dividends to
stockholders and growth in our per share results.

We have and expect to continue to engage in discretionary investments that we believe will maximize long-term stockholder value. Our historical discretionary
investments include (in no particular order): purchasing our common stock, acquiring or constructing wireless infrastructure, acquiring land interests under towers,
improving and structurally enhancing our existing wireless infrastructure, and purchasing, repaying, or redeeming our debt. Based on the growth in small cell activity,
we expect to increase our capital spending on the construction of small cell networks from 2014 to 2015. We seek to fund our discretionary investments with both net
cash provided by operating activities and, cash available from financing capacity, such as the use of our undrawn availability from the 2012 Revolver, debt financings
and issuances of equity or equity related securities.

We seek to maintain a capital structure that we believe drives long-term stockholder value and optimizes our weighted-average cost of capital. We target a
leverage ratio of approximately four to five times Adjusted EBITDA and interest coverage of approximately three times Adjusted EBITDA, subject to various factors
such as the availability and cost of capital and the potential long-term return on our discretionary investments. We may choose to increase or decrease our leverage or
coverage from these targets for various periods of time.

Effective January 1, 2014, we commenced operating as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We expect to continue to pay minimal cash income taxes
as a result of our recent REIT conversion and our NOLs. See note 4 to our condensed consolidated financial statements and our 2014 Form 10-K.
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Liquidity Position. The following is a summary of our capitalization and liquidity position. See "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk" and note 3 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our debt.

March 31, 2015

(In thousands of dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents® $ 240,153
Undrawn 2012 Revolver availability® 1,370,000
Total debt and other long-term obligations 12,070,091
Total equity 6,558,793

(@) Exclusive of restricted cash.
(b) Availability at any point in time is subject to certain restrictions based on the maintenance of financial covenants contained in the 2012 Credit Facility. See our 2014 Form 10-K.

Over the next 12 months:

*  We expect that our cash on hand, undrawn availability from our 2012 Revolver and net cash provided by operating activities (net of cash interest payments)
should be sufficient to cover our expected (1) debt service obligations of $116.0 million (principal payments), (2) common stock dividend payments expected
to be $3.28 per share, or an aggregate of approximately $1.1 billion during 2015, subject to future approval by our board of directors (see "Item 2. MD&A—
Business Fundamentals and Results"), (3) Convertible Preferred Stock dividend payments of approximately $45 million, and (4) sustaining and discretionary
capital expenditures (expect to be equal to or greater than current levels). As CCIC and CCOC are holding companies, this cash flow from operations is
generated by our operating subsidiaries.

»  We have no scheduled contractual debt maturities other than principal payments on amortizing debt. We have $504.3 million of debt that has anticipated
repayment dates during the year. Although these anticipated repayment dates are not contractual maturity dates, we expect to refinance this debt prior to the
respective anticipated repayment dates. See note 11 regarding the pricing of $1.0 billion of 2015 Tower Revenue Notes in May 2015, a portion of the
proceeds of which we expect to utilize to repay the August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes with an anticipated repayment date of August 2015. See "Item 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for a tabular presentation as of March 31, 2015 of our scheduled contractual debt maturities
and a discussion of anticipated repayment dates.

Summary Cash Flow Information

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014 Change

(In thousands of dollars)
Net cash provided by (used for):

Operating activities $ 460,794  $ 362,283 $ 98,511

Investing activities (222,760) (204,219) (18,541)

Financing activities (172,241) (174,459) 2,218
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (1,260) (6,462) 5,202
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 64,533 $ (22,857) $ 87,390
Operating Activities

The increase in net cash provided by operating activities for the first three months of 2015 of $98.5 million, or 27%, from the first three months of 2014, was
due primarily to (1) a net benefit from changes in working capital, and (2) growth in our network services. Changes in working capital (including changes in accounts
receivable, deferred site rental receivables, deferred rental revenues, prepaid ground leases, restricted cash, and accrued interest) can have a significant impact on net
cash provided by operating activities, largely due to the timing of prepayments and receipts. We expect to grow our net cash provided by operating activities in the
future (exclusive of movements in working capital) if we realize expected growth in our core business.
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Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures

Three Months Ended March 31,

2015 2014 Change
(In thousands of dollars)
Discretionary:
Purchases of land interests $ 23,817 $ 20,396 $ 3,421
Wireless infrastructure construction and improvements 163,995 111,116 52,879
Sustaining 16,941 11,431 5,510
Total $ 204,753  $ 142,943 $ 61,810

Our sustaining capital expenditures have historically been less than 2% of net revenues annually and are expected to be slightly higher in 2015 due to expansion
of our office facilities. Our discretionary capital expenditures are made with respect to activities which we believe exhibit sufficient potential to enhance long-term
stockholder value. We expect to continue to invest in capital expenditures (sustaining and discretionary) over the next 12 months at levels equal to or greater than
current levels. Our decisions regarding capital expenditures are influenced by the availability and cost of capital and expected returns on alternative uses of cash, such
as payments of dividends and investments.

Capital expenditures for wireless infrastructure construction and improvements increased from the first three months of 2014 to 2015 primarily as a result of
improvements to towers to accommodate new tenant additions and small cell network builds. Capital expenditures for wireless infrastructure improvements typically
vary based on (1) the type of work performed on the wireless infrastructure, with the installation of a new antenna typically requiring greater capital expenditures
than a modification to an existing installation, (2) the existing capacity of the wireless structure prior to installation, or (3) changes in structural engineering
regulations and our internal structural standards.

Acquisitions. See note 11 for a discussion of our definitive agreement to acquire Sunesys.
Financing Activities

We seek to allocate cash generated by our operations in a manner that will enhance long-term stockholder value, which may include various financing activities
such as (in no particular order) paying dividends on our common stock (currently expected to total an aggregate of approximately $1.1 billion during 2015), paying
dividends on our Convertible Preferred Stock (expected to be approximately $45 million during 2015), purchasing our common stock, or purchasing, repaying, or
redeeming our debt. See also note 11 for a discussion of the pricing of the 2015 Tower Revenue Notes.

Credit Facility. The proceeds of our 2012 Revolver may be used for general corporate purposes, which may include the financing of capital expenditures,
acquisitions and purchases of our common stock. During January and February 2015, we increased the aggregate revolving commitment under the 2012 Revolver by
$730 million to approximately $2.2 billion. As of May 4, 2015, there was $785.0 million outstanding and $1.4 billion in undrawn availability under our revolving
credit facility. See also note 3 of our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Common Stock Activity. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had 333.8 million and 333.9 million common shares outstanding, respectively. See
notes 8 and 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the common stock dividends.

Convertible Preferred Stock Activity. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had approximately 9.8 million shares of preferred stock outstanding.
Unless converted earlier, each outstanding share of the Convertible Preferred Stock will automatically convert on November 1, 2016. Currently, each share of
Convertible Preferred Stock will convert into between 1.1188 shares (based on the current maximum conversion price of $89.38) and 1.3984 shares (based on the
current minimum conversion price of $71.51) of common stock, depending on the applicable market value of the common stock and subject to certain anti-dilution
adjustments. At any time prior to November 1, 2016, holders of the Convertible Preferred Stock may elect to convert all or a portion of their shares into common
stock at the minimum conversion rate of 1.1188, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments. See note 8 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further
discussion of the Convertible Preferred Stock dividends declared and paid during 2015.
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Debt Covenants

The credit agreement governing the 2012 Credit Facility contains financial maintenance covenants. We are currently in compliance with these financial
maintenance covenants, and based upon our current expectations, we believe we will continue to comply with our financial maintenance covenants. In addition,
certain of our debt agreements also contain restrictive covenants that place restrictions on us and may limit our ability to, among other things, incur additional debt
and liens, purchase our securities, make capital expenditures, dispose of assets, undertake transactions with affiliates, make other investments, pay dividends or
distribute excess cash flow. See our 2014 Form 10-K for a further discussion of our debt covenants, certain restrictive covenants and factors that are likely to
determine our subsidiaries' ability to comply with current and future debt covenants.

Accounting and Reporting Matters
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies and estimates are those that we believe (1) are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations
or (2) require our most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently
uncertain. The critical accounting policies and estimates for 2015 are not intended to be a comprehensive list of our accounting policies and estimates. In many cases,
the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP, with no need for management's judgment. In other cases, management is
required to exercise judgment in the application of accounting principles with respect to particular transactions. Our critical accounting policies and estimates as of
December 31, 2014 are described in "Item 7. MD&A" and in note 2 of our consolidated financial statements in our 2014 Form 10-K. The critical accounting policies
and estimates for the first three months of 2015 have not changed from the critical accounting policies for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements. No accounting pronouncements adopted during the three months ended March 31, 2015 had a material impact
on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted. See note 2 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Our measurement of profit or loss currently used to evaluate the operating performance of our operating segments is earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization, and accretion, as adjusted, or Adjusted EBITDA. Our definition of Adjusted EBITDA is set forth in "ltem 2. MD&A—Results of
Operations—Comparison of Operating Segments.” Our measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies,
including companies in the tower sector and other similar providers of wireless infrastructure, and is not a measure of performance calculated in accordance with
GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for operating income or loss, net income or loss, net cash provided by (used for)
operating, investing and financing activities or other income statement or cash flow statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP.

We believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful to an investor in evaluating our operating performance because:

* it is the primary measure used by our management to evaluate the economic productivity of our operations, including the efficiency of our employees
and the profitability associated with their performance, the realization of lease revenues under our long-term leases, our ability to obtain and maintain
our tenants, and our ability to operate our wireless infrastructure effectively;

* it is the primary measure of profit and loss used by management for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, our operating segments;

+ itis similar to the measure of current financial performance generally used in our debt covenant calculations;

» although specific definitions may vary, it is widely used in the tower sector and other similar providers of wireless infrastructure to measure operating
performance without regard to items such as depreciation, amortization and accretion which can vary depending upon accounting methods and the book
value of assets; and

»  we believe it helps investors meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations (1) from period to period and (2) to our competitors by
removing the impact of our capital structure (primarily interest charges from our outstanding debt) and asset base (primarily depreciation, amortization
and accretion) from our operating results.

Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA:
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»  with respect to compliance with our debt covenants, which require us to maintain certain financial ratios including, or similar to, Adjusted EBITDA;

»  as the primary measure of profit and loss for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, our operating
segments;

» as a performance goal in employee annual incentive compensation;

* as a measurement of operating performance because it assists us in comparing our operating performance on a consistent basis as it removes the impact
of our capital structure (primarily interest charges from our outstanding debt) and asset base (primarily depreciation, amortization and accretion) from
our operating results;

» in presentations to our board of directors to enable it to have the same measurement of operating performance used by management;

+ for planning purposes, including preparation of our annual operating budget;

* as a valuation measure in strategic analyses in connection with the purchase and sale of assets; and

* in determining self-imposed limits on our debt levels, including the evaluation of our leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio.

There are material limitations to using a measure such as Adjusted EBITDA, including the difficulty associated with comparing results among more than one
company, including our competitors, and the inability to analyze certain significant items, including depreciation and interest expense, that directly affect our net
income or loss. Management compensates for these limitations by considering the economic effect of the excluded expense items independently as well as in
connection with their analysis of net income (loss).

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The following section updates "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk"” in our 2014 Form 10-K and should be read in
conjunction with that report as well as our condensed consolidated financial statements included in Part 1, Item 1 of this report.

Interest Rate Risk
Our interest rate risk relates primarily to the impact of interest rate movements on the following:

+ the potential refinancing of our existing debt ($12.1 billion outstanding at March 31, 2015 and $11.9 billion at December 31, 2014);

+ our $4.3 billion and $4.2 billion of floating rate debt at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively; which represented approximately 36% and
35% of our total debt, as of March 31, 2015 and as of December 31, 2014, respectively; and

» potential future borrowings of incremental debt.

Over the next 12 months, we have no debt maturities other than principal payments on amortizing debt. We have $504.3 million of debt that has anticipated
repayment dates during 2015. While these anticipated repayment dates are not contractual maturity dates, we expect to refinance this debt prior to the respective
anticipated repayment dates. We currently have no interest rate swaps hedging any refinancings.

See note 11 regarding the pricing of $1.0 billion of 2015 Tower Revenue Notes in May 2015, a portion of the proceeds of which we expect to utilize to repay the
August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes with an anticipated repayment date of August 2015.

Sensitivity Analysis

We manage our exposure to market interest rates on our existing debt by controlling the mix of fixed and floating rate debt. As of March 31, 2015, we had $4.3
billion of floating rate debt, which included $2.8 billion of debt with a LIBOR floor of 75 basis points per annum. As a result, a hypothetical unfavorable fluctuation
in market interest rates on our existing debt of 1/8 of a percent point over a 12 month period would increase our interest expense by approximately $2 million when
giving effect to our LIBOR floor and would increase our interest expense by approximately $5 million exclusive of the impact of the LIBOR floor.
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Tabular Information

The following table provides information about our market risk related to changes in interest rates. The future principal payments and weighted-average interest

rates are presented as of March 31, 2015. These debt maturities reflect contractual maturity dates and do not consider the impact of the principal payments that
commence if the applicable debt is not repaid or refinanced on or prior to the anticipated repayment dates on the tower revenue notes and the WCP Securitized Notes
(see footnote (c)). The information presented below regarding the variable rate debt is supplementary to our sensitivity analysis regarding the impact of changes in the
LIBOR rates. See note 3 and 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our debt and our 2014 Form 10-K.

Future Principal Payments and Interest Rates by the Debt Instruments' Contractual Year of Maturity

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total Fair Value@

(Dollars in thousands)

Debt:
Fixed rate(©) $ 49,202 $ 62,798 $ 559,758 (O $ 38,747 $ 31,827 $ 6,998,827 O § 7,741,159  ©@ §$ 8,214,096
Average interest rate(b)(©)(d) 4.6% 6.0% 2.8% 5.1% 5.3% 7.4% ()(d) 7.1% ()
Variable rate $ 33,903 $ 61,767 $ 61,767 $ 1,451,767 (8 $ 565,642 $ 2,155,300 $ 4,330,146 $ 4,318,445
Average interest rate(®) 2.7% 2.9% 3.4% 3.7% 4.2% 4.5% 4.1%

(b
©

(d

(®

®
(8

The fair value of our debt is based on indicative quotes (that is, non-binding quotes) from brokers that require judgment to interpret market information, including implied credit spreads for similar

borrowings on recent trades or bid/ask offers. These fair values are not necessarily indicative of the amount which could be realized in a current market exchange.

The average interest rate represents the weighted-average stated coupon rate (see footnotes (c) and (d)).

The impact of principal payments that will commence following the anticipated repayment dates is not considered. The January 2010 Tower Revenue Notes consist of two series of notes with principal
amounts of $350.0 million and $1.3 billion, having anticipated repayment dates in 2017 and 2020, respectively. See note 3 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the 2014
Refinancings, which includes discussion on the April 2014 repayment of our January 2010 Tower Revenue Notes with an anticipated repayment date in 2015. The August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes
consist of three series of notes with principal amounts of $250.0 million, $300.0 million and $1.0 billion, having anticipated repayment dates in 2015, 2017, and 2020, respectively. If the tower revenue
notes are not repaid in full by the applicable anticipated repayment dates, the applicable interest rate increases by approximately 5% per annum and monthly principal payments commence using the
Excess Cash Flow of the issuers of the tower revenue notes. The tower revenue notes are presented based on their contractual maturity dates ranging from 2035 to 2040 and include the impact of an
assumed 5% increase in interest rate that would occur following the anticipated repayment dates but exclude the impact of monthly principal payments that would commence using Excess Cash Flow of
the issuers of the tower revenue notes. The full year 2014 Excess Cash Flow of the issuers of the tower revenue notes was approximately $502.9 million. We currently expect to refinance these notes on
or prior to the respective anticipated repayment dates. See note 11 regarding the pricing of $1.0 billion of 2015 Tower Revenue Notes in May 2015, a portion of the proceeds of which we expect to utilize
to repay the August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes with an anticipated repayment date of August 2015.

If the WCP securitized notes with a current face value of $254.3 million are not repaid in full by their anticipated repayment dates in 2015, the applicable interest rate increases by an additional
approximately 5% per annum. If the WCP securitized notes are not repaid in full by their rapid amortization date of 2017, monthly principal payments commence using the Excess Cash Flow of the
issuers of the WCP securitized notes. The WCP securitized notes are presented based on their contractual maturity dates in 2040. The full year 2014 Excess Cash Flow of issuers of the WCP securitized
notes was approximately $8 million. We currently expect to refinance these notes on or prior to the respective anticipated repayment dates.

The average variable interest rate is based on the currently observable forward rates. The 2012 Revolver and the Tranche A Term Loans bear interest at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.5% to
2.25%, based on CCOC's total net leverage ratio. The Tranche B Term Loans bear interest at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR (with LIBOR subject to a floor of 75 basis points per annum) plus 2.25% to
2.5%, based on CCOC's total net leverage ratio.

Predominantly consists of $500 million in aggregate principal of 2.381% secured notes due 2017.

Predominantly consists of the 2012 Revolver and Tranche A Term Loans. See note 3 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign exchange markets have recently been volatile, and we expect foreign exchange markets to continue to be volatile over the near term. The vast majority

of our foreign currency risk is related to the Australian dollar which is the functional currency of CCAL. CCAL represented 4% of our consolidated net revenues and
7% of our operating income for the three months ended March 31, 2015. See "Item 2. MD&A—Comparison of Operating Segments" for a discussion of the change in
the Australian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate. We believe the risk related to our financial instruments (exclusive of inter-company financing deemed a long-term
investment) denominated in Australian dollars should not be material to our financial condition. A hypothetical increase or decrease of 25% in the Australian dollar to
U.S. dollar exchange rate would increase or decrease the fair value of our Australian dollar denominated financial instruments by approximately $6 million.

24



ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were
effective in alerting them in a timely manner to material information relating to the Company required to be included in the Company's periodic reports under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter covered by this report that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See the disclosure in note 7 to our condensed consolidated financial statements set forth in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report

disclosure is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There are no material changes to the risk factors discussed in "Item 1A—Risk Factors" in our 2014 Form 10-K.

ITEM 2.

UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table summarizes information with respect to purchase of our equity securities during the first quarter of 2015:

Total Number of Shares

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of

Average Price Paid per Publicly Announced Plans

on Form 10-Q, which

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar
Value) of Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased Under

Period Purchased Share or Programs the Plans or Programs
(In thousands)

January 1 - January 31, 2015 — — — _

February 1 - February 28, 2015 333 88.18 — —

March 1, 2015 - March 31, 2015 — — _ _

Total 333 88.18 — —

We paid $29.4 million in cash to effect these purchases. The shares purchased relate to shares withheld in connection with the payment of withholding taxes

upon vesting of restricted stock.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The list of exhibits set forth in the accompanying Exhibit Index is incorporated by reference into this Item 6.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

Date: May 8, 2015 By: /s/ Jay A. Brown

Jay A. Brown
Senior Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: May 8, 2015 By: /s/ Rob A. Fisher

Rob A. Fisher
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit No.
(a) 3.1
(d 3.2
(e) 4.1
() 10.1
(©) 102
(d) 10.3
(d) 104
* 10.5
* 311
* 312
* 321
* 101.INS
* 101.SCH
* 101.DEF
* 101.CAL
* 101.LAB
* 101.PRE

*  Filed herewith.

Exhibit Index

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Crown Castle International Corp. (including the Certificate of Designations of 4.50% Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, incorporated therein as Exhibit I)

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Crown Castle International Corp., dated February 12, 2015

Form of Indenture between Crown Castle International Corp. and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee
Incremental Facility Amendment No. 4 dated as of January 21, 2015, among Crown Castle International Corp., Crown Castle Operating
Company, certain subsidiaries of Crown Castle Operating Company, the lenders party thereto and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as
administrative agent, issuing bank and swingline lender, to the Credit Agreement dated as of January 31, 2012, among Crown Castle
International Corp., Crown Castle Operating Company, the lenders and issuing banks from time to time party thereto, The Royal Bank of
Scotland plc, as administrative agent, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, as syndication agent, and Morgan Stanley Senior
Funding, Inc., as co-documentation agent

Incremental Facility Amendment No. 5 dated as of February 3, 2015, among Crown Castle International Corp., Crown Castle Operating
Company, certain subsidiaries of Crown Castle Operating Company, the lenders party thereto, and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as
administrative agent, to the Credit Agreement dated as of January 31, 2012, among Crown Castle International Corp., Crown Castle
Operating Company, the lenders and issuing banks from time to time party thereto, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as administrative agent,
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, as syndication agent, and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as co-documentation
agent

Crown Castle International Corp. 2015 Executive Management Team Annual Incentive Plan

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 29, 2015, by and among Quanta Services, Inc., Crown Castle International Corp. and CC SCN
Fiber LLC

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

(a) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16441) on December 16, 2014.

(b) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16441) on January 22, 2015.

(c) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16441) on February 3, 2015.

(d) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16441) on February 19, 2015.

(e) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit in the Registration Statement previously filed by the Registrant on Form S-3 (File No. 333-203074) on March 27, 2015.
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Exhibit 10.5

STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

by and among

QUANTA SERVICES, INC,,

CC SCN FIBER LLC

and

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

As of April 29, 2015
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This STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT, dated as of April 29, 2015, is made and entered into by and among QUANTA
SERVICES, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Seller”), Crown Castle International Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Parent”), and CC
SCN Fiber LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (the “Purchaser”).

WHEREAS, the Seller owns all of the issued and outstanding equity interests (the “Shares”) of Quanta Fiber Networks,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company™), as set forth in Section 3.04(a) of the Disclosure Schedule;

WHEREAS, the Company, through the Subsidiaries, is engaged in the ownership, operation and maintenance of certain
high density fiber optic networks at various locations in the United States; and

WHEREAS, the Seller wishes to sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser wishes to purchase from the Seller, the Shares,
upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual agreements and covenants hereinafter set forth, and
intending to be legally bound, the Seller, Parent and the Purchaser hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE1

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01. Certain Defined Terms. For purposes of this Agreement:

“Action” means any audit, examination, claim, action, suit, arbitration, formal inquiry or proceeding by or before any
mediator, arbitrator or Governmental Authority.

“Additional Credit Support Instruments” means any credit support instruments of the type set forth in Section 5.10(a) of the
Disclosure Schedule (including any letter of credit issued pursuant to the Seller Credit Facility and any bond issued pursuant to the Seller
Surety Bond Facility) entered into after the date of this Agreement, and prior to the earlier of the time of the Closing and the termination
of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, by the Seller or any of its Affiliates on behalf of or for the benefit of the Company or any
Subsidiary, to the extent permitted in accordance with Section 5.01(b)(xvii).

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person that directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such specified Person; provided, however, with respect to the
Seller and Parent, that no stockholder of the Seller or Parent shall be deemed to be an Affiliate of the Seller or Parent solely by virtue of
such Person’s ownership of any capital stock of the Seller or Parent, respectively.



“Agreement” or “this Agreement” means this Stock Purchase Agreement among the parties hereto (including the Exhibits
and Schedules hereto and the Disclosure Schedule) and all amendments hereto made in accordance with the provisions of Section 11.07.

“Alternative Acquisition Proposal” means any inquiry, indication of interest, proposal or offer from any Person (other than
Parent or any of its Affiliates) or “group,” within the meaning of Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act, for, in a single transaction or series of
related transactions, any (a) acquisition of assets or businesses that constitute or represent 10% or more of the total revenue, net income,
EBITDA or assets of the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (b) acquisition of 10% or more of the outstanding Capital Stock
of the Company, or any class of Capital Stock of any of the Subsidiaries directly or indirectly holding, individually or taken together, the
assets or businesses referred to in clause (a) above, or (c) merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, recapitalization,
liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, in each case of clauses (a), (b) and (c),
other than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

“Ancillary Agreement” means the Transition Services Agreement.

“Assets” means the assets and properties of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

“Business” means the business of providing premium bandwidth services and private fiber optic networks through the use
of the Assets to commercial, non-profit and K-12 customers and to other telecommunications carriers in certain major metropolitan areas
within or between the states or commonwealths of California, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Maryland, New Jersey, New York,
Ohio, Pennsylvania and Virginia and Washington, D.C.

“Business Day” means any day that is not a Saturday, a Sunday or other day on which banks in the City of Houston, Texas
or New York, New York are required or authorized by applicable Law to be closed.

“Capex Adjustment” means an amount equal to (i) the Capex Planned Amount, minus (ii) the aggregate amount of all
capital expenditures actually incurred by the Company and the Subsidiaries from and after the date of this Agreement and prior to the
Closing Date; provided that, in the event clause (ii) is greater than clause (i), the Capex Adjustment shall be deemed to be zero.

“Capex Planned Amount” means the product of (i) the number of calendar days between the date of this Agreement and the
Closing Date, and (ii) $133,333.33.

“Capital Stock” means, with respect to a Person that is not an individual, any equity interests in such Person, including
common stock, preferred stock, membership interests, limited liability company interests, profit sharing interests or partnership interests.

“Change of Control Payments” means the change of control, bonus or other similar payments that are paid or payable by
the Seller or any of its Affiliates (including the Company and any of the Subsidiaries) to any employee of the Company or the
Subsidiaries,




whether paid prior to, at or after the Closing, as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or as otherwise mutually
agreed by the parties at or prior to the Closing, in the aggregate amount determined and calculated in accordance with Section 1.01(v) of
the Disclosure Schedule, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time prior to the Closing Date by mutual agreement of the
parties.

“Claims” means any and all administrative, regulatory or judicial actions, suits, petitions, appeals, demands, demand
letters, claims, liens, notices of noncompliance or violation, investigations, proceedings, consent orders or consent agreements.

“Closing Date” means the date on which the Closing takes place.

“Closing Indebtedness” means the aggregate amount of all outstanding Indebtedness of the Company and the Subsidiaries
as of immediately prior to the Closing; provided that, Closing Indebtedness shall be determined after giving effect to the release of all
Credit Support Instruments released at or in connection with the Closing.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

“Commonly Controlled Entity” means any Person that, together with the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, is treated as
a single employer under Section 4001(b) of ERISA or Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code.

“Communications Licenses” means all permits, approvals, identification numbers, licenses, certificates, franchises,
qualifications, waivers, registrations and other authorizations and similar rights related to the ownership of telecommunication assets or
provision of telecommunication services issued, granted or obtained by or from the FCC and any State PUC.

“Company Communications Licenses” means all the Communications Licenses of the Company and the Subsidiaries
material to the operation of the Business as it is currently conducted, as set forth under Section 3.11(b) of the Disclosure Schedule.

“Company E&P” means the earnings and profits of the Company and the Subsidiaries accumulated in a “separate return
limitation year” (as defined in Section 1.1502-1(f) of the Regulations) or that has not otherwise “tiered up” (within the meaning of Section
1.1502-33 of the Regulations) as of the Closing Date.

“Company IP Agreements” means (a) licenses of Owned Intellectual Property by the Company or any Subsidiary to any
third party, (b) licenses of Intellectual Property by any third party to the Company or any Subsidiary, or by the Seller or any Affiliate of
the Seller (other than the Company or a Subsidiary) to the Company or a Subsidiary, (c) agreements between the Company or any
Subsidiary and any third party relating to the development or use of Intellectual Property, or the use, modification, framing, linking,
advertisement, or other practices with



respect to Internet web sites, and (d) consents, settlements, decrees, orders, injunctions, judgments or rulings specifically governing the
use, validity or enforceability of Owned Intellectual Property.

» o«

“control” (including the terms “controlling”, “controlled by” and “under common control with” and words of similar
import), with respect to the relationship between or among two or more Persons, means the possession, directly or indirectly or as trustee,
personal representative or executor, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the affairs or management of a Person, whether through
the ownership of voting securities, as trustee, personal representative or executor, by contract or otherwise.

“Controlled Group Liability” means any and all liabilities (a) under Title IV of ERISA, (b) under Section 302 or 4068(a) of
ERISA, (c) under Section 430(k) or 4971 of the Code, (d) for violation of the continuation coverage requirements of Sections 601 et seq.
of ERISA and Section 4980B of the Code or the group health requirements of Sections 701 et seq. of ERISA and Sections 9801 et seq. of
the Code and (e) any state or local Law similar to the foregoing clauses (a) through (d).

“Conveyance Taxes” means all sales, use, value added, transfer, stamp, stock transfer, real property transfer or gains and

similar Taxes.

“Disclosure Schedule” means the Disclosure Schedule attached hereto, dated as of the date hereof, delivered by the Seller
to the Purchaser in connection with this Agreement.

“Encumbrance” means any security interest, pledge, hypothecation, mortgage, lien (including environmental and Tax
liens), violation, charge, lease, license, encumbrance, servient easement, adverse claim, reversion, reverter, preferential arrangement,
restrictive covenant, condition or restriction of any kind, including any restriction on the use, voting, transfer, receipt of income or other
exercise of any attributes of ownership.

“End Date” means the Initial End Date unless extended in accordance with Section 10.01(c), in which case the End Date
shall be the applicable date determined in accordance with Section 10.01(c).

“Environment” means surface waters, groundwaters, soil, sediments, subsurface strata, ambient air and any other
environmental media.

“Environmental Claims” means any Claims relating in any way to the Environment or any Environmental Law, any
Hazardous Material or any Environmental Permit, including (a) any and all Claims for enforcement, cleanup, removal, response, remedial
or other actions or damages pursuant to, or alleging a failure to comply with or liability under, any applicable Environmental Law and (b)
any and all Claims by any Person seeking damages, contribution, indemnification, cost recovery, compensation or injunctive relief
resulting from Hazardous Materials or arising from alleged injury or threat of injury to health, safety or the Environment.



“Environmental Laws” means all Laws relating to pollution, the Environment, health, safety, flora, fauna, biota, threatened
or endangered species, wetlands, natural resources or Hazardous Materials, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §8§ 6901 et seq.; the
Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.; the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et seq.; the Toxic Substances
Control Act, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 2601 et seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.; the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f et
seq.; the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act, 42 U.S.C. §8§ 11001 et seq.; the Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. §§
1531 et seq.; the Atomic Energy Act, 42 U.S.C. §8§ 2011 et seq.; the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136
et seq.; the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C. §8§ 301 et seq.; and the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. §§
651 et seq., including any regulations thereunder, and any similar state or local Laws.

“Environmental Permits” means all permits, approvals, identification numbers, licenses and other authorizations required
under or issued pursuant to any applicable Environmental Law.

“E-Rate” means the Universal Service program for Schools and Libraries administered by the Universal Service
Administrative Company on behalf of the FCC pursuant to Section 254 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. §
254.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

“Excluded Contract” means (i) any contract or agreement set forth in Section 1.01(iii) of the Disclosure Schedule,
including any such Seller national accounts, Seller insurance policies, Seller benefit plans, or any contract or agreement between or among
the Company or any Subsidiary, on the one hand, and any third party, the Seller or any officer, director, or Affiliate (other than the
Company and Subsidiaries) of the Seller, on the other hand, that will be terminated, or amended or otherwise modified to exclude the
Company and Subsidiaries as parties thereto, at or prior to the Closing, and (ii) this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement.

“Excluded Taxes” means (i) all Taxes of the Company or any Subsidiary for any Pre-Closing Period and, with respect to
any Straddle Period, allocable to the portion of the period ending on the Closing Date as determined under Section 7.01(b); (ii) all Taxes
of the Seller or any other Person (other than the Company or any Subsidiary) for which the Company or any Subsidiary may be liable by
reason of being a member of a consolidated, combined, unitary, affiliated or similar group that includes the Seller or such other Person
prior to the Closing, by reason of entering into a Tax sharing, Tax indemnity or similar agreement, the principal purpose of which is the
sharing or indemnification of Taxes, with the Seller or such other Person prior to the Closing (other than this Agreement) or by reason of
transferee or successor liability arising in respect of a transaction undertaken prior to the Closing; and (iii) Taxes imposed on the Purchaser
or the Company or any Subsidiary as a result of any breach of warranty or misrepresentation under Section 3.19 hereof, or breach by the
Seller of any covenant relating to Taxes.

“FCC” means the United States Federal Communications Commission.



“Fiber” means fiber optic cabling and conduits (or rights thereto) held by the Company or a Subsidiary or acquired by the
Company or a Subsidiary from a third party by lease, indefeasible right of use or otherwise.

“Financial Statements” means the unaudited condensed, combined and consolidated balance sheets of the Company for
each of the fiscal years ended as of December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014 and the related unaudited condensed, combined and consolidated
income statements and statements of cash flows of the Company, in each case excluding Nova NextGen Solutions, set forth in
Section 1.01(iv) of the Disclosure Schedule.

“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles and practices in effect from time to time, applied
consistently throughout the periods involved.

“Governmental Authority” means any U.S. federal, state, local, or similar government, governmental, regulatory or
administrative authority, agency or commission or any court, tribunal, or judicial or arbitral body of competent jurisdiction.

“Governmental Order” means any order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, stipulation, determination or award entered by
or with any Governmental Authority.

“Hazardous Materials” means (a) petroleum and petroleum products, radioactive materials, asbestos or asbestos-containing
materials, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, and polychlorinated biphenyls and (b) any other chemicals, materials or substances that are
regulated or for which Liability is imposed by or under any Environmental Law.

“HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

“Income Taxes” means Taxes imposed on or measured by reference to gross or net income or receipts, and franchise, net
worth, branch profits or capital Taxes.

“Income Tax Return” means a Tax Return relating to Income Taxes.

“Indebtedness” means, with respect to any Person, without duplication, (a) all indebtedness of such Person for borrowed
money, (b) all obligations of such Person for the deferred purchase price of property or services, except trade accounts payable managed in
the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate action and for
which reserves have been maintained in accordance with GAAP and other current liabilities of such Person set forth on the balance sheet
thereof prepared in accordance with GAAP (other than any indebtedness of such Person for borrowed money), (c) all obligations of such
Person evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or other similar instruments, (d) any obligations of other Persons secured by any
Encumbrance on any property or asset of such Person, whether or not such obligation is assumed by such Person, (e) all obligations of
such Person as lessee under leases that have been or should be, in accordance with GAAP, recorded as capital leases (for the avoidance of
doubt, excluding the future implicit interest rate component of a capital lease), (f) all obligations to reimburse the issuer thereof for



amounts drawn and actually funded in respect of such Person under performance, surety or other bonds, or acceptance, letter of credit or
similar facilities, to the extent that such amounts have not been repaid to the surety or lender, (g) all obligations of such Person to
purchase, redeem, retire, defease or otherwise acquire for value any Capital Stock of such Person or any warrants, rights or options to
acquire such Capital Stock, valued, in the case of redeemable preferred stock, at the greater of its voluntary or involuntary liquidation
preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends, (h) all net obligations of such Person under any interest rate protection, currency protection,
or commodity hedging agreements or arrangements (including any swaps, forward contracts, caps, floors, collars and similar agreements
or arrangements), and (i) all guarantees issued by such Person in respect of Indebtedness of others referred to in clauses (a) through (h)
above; provided, however, that with respect to the Company and the Subsidiaries, Indebtedness shall not include any Intercompany
Indebtedness.

“Indemnified Party” means a Purchaser Indemnified Party or a Seller Indemnified Party, as the case may be.

“Indemnifying Party” means the Seller pursuant to Section 9.02 or Parent and the Purchaser pursuant to Section 9.03, as the
case may be.

“Independent Accounting Firm” means Ernst & Young LLP or, if such firm shall decline or is unable to act or is not, at the
time of such submission, independent of the Seller, Parent and the Purchaser, another independent accounting firm of international
reputation mutually acceptable to the Seller and the Purchaser.

“Intellectual Property” means (i) patents, patent applications, patent disclosures, inventions and statutory invention
registrations, (ii) trademarks, service marks, domain names, trade dress, logos, trade names, corporate names and other identifiers of
source or goodwill, including registrations and applications for registration thereof and including the goodwill of the business symbolized
thereby or associated therewith, (iii) mask works and copyrights, including copyrights in computer software (including source code and
executable code), and copyrightable works and registrations and applications for registration thereof, (iv) confidential and proprietary
information, including trade secrets, research and development information, specifications, designs, technical data, know-how and
invention rights, and (v) copies and tangible embodiments of the Intellectual Property referred to in clauses (i) through (iv) above (in
whatever form or medium).

“Intercompany Indebtedness” means any intercompany indebtedness, obligations or guarantees (i) between or among any
of the Company and the Subsidiaries or (ii) between or among the Company or any Subsidiary, on the one hand, and the Seller or any of
its Affiliates (other than the Company and the Subsidiaries), on the other hand, that, in the case of clause (ii), will be contributed to equity
or forgiven at or prior to the Closing, other than trade accounts payable incurred in the ordinary course of business and consistent with
past practice.

“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service of the United States.



“Law” means any federal, national, supranational, state, provincial, local or similar statute, law, ordinance, regulation, rule,
code, order, injunction, decree, requirement or rule of law (including common law).

“Leased Real Property” means the real property leased by the Company or any Subsidiary as tenant, together with, to the
extent leased by the Company or Subsidiary, all buildings and other structures, facilities or improvements currently located thereon, all
fixtures, systems, equipment and items of personal property of the Company or Subsidiary attached or appurtenant thereto and all
easements, licenses, rights and appurtenances relating to the foregoing, but excluding any agreements related to access or attachment to
utility poles or to placing fiber within underground conduits or across easements, any rights of way from any Person and any co-
occupancy rights, colocation rights, regeneration site rights, interconnection rights and indefeasible rights to use.

“Leased Vehicle” means any vehicle leased by, or by the Seller or any Remaining Subsidiary solely on behalf of, the
Company or any Subsidiary, which vehicles are listed in Section 1.01(i) of the Disclosure Schedule.

“Liabilities” means any and all debts, liabilities and obligations, whether accrued or fixed, absolute or contingent, matured
or unmatured or determined or determinable, including those arising under any Law (including any Environmental Law), Action or
Governmental Order and those arising under any contract, agreement, arrangement, commitment or undertaking.

“Licensed Intellectual Property” means Intellectual Property licensed by a third party to the Company or any Subsidiary
pursuant to any applicable Company IP Agreements or licensed by the Seller or an Affiliate of the Seller (other than the Company or any
Subsidiary) to the Company or any Subsidiary; provided, however, that Licensed Intellectual Property does not include any Licensed
Seller Intellectual Property.

“Licensed Seller Intellectual Property” means any Intellectual Property that is licensed by a third party to the Seller or an
Affiliate of the Seller (other than the Company or any Subsidiary) that is used by the Company or a Subsidiary as an Affiliate of such
licensee in order to operate its Business.

“Material Adverse Effect” means any event, development, occurrence, condition, change or effect that, individually or in
the aggregate: (a) has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on (i) the business, assets, results of
operations or financial condition of the Company and Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (ii) the ability of the Seller to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or (b) would reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the ability of the
Purchaser to operate or conduct the Business of the Company and Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, substantially in the manner in which it is
currently operated or conducted by the Company and Subsidiaries; provided, however, that none of the following, either alone or in
combination, shall be considered in determining whether there has been a breach of a representation, warranty, covenant, condition or
agreement that is qualified by the term “Material Adverse Effect” or whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred or would reasonably
be expected to occur for the purposes of



Section 8.02(f): (A) events, developments, occurrences, conditions, changes or effects that generally affect the industries in which the
Company or Subsidiaries operate (including legal and regulatory changes); (B) general business or economic conditions or events,
developments, occurrences, conditions, changes or effects, whether or not affecting the industry in which the Company and the
Subsidiaries operate; (C) events, developments, occurrences, conditions, changes or effects arising from or relating to any changes in
financial, banking, securities or commodities markets, including any disruptions thereof and any changes in any prices therein; (D)
changes in, or changes in interpretations of, GAAP or other accounting standards and any events, developments, occurrences, conditions,
changes or effects arising therefrom or related thereto; (E) changes in, or changes in interpretations of, applicable Law, and any events,
developments, occurrences, conditions, changes or effects arising therefrom or related thereto; (F) events, developments, occurrences,
conditions, changes or effects arising from or relating to national or international political conditions, including acts of war (whether or
not declared), armed hostilities or terrorism, or any escalation or worsening of any such acts of war, armed hostilities or terrorism under
way as of the date of this Agreement; (G) earthquakes or other natural disasters and other force majeure events in the United States or any
other country; (H) any event, development, occurrence, condition, change or effect resulting from an action required by this Agreement;
(I) any event, development, occurrence, condition, change or effect resulting from or relating to the announcement of this Agreement
(including any actions taken by customers, suppliers or other business relations as a result thereof); (J) any failure of the Company or any
Subsidiaries to meet, with respect to any period or periods, any forecasts or projections, estimates of earnings or revenues, or business
plans and any events, developments, occurrences, conditions, changes or effects arising therefrom or related thereto (provided that the
underlying cause for any such failure shall not be excluded by this clause (J)); (K) any action taken or omission to act with the written
consent or upon the written request of Parent or the Purchaser (including any action taken or omission to act which are required by this
Agreement) and any event, development, occurrence, condition, change or effect arising therefrom or related thereto; (L) any event,
development, occurrence, condition, change or effect arising from or relating to any violation or breach by the Purchaser or Parent of this
Agreement of which the Purchaser has been provided written notice; or (M) any event, development, occurrence, condition, change or
effect arising from or relating to any acquisition or business combination transaction entered into, consummated, or abandoned by any
customer of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries or any other provider of telecommunications services in the United States; except,
with respect to the foregoing clauses (A), (B), (C), (D), (E), (F) and (G), to the extent that the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole, are disproportionately affected thereby as compared with other comparable fiber providers that primarily provide bandwidth
services or fiber optic networks to commercial, non-profit, K-12 (including customers receiving E-Rate subsidies) or telecommunications
carrier customers (in which case only the incremental disproportionate impact or impacts may be taken into account in determining
whether there has been, is or would reasonably expected to be, a Material Adverse Effect).

“Non-Disclosure Agreement” means that certain Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement, dated as of January 12,
2015, between Parent and the Seller.

“Non-Income Taxes” means Taxes other than Income Taxes.



“Nova NextGen Solutions” means Nova NextGen Solutions, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

“Owned Intellectual Property” means Intellectual Property owned by the Company or any Subsidiary.

“Owned Real Property” means the real property in which the Company or any Subsidiary has a fee title interest, together
with all buildings and other structures, facilities or improvements currently or hereafter located thereon, all fixtures, systems, equipment
and items of personal property of the Company or any Subsidiary attached or appurtenant thereto and all easements, licenses, rights and
appurtenances relating to the foregoing.

“Parent Change of Control Payment Allocation” means the amount set forth in Section 1.01(vii) of the Disclosure

Schedule.

“Permits” means franchises, grants, authorizations, licenses, permits, ordinances, variances, exceptions, consents,
concessions, registrations, clearances, qualifications, waivers, exemptions, certificates, approvals and orders of any Governmental
Authority, other than Environmental Permits and Communications Licenses.

“Permitted Encumbrances” means each of the following: (a) liens for Taxes, assessments and governmental charges or
levies not yet due and payable, or that are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings; (b) materialmen’s, mechanics’,
carriers’, workmen’s and repairmen’s liens and other similar Encumbrances arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business securing
obligations which are not yet due and payable or are being paid in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

(c) pledges or deposits to secure obligations under workers’ compensation laws, unemployment insurance laws or similar legislation or to
secure public or statutory obligations; (d) recorded easements, covenants, rights of way, and other similar restrictions that do not adversely
affect in any material respect the current use by the Company and the Subsidiaries of the property to which they relate, (e) unrecorded
easements, covenants, rights of way, other similar restrictions, imperfections or irregularities of title and minor survey exceptions,
reciprocal easement agreements and other customary encumbrances on title to Real Property that do not adversely affect in any material
respect the current use by the Company and the Subsidiaries of the property to which they relate; (f) zoning, planning, and other similar
laws, ordinances, rules, limitations and restrictions, and all rights of any Governmental Authority to regulate Real Property that do not
adversely affect in any material respect the current use by the Company and the Subsidiaries of the property to which they relate; (g)
pledges and deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts, leases, surety and appeal bonds, performance bonds, and other
similar obligations; (h) Encumbrances arising under original purchase price conditional sales contracts and equipment leases with third
parties entered into in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice; (i) any Encumbrance (including any Encumbrance
pursuant or relating to any Credit Support Instrument) that is released at or prior to the Closing; (j) any Encumbrance set forth in Section
1.01(ii) of the Disclosure Schedule; (k) co-occupancy rights, colocation rights, regeneration site rights, interconnection rights, licenses,
indefeasible rights to use and similar Encumbrances entered into in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice
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by the Company or any Subsidiary; and (1) any other Encumbrances that are not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually
or in the aggregate, material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

“Person” means any individual, partnership, firm, corporation, limited liability company, association, estate, trust, joint
venture, unincorporated organization, Governmental Authority or other association, organization or entity, as well as any syndicate or
group that would be deemed to be a person under Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act.

“Post-Closing Period” means any taxable period beginning after the Closing Date.

“Pre-Closing Period” means any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date.

“Purchase Price Bank Account” means a bank account in the United States to be designated by the Seller in a written notice
to the Purchaser at least five Business Days before the Closing.

“Purchaser Fundamental Representations” means the representations and warranties of the Purchaser and Parent made in
Section 4.01 (Organization and Authority of the Purchaser and Parent) and Section 4.08 (Brokers).

“Real Property” means the Leased Real Property and the Owned Real Property.

“Regulations” means the Treasury Regulations (including Temporary Regulations) promulgated by the United States
Department of Treasury with respect to the Code or other federal Tax statutes.

“Reimbursable Expenses” means an amount (which may be a positive or negative number) equal to (a) any Transaction
Expenses, plus (b) the difference between (i) the sum of all Change of Control Payments unpaid as of the Closing (whether or not payable
prior to or after the Closing), minus (ii) the Parent Change of Control Payment Allocation, plus (c) the portion of any Conveyance Taxes
due by the Seller in accordance with Section 7.07, minus (d) the amount of any filing fees paid by the Seller in connection with the
FCC/State PUC Filings.

“Release” means releasing, disposing, discharging, injecting, spilling, leaking, leaching, dumping, emitting, escaping,
emptying, seeping, placing and the like into or migrating through the Environment or into any indoor facility. “Release” does not mean
disposal or arrangement for disposal at a third-party site.

“Remaining Subsidiaries” means all corporations, partnerships, limited liability companies, joint ventures, associations and
other entities controlled by the Seller directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries other than the Company and Subsidiaries.

“Remedial Action” means all action to (a) clean up, remove, treat or handle in any other way Hazardous Materials in the
Environment or (b) perform remedial investigations,
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feasibility studies, corrective actions, closures and post-remedial or post-closure studies, investigations, operations, maintenance and
monitoring.

“Retained Names” means the names and marks “Quanta” and “InfraSource” or any confusingly similar name or mark, and
any and all of the trademarks, service marks, domain names, trade names, trade dress, identifying symbols, logos, emblems, signs, insignia
and corporate names incorporating the foregoing names or marks, or any confusingly similar name or mark.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933.
“SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Seller Credit Facility” means the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2013, among,
inter alia, the Seller, certain subsidiaries of the Seller and the lenders party thereto, as modified and amended from time to time.

“Seller Fundamental Representations” means the representations and warranties of the Seller made in Section 3.01
(Organization, Authority and Qualification of the Seller), Section 3.02 (Organization, Authority and Qualification of the Company),
Section 3.03 (Subsidiaries), Section 3.04 (Capitalization) and Section 3.22 (Brokers).

“Seller’s Knowledge”, “Knowledge of the Seller”, “Knowledge” or similar terms used in this Agreement mean, with
respect to any matter in question, the actual knowledge of the Persons listed in Section 1.01(vi) the Disclosure Schedule.

“Seller Surety Bond Facility” means the Underwriting, Continuing Indemnity and Security Agreement, dated as of March
14, 2005, among, inter alia, the Seller, certain subsidiaries of the Seller and Federal Insurance Company, as modified and amended from
time to time.

“Significant Customer Fiber Contract” means any contract (other than a master service agreement), service order or similar
purchase order or invoice under a master service agreement or other agreement or arrangement (each, a “Customer Fiber Contract”)
between the Company or any Subsidiary, on the one hand, and any customer thereof, on the other hand, for (a) the use of Fiber, whether lit
or dark, including any indefeasible rights to use or similar arrangement relating to the use of Fiber facilities or related equipment and also
including any associated Fiber maintenance services, (b) the Company’s or any Subsidiary’s lease, license or other grant of rights to any
such customer to locate equipment within a space owned or controlled by the Company or a Subsidiary or (c) the Company’s or any
Subsidiary’s grant to any such customer of the right to connect, using fiber or other cabling, such customer’s network or system equipment
located within space leased, licensed or otherwise acquired from the Company or any Subsidiary with network or system equipment
located in space owned or controlled by a third party that (i) was one of the 70 largest Customer Fiber Contracts based on the dollar
amount received pursuant to such contract, service order or arrangement with respect to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 relative
to the total revenues of the Company and the
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Subsidiaries for such fiscal year or (ii) is reasonably expected by the Seller, as of December 31, 2014, to be one of the 70 largest Customer
Fiber Contracts based on the dollar amount expected to be payable pursuant to such contract, service order or arrangement with respect to
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015 relative to the total revenues of the Company and the Subsidiaries expected for such fiscal year.

“Significant Customer Fiber Contract MSA” means any master service agreement (not including any service order or
similar purchase order or invoice submitted thereunder) setting forth the terms and conditions relating to any Significant Customer Fiber
Contract.

“Stand-Alone Return” means any Tax Return of the Company and the Subsidiaries that is filed on a separate company basis
or is filed by a consolidated, combined, unitary, affiliated or similar group of which any of the Company or the Subsidiaries are the only
members of the group.

“State PUC” means, with respect to (a) any state or commonwealth of the United States or (b) Washington, D.C., the public
service or public utilities commission, or similar state agency, with jurisdiction over the ownership of intrastate telecommunication
facilities or the provision of intrastate telecommunications services in such state or commonwealth of the Unites States or in Washington,
D.C,, as applicable.

“Straddle Period” means any taxable period beginning on or prior to and ending after the Closing Date.

“subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, any partnership, firm, corporation, limited liability company, association,
trust, joint venture, unincorporated organization or other association, organization or entity of which (a) if a corporation, a majority of the
total voting power of shares of Capital Stock entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of
directors, managers, or trustees thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or one or more of the other
subsidiaries of such Person or a combination thereof, or (b) if a business entity other than a corporation, a majority of the partnership or
other similar ownership interests thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or one or more
subsidiaries of such Person or a combination thereof. For purposes of this Agreement, a Person or Persons shall be deemed to have a
majority ownership interest in a business entity other than a corporation if such Person or Persons shall be allocated a majority of gains or
losses, or shall be or control the general partner or other managing Person, of such business entity.

“Subsidiaries” means each of the subsidiaries of the Company, as set forth in Section 3.03(a) of the Disclosure Schedule,
other than Nova NextGen Solutions.

“Tax Returns” means any return, declaration, report, election, claim for refund or information return or other statement or
form relating to, filed or required or permitted to be filed with any Tax authority, including any schedule or attachment thereto or any
amendment thereof.
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“Taxes” means (i) any and all taxes, fees, levies, duties, tariffs, imposts, and other charges of any kind (together with any
and all interest, penalties, additions to tax and additional amounts imposed with respect thereto) imposed by any Governmental Authority,
including taxes or other charges on or with respect to income, franchises, gross receipts, property, sales, use, capital stock, payroll,
employment, social security, workers’ compensation, unemployment compensation, or net worth; taxes or other charges in the nature of
excise, withholding, ad valorem, stamp, transfer, value added, or gains taxes; and customs’ duties, tariffs, and similar charges (but
excluding federal and state telecommunications regulatory surcharges collected by, or on behalf of, the FCC or State PUCs, including the
federal contribution obligations related to the federal Universal Service Fund, Telecommunications Relay Service Fund, North American
Numbering Plan Administration and Local Number Portability Administration and substantially similar regulatory funds administered by
State PUCs) and (ii) any liability for or in respect of any amounts described in clause (i) by reason of a tax sharing agreement, as a result
of having filed any Tax Return on a combined, consolidated, unitary, affiliated or similar basis or as a transferee or a successor by
operation of law.

“Transaction Expenses” means the out-of-pocket fees and expenses of the Company and the Subsidiaries (including fees
and disbursements of counsel, financial advisors and accountants to the Company and the Subsidiaries) incurred in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby, in each case to the extent unpaid as of the Closing.

“Valid Right” means a right of ownership, use or occupancy arising under fee title, a leasehold interest, an easement
(including arising under a statute or other applicable Law), a license, an indefeasible right to use, a colocation right, a co-occupancy right,
a conduit right, a pole attachment right, a regeneration site right, an interconnection right or other similar right.

SECTION 1.02. Definitions. The following terms have the meanings set forth in the Sections set forth below:

Definition Location
“Additional Approvals” 8.01(c)
“Closing” 2.03
“Closing Approvals” 8.01(c)
“Company” Recitals
“Company Contributions” 3.17(f)
“Company E&P Report” 5.19
“Company Plans” 3.17(a)
“Company Releasees” 5.06(a)
“Competitor Business” 5.17(a)
“Credit Support Instruments” 5.10
“ERISA” 3.17(a)
“FCC/State PUC Approvals” 3.06
“FCC/State PUC Filings” 3.06
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“Governmental Filings” 5.04(a)

“Initial End Date” 10.01(c)
“Insurance Policies” 3.20
“Loss” 9.02
“Material Contracts” 3.13(a)
“Multiemployer Plan” 3.17(b)
“Multiple Employer Plan” 3.17(b)
“Non-Party Affiliates” 11.15
“Organizational Documents™ 3.05
“Parent” Preamble
“Plans” 3.17(a)
“Pre-Closing Counsel” 5.13
“Purchase Price” 2.02
“Purchaser” Preamble
“Purchaser Indemnified Party” 9.02
“Reporting Firm” 5.19
“Required Permits” 3.11(b)
“Restricted Person” 5.17(b)
“Retained Credit Instruments” 5.10(b)
“Section 409A Plan” 3.17(g)
“Seller” Preamble
“Seller Indemnified Party” 9.03
“Seller Marks” 5.05(b)
“Seller Releasees” 5.06(b)
“Seller Representations” 3.24
“Shares” Recitals
“Tax Action” 7.04(a)
“Third Party Claim” 9.05(b)
“Transferred Employee” 6.01(a)
“Transition Period” 5.05(b)
“Transition Services Agreement” 5.08

SECTION 1.03. Interpretation and Rules of Construction. In this Agreement, except to the extent otherwise provided or
that the context otherwise requires:

(a) when a reference is made in this Agreement to an Article, Section, Exhibit or Schedule, such reference is to an
Article or Section of, or an Exhibit or Schedule to, this Agreement unless otherwise indicated;

(b) the table of contents and headings for this Agreement are for reference purposes only and do not affect in any
way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement;
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(© whenever the words “include”, “includes” or “including” are used in this Agreement, they are deemed to be
followed by the words “without limitation”;

(d) the words “hereof”, “herein” and “hereunder” and words of similar import, when used in this Agreement, refer to
this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement, and the “date hereof” refers to the date of this
Agreement;

(e) all terms defined in this Agreement have the defined meanings when used in any certificate or other document

made or delivered pursuant hereto, unless otherwise defined therein;

®) the definitions contained in this Agreement are applicable to the singular as well as the plural forms of such
terms;

(g) any Law defined or referred to herein or in any agreement or instrument that is referred to herein means such
Law or statute as from time to time amended, modified or supplemented, including by succession of comparable successor Laws;

(h) references to a Person are also to its successors and permitted assigns;
@) the use of “or” is not intended to be exclusive unless expressly indicated otherwise; and
)] the parties have participated jointly in negotiating and drafting this Agreement, and in the event that an ambiguity

or a question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the parties, and no
presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any provision of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE I
PURCHASE AND SALE

SECTION 2.01. Purchase and Sale of the Shares. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, at the
Closing, the Seller shall sell, assign, transfer, convey and deliver, or cause to be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered, to the
Purchaser, the Shares, and the Purchaser shall purchase the Shares.

SECTION 2.02. Purchase Price. The aggregate purchase price (the “Purchase Price”) for the Shares shall be an amount
equal to (a) One Billion Dollars ($1,000,000,000.00), minus (b) the Closing Indebtedness, minus (c) any Capex Adjustment, minus (d) any
Reimbursable Expenses. Except as provided in the immediately preceding sentence and in Section 7.09(a) for Tax purposes, the Purchase
Price will not be subject to any adjustment (including adjustments with respect to net working capital).

SECTION 2.03. Closing. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the sale and purchase of the Shares
contemplated by this Agreement shall take place at a closing (the “Closing”) to be held at the offices of Duane Morris LLP, 1330 Post Oak
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Boulevard, Suite 800, Houston, Texas at 10:00 A.M. Houston time no later than the fifth Business Day following the satisfaction or
waiver of all conditions to the obligations of the parties set forth in Article VIII (other than those conditions which by their terms are only
capable of being satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of such conditions) or at such other place or at such other
time or on such other date as the Seller and the Purchaser may mutually agree upon in writing.

SECTION 2.04. Closing Deliveries by the Seller. At the Closing, the Seller shall deliver or cause to be delivered to
Parent and the Purchaser:

(a) stock certificates evidencing the Shares of the Company, duly endorsed in blank or accompanied by stock powers
duly executed in blank, in form reasonably satisfactory to Parent and the Purchaser and with all required stock transfer Tax stamps
affixed;

(b) executed counterparts of the Ancillary Agreement, to which the Seller is party;

(© a receipt for the Purchase Price;

(d) a certificate of a duly authorized officer of the Seller certifying as to the matters set forth in Section 8.02(a) and
Section 8.02(f);

(e) letters of resignation, effective as of the Closing, of all of the directors and officers of the Company and each

Subsidiary, except for such individuals as shall have been designated in writing prior to the Closing by Parent to the Seller, which
letters shall apply solely to the status of such individuals as officers or directors but not as employees; and

) a certificate of non-foreign status (in a form reasonably acceptable to Parent and the Purchaser) pursuant to
Section 1.1445-2(b)(2) of the Regulations.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any obligation of the Seller pursuant to this Agreement to deliver or make
available any item to both the Purchaser and Parent shall be satisfied by delivering or making available such item to either the Purchaser
or Parent.

SECTION 2.05. Closing Deliveries by the Purchaser. At the Closing, Parent and the Purchaser, as applicable, shall
deliver or cause to be delivered to the Seller:

(a) the Purchase Price by wire transfer in immediately available funds to the Purchase Price Bank Account;
(b) executed counterparts of the Ancillary Agreement, to which the Purchaser is a party; and
(© a certificate of a duly authorized officer of each of the Purchaser and Parent certifying as to the matters set forth

in Section 8.01(a).
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ARTICLE III

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
OF THE SELLER

Except as set forth in the corresponding Section of the Disclosure Schedule (it being understood that any matter disclosed
in any Section of the Disclosure Schedule will be deemed to be disclosed for purposes of each other Section of this Article III to the extent
that it is reasonably apparent from the face of such disclosure that such disclosure would also qualify such other Section), the Seller
hereby represents and warrants to Parent and the Purchaser as of the date hereof that:

SECTION 3.01. Organization, Authority and Qualification of the Seller. The Seller is a corporation validly existing and
in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation and has all necessary corporate power and authority to enter into
this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement, to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby. The Seller is duly licensed or qualified to do business and is in good standing in each jurisdiction in
which the properties owned or leased by it or the operation of its business require such licensing or qualification, except to the extent that
the failure to be so licensed or qualified and in good standing would not reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement by the Seller, the
performance by the Seller of its obligations hereunder and thereunder and the consummation by the Seller of the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of the Seller and its stockholders.
This Agreement has been, and upon its execution the Ancillary Agreement shall have been, duly executed and delivered by the Seller, and
(assuming due authorization, execution and delivery thereof by, as applicable, the Purchaser, Parent and each other party thereto) this
Agreement constitutes, and upon its execution and delivery the Ancillary Agreement shall constitute, legal, valid and binding obligations
of the Seller, enforceable against the Seller in accordance with their respective terms, subject to the effect of any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency (including all Laws relating to fraudulent transfers), reorganization, moratorium or similar Laws affecting creditors’ rights and
remedies generally and as limited by the availability of specific performance and subject to other equitable remedies and the application of
general principles of equity (regardless of whether considered in a proceeding at Law or in equity).

SECCTION 3.02. Organization, Authority and Qualification of the Company. The Company is a corporation validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation and has all necessary corporate power and authority to
own, operate or lease the properties and assets now owned, operated or leased by it and to carry on the Business of the Company as it has
been and is currently conducted by it. The Company is duly licensed or qualified to do business and is in good standing in each
jurisdiction in which the properties owned or leased by it or the operation of its Business makes such licensing or qualification necessary,
except to the extent that the failure to be so licensed or qualified would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, and

all such jurisdictions are set
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forth in Section 3.02 of the Disclosure Schedule. True and correct copies of (a) the certificate of incorporation and by-laws of the
Company, each as in effect on the date hereof, and (b) the minutes (or, in the case of draft minutes, the most recent drafts thereof) of all
meetings of the board of directors of the Company since December 31, 2011 have, in each case, been made available by the Seller to
Parent and the Purchaser.

SECTION 3.03. Subsidiaries.

(a) Section 3.03(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list of all Subsidiaries, listing for each
Subsidiary its name, type of entity, the jurisdiction and date of its incorporation or organization, its authorized Capital Stock, the
number and type of its issued and outstanding Capital Stock and the current ownership of such Capital Stock.

(b) Other than the Subsidiaries and Nova NextGen Solutions, there are no other corporations, partnerships, joint
ventures, associations or other entities in which the Company or any Subsidiary owns, of record or beneficially, any direct or
indirect equity or other interest or any right (contingent or otherwise) to acquire the same.

(© Each Subsidiary: (i) is a corporation or limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or formation, (ii) has all necessary power and authority to own, operate
or lease the properties and assets owned, operated or leased by such Subsidiary and to carry on its business as it has been and is
currently conducted by such Subsidiary and (iii) is duly licensed or qualified to do business and is in good standing in each
jurisdiction in which the properties owned or leased by it or the operation of its business makes such licensing or qualification
necessary, except to the extent that the failure to be so licensed or qualified would not reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

(d) True and complete copies of (i) the certificate of incorporation and by-laws, or certificate of formation and
limited liability company agreement (or similar organizational documents, as applicable) of each Subsidiary, in each case as in
effect on the date hereof, and (ii) the minutes (or, in the case of draft minutes, the most recent drafts thereof) of all meetings of the
boards of directors (or comparable governing bodies) of each Subsidiary since December 31, 2011 have, in each case, been made
available by the Seller to Parent and the Purchaser.

(e) Nova NextGen Solutions does not own, hold or otherwise have a right to any assets, properties, agreements or
other arrangements (including any fiber optic cabling, conduits or rights thereto) that are necessary or useful to the operation of the
Business.

SECTION 3.04. Capitalization.

(a) Section 3.04(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth: (i) the authorized Capital Stock (and type thereof) of the
Company, and (ii) the number of shares (and type)
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of Capital Stock of the Company that are issued and outstanding, all of which are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.
None of the issued and outstanding shares of Capital Stock of the Company was issued in violation of any preemptive rights. There
are no options, equity awards, phantom equity awards, warrants, convertible securities, interests (economic or otherwise) or other
rights, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character relating to any Capital Stock of the Company (including the
Shares) or obligating the Seller or the Company to issue or sell any Capital Stock (including any Shares) or any other interest in
the Company. There are no outstanding contractual obligations of the Company to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any of
its shares of Capital Stock or other interests or to provide funds to, or make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital
contribution or otherwise) in, any other Person. The Shares constitute all of the issued and outstanding Capital Stock of the
Company and are owned of record and beneficially by the Seller, as set forth in Section 3.04(a) of the Disclosure Schedule. Upon
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and registration of the Shares in the name of the Purchaser in
the stock records of the Company, the Purchaser will own all the issued and outstanding Capital Stock of the Company free and
clear of all Encumbrances (other than any Encumbrances arising due to, or resulting from any action on the part of, Parent, the
Purchaser or any of their Affiliates). There are no voting trusts, stockholder agreements, proxies or other agreements or
understandings in effect with respect to the voting or transfer of any of the Shares.

(b) The stock register of the Company accurately records: (i) the name of each Person owning shares of Capital
Stock of the Company and (ii) the certificate number of each certificate evidencing shares of Capital Stock issued by the Company,
the number of shares evidenced by each such certificate, the date of issuance thereof and, in the case of cancellation, the date of
cancellation thereof.

(©) All of the outstanding Capital Stock of each Subsidiary is validly issued, fully paid and, if applicable,
nonassessable, and is wholly owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly. There are no options, warrants, convertible
securities or other rights, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character relating to the Capital Stock of any
Subsidiary or obligating the Seller or the Company or any Subsidiary to issue or sell any Capital Stock of, or any other interest in,
any Subsidiary. There are no voting trusts, stockholder agreements, proxies or other agreements or understandings in effect with
respect to the voting or transfer of any Capital Stock of or any other interests in any Subsidiary.

(d) The stock register of each Subsidiary accurately records: (i) the name of each Person owning any Capital Stock
of such Subsidiary and (ii) the certificate number of each certificate evidencing any Capital Stock issued by such Subsidiary, the
number of shares evidenced by each such certificate, the date of issuance thereof and, in the case of cancellation, the date of
cancellation thereof.
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SECTION 3.05. No Conflict. Assuming, in the case of clauses (b) and (c) below, compliance with the pre-merger
notification and waiting period requirements of the HSR Act and the making and obtaining of all filings, notifications, consents,
approvals, authorizations and other actions referred to in Section 3.06 and the obtaining of all consents set forth in Section 3.05 of the
Disclosure Schedule, the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement by the Seller do not (a)
violate, conflict with or result in the breach of any provision of the certificate of incorporation, by-laws, certificate of formation or limited
liability company agreement (or similar organizational documents, as applicable) (the “Organizational Documents”) of the Seller or the
Company or any Subsidiary, (b) conflict with or violate any Law or Governmental Order that is in effect on the date of this Agreement
applicable to the Seller or the Company or any Subsidiary or any of their respective assets, properties or businesses, or (c) conflict with,
result in any breach of, constitute a default under or require any consent under, or result in the creation of any Encumbrance on any of the
Shares or any of the Assets pursuant to, any Material Contract to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a party or by which any of the
Shares or any of such Assets is bound or affected, except, in the case of clauses (b) and (c), as would not reasonably be expected,
individually or in the aggregate, to (i) be material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (ii) prohibit or prevent
(including on the timing contemplated by Section 10.01(c)) the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 3.06. Governmental Consents and Approvals. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and
the Ancillary Agreement by the Seller do not require any consent, approval, authorization or other order of, action by, filing with or
notification to, any Governmental Authority, except (a) the pre-merger notification and waiting period requirements of the HSR Act, (b)
the filing or submission of applications, registrations, notifications and reports with or to the FCC and the applicable State PUCs that are
necessary or appropriate in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement (“FECC/State
PUC Filings”), and receipt of all approvals, waivers, orders, authorizations and consents from the FCC and the applicable State PUCs
required in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement (“FCC/State PUC Approvals”)
and (c) such other consents, waivers, authorizations, approvals, declarations, notices, filings or registrations as will be obtained or made
prior to the Closing or which, if not obtained or made, would not reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to (i) be
material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or (ii) prohibit or prevent (including on the timing contemplated by
Section 10.01(c)) the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 3.07. Financial Information.

(a) True and complete copies of the Financial Statements have been delivered by the Seller to the Purchaser. The
Financial Statements (i) present fairly, in all material respects, the combined financial condition and results of operations of the
Company and the Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof or for the periods covered thereby, (ii) are derived from and have been
prepared in accordance with the underlying books and records of the Company and the Subsidiaries and (iii) except as disclosed in
the Financial Statements,
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have been prepared in accordance with GAAP applied on a basis consistent with the past practices, other than as required for
stand-alone or separate company financial statements, of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

(b) The books, records and accounts of the Company and each of the Subsidiaries, all of which have been made
available to Parent and the Purchaser to the extent requested by them in writing prior to the date of this Agreement, are true and
complete in all material respects and represent actual, bona fide transactions and have been maintained in accordance with good
business practices in all material respects. To the Seller’s Knowledge, the system of internal controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, is reasonably designed to provide reasonable assurance (i) that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP, (ii) that transactions are executed
only in accordance with the authorization of management and (iii) regarding prevention or timely detection of the unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the assets of the Company or the Subsidiaries.

(© Section 3.07(c) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a reconciliation of (i) each of the line items specified in the
condensed, combined and consolidated income statement included in the Financial Statements, for each of the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, to (ii) the applicable line items for the Seller’s “Fiber Optic Licensing and Other” segment for
each such fiscal year, as specified in the audited financial statements of the Seller included in the Seller’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.

SECTION 3.08. Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities. There are no Liabilities of the Company or any Subsidiary (whether
or not required to be reflected or reserved against on a balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP), other than Liabilities (a) that are
reflected or reserved against in accordance with GAAP on the Financial Statements, (b) incurred since December 31, 2014 in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice or (c) that are not, and would not reasonably expected to be, individually or in the
aggregate, material to the Company and the Subsidiaries taken as a whole. For the avoidance of doubt, any Liabilities resulting from the
ownership or operation of the Business by Parent and its Affiliates (including the Company and the Subsidiaries) after the Closing
(including any Liabilities that (i) relate to or result from any breach, default, violation or occurrence occurring after the Closing or arising
from an event, circumstance or condition occurring or existing after the Closing that did not exist prior to the Closing, (ii) relate to a
warranty or indemnity for which the underlying circumstances relating to the warranty or indemnity claim arose after the Closing, (iii)
accrue or relate to the operations of the Business after the Closing, or (iv) are required to be performed after the Closing (and are not
required to be performed on or prior to the Closing Date and did not arise from an event, circumstance or condition occurring or existing
prior to the Closing)) shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Section 3.08.
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(a) Except as set forth in Section 3.09(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, since December 31, 2014, the business of the
Company and the Subsidiaries (including the Business) has been conducted in the ordinary course and consistent with past practice
and there has been no Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Except as set forth in Section 3.09(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, none of the Company or any of the
Subsidiaries has taken any action or failed to take any action, since December 31, 2014 and prior to the date hereof, which, if taken
or failed to have been taken after the date hereof, would constitute a breach of Section 5.01(b) without the written consent of the
Purchaser.

SECTION 3.10. Litigation. There are no Actions pending or, to the Seller’s Knowledge, threatened in writing, by or
against the Company or any of the Subsidiaries that are, or, if determined adversely to the Company or any Subsidiary, would reasonably
be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. None of the Seller, the
Company and the Subsidiaries or any of their respective assets or properties, including the Assets, is subject to any Governmental Order
that is, or would reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a
whole.

SECTION 3.11. Compliance with Laws; Permits.

(a) The Company and each of the Subsidiaries is in compliance with all applicable Laws (other than Environmental
Laws), except where the failure to comply is not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate,
material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(b) Section 3.11(b) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list, as of the date of this Agreement, of all Company
Communications Licenses and all material Permits and Environmental Permits in favor of the Company and the Subsidiaries that
are required for the Company and the Subsidiaries to conduct their Business as it is being conducted as of the date hereof (the
“Required Permits”). The Required Permits are valid and in full force and effect except where the failure of any Required Permits
to be valid and in full force and effect is not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material
to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. Except as is not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually
or in the aggregate, material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (i) none of the Company or any of the
Subsidiaries is in material default under any Required Permit, (ii) none of the Required Permits other than the Company
Communications Licenses contains conditions except for such conditions imposed generally by applicable Law on holders of
licenses or permits similar to the Required Permits, and (iii) assuming compliance with the pre-merger notification and waiting
period requirements of the HSR Act and receipt of all FCC/State PUC Approvals, no Required Permit is subject to suspension,
modification (other than immaterial modifications), revocation, or nonrenewal as a result of the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this
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Agreement. No Action is pending or, to the Seller’s Knowledge, threatened seeking the revocation or material limitation of any
Required Permit.

(© The Company and each Subsidiary are in compliance in all material respects with each Company
Communications License and have fulfilled and performed in all material respects all of their obligations with respect thereto,
including, in all material respects (i) timely and accurately submitting all reports, certifications, notifications and applications and
(ii) timely paying all fees, assessments and contributions (including, as applicable (A) to state or federal universal service support
mechanisms, (B) to intrastate or interstate telecommunications relay services, (C) to the administration of the North American
Numbering Plan and (D) the shared costs of the Local Number Portability Administration), in each case of clauses (i) and (ii), that
are required by applicable Laws, including rules, regulations, policies, instructions and orders of the FCC and each applicable State
PUC.

(d) None of the representations and warranties contained in this Section 3.11 shall be deemed to relate to (i)
environmental matters (which are governed by Section 3.12), other than the representations and warranties in Section 3.11(b)
relating to Environmental Permits, (ii) intellectual property matters (which are governed by Section 3.14), (iii) employee benefits
matters (which are governed by Section 3.17), (iv) labor and employment matters (which are governed by Section 3.18) or (v) Tax
matters (which are governed by Section 3.19).

SECTION 3.12. Environmental Matters.

(a) Except as would not reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the Company and
the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole:

@) the Company and each Subsidiary is and has been in compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws
and all Environmental Permits and the Company has not received any unresolved written notice alleging that the Company
is in violation of, or may have Liability under, any Environmental Law or Environmental Permit;

(ii) There has been no (A) Release of any Hazardous Materials (x) by or at the direction of the Company or
any Subsidiary at any location or (y) to the Seller’s Knowledge, on, at or from any Real Property during the period of
operations or leasing of such Real Property by the Company or any Subsidiary or (B) to the Seller’s Knowledge, exposure
to any Hazardous Material in connection with any such Release, in each cases of clauses (A) and (B), that would
reasonably be expected to form the basis of any Environmental Claim against the Company or any Subsidiary;

(iii) To the Seller’s Knowledge, there has been no other Release of any Hazardous Material at any location
that would reasonably be expected to form the basis of any Environmental Claim against the Company or any Subsidiary,
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including any such Release on, at or from any of the Real Property, or on, at or from any real property formerly owned,
leased, used or occupied by the Company or any Subsidiary prior to the period of ownership, lease, use or occupancy of
such Real Property or former real property by the Company or any Subsidiary or on, at or from any other real property at
which the Company or any Subsidiary conducts or has conducted the Business;

@iv) To the Seller’s Knowledge, there has been no disposal or arrangement for disposal of Hazardous
Materials by or on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary at any third-party site that has been listed by a Governmental
Authority as a contaminated site that requires Remedial Action or that would otherwise reasonably be expected to form the
basis of any Environmental Claim against the Company or any Subsidiary;

V) None of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries is conducting or funding any Remedial Action; and

(vi) There are no Environmental Claims pending or, to the Seller’s Knowledge, threatened in writing against
the Company or any Subsidiary or the Real Property and, to the Seller’s Knowledge, there are no circumstances that would
reasonably be expected to form the basis of any such Environmental Claim or any Liability of the Company or any
Subsidiary relating to any Environmental Law.

(b) The Seller has provided Parent and the Purchaser with copies of all material environmental reports and audits in
its possession that were generated within the past five years relating to the Company, the Subsidiaries, their Business or Real
Property or that otherwise identify material Liabilities of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

(© Neither the execution of this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby will require any Remedial Action or any notice or filing (including pursuant to any real property
transfer acts) pursuant to any applicable Environmental Law or Environmental Permit.

(d) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has retained or assumed, either contractually or by operation of Law,
any liabilities or obligations that would reasonably be expected to form the basis of any Environmental Claim against the
Company or any Subsidiary.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, other than the representations and warranties set forth in Section 3.11(b) (as Section
3.11(b) relates to Environmental Permits), the representations and warranties in this Section 3.12 are the sole representations and
warranties of the Seller relating to Environmental Laws, Environmental Claims and Environmental Permits.
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SECTION 3.13. Material Contracts.

(a) Section 3.13(a) of the Disclosure Schedule lists, as of the date hereof, each of the following written contracts and
agreements of the Company and each Subsidiary (such contracts and agreements, together with all Company IP Agreements listed
or otherwise set forth in Section 3.14(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, being “Material Contracts™):

)] each contract, agreement, invoice, purchase order and other arrangement related to their Business under
the terms of which the Company or any Subsidiary: (x) is reasonably expected to pay or otherwise give consideration of
more than $250,000 in the aggregate during the calendar year ending December 31, 2015 or (y) is reasonably expected to
pay or otherwise give consideration of more than $1,000,000 in the aggregate over the remaining term of such contract;

(ii) each Significant Customer Fiber Contract and Significant Customer Fiber Contract MSA;

(iii) all material broker, distributor, dealer, manufacturer’s representative, franchise, agency, sales promotion,
market research, marketing, consulting and advertising contracts and agreements to which the Company or any Subsidiary
is a party;

@iv) all material management contracts and contracts with independent contractors or consultants (or similar

arrangements) to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a party and that cannot be cancelled by the Company or such
Subsidiary without penalty or further payment and without more than 30 days’ notice;

) all contracts and agreements relating to the incurrence of (A) Indebtedness of the Company or any
Subsidiary for borrowed money and (B) any other Indebtedness of the Company or any Subsidiary in excess of $50,000;

(vi) all contracts and agreements (other than confidentiality agreements entered into in the ordinary course of
business and consistent with past practice) that limit or purport to limit the ability of the Company or any Subsidiary to
compete in any line of business or with any Person or in any geographic area or during any period of time;

(vii) all contracts and agreements between or among the Company or any Subsidiary, on the one hand, and

the Seller or any officer, director, or Affiliate (other than the Company and Subsidiaries) of the Seller, or any officer or
director of the Company or any Subsidiary, or any immediate family member of any of the foregoing, on the other hand;
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(viii) all contracts and agreements providing for benefits under any Plan;

(ix) all leases or subleases for the Leased Real Property set forth in Section 3.15(b) of the Disclosure
Schedule;
x) all leases for each item of machinery, equipment, tools, supplies, furniture, fixtures, personalty, vehicles,

and other tangible personal property used in the Business of, or leased by, the Company or any Subsidiary that (A) is
reasonably expected to involve consideration of more than $250,000 in the aggregate during the calendar year ending
December 31, 2015, or (B) is reasonably expected to involve consideration of more than $1,000,000 to a particular third
party (including the Seller or any of its Affiliates (other than the Company and the Subsidiaries)) in the aggregate over the
remaining term of the contract;

(xi) all material (A) right-of-way use contracts and (B) access or attachment contracts, including agreements
relating to (1) access or attachment to utility poles or to placing fiber within underground conduits or across easements and
(2) regeneration site rights, in each case, for the private fiber optic networks or other Fiber of the Company and the
Subsidiaries;

(xii) all contracts granting the other party to such contract or a third party “most favored nation” status that
applies to the price of services provided by the Company or any Subsidiary;

(xiii) all contracts that provide for “exclusivity” or any similar requirement in favor of any Person other than
the Company or any Subsidiary;

» o«

(xiv) all contracts containing any “non-solicitation”, “no-hire” or similar provisions that restrict the
Company or any Subsidiary;

(xv) all collective bargaining agreements or other agreements or arrangements with any labor union; and
(xvi) all joint venture, partnership and material development contracts.
Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything herein to the contrary, the Excluded Contracts shall not constitute Material Contracts.

(b) Except as is not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the
Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (i) each Material Contract is valid and binding on the Company or the Subsidiary
that is a party thereto and is in full force and effect, (ii) upon consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement
and the Ancillary Agreement, except with respect to consents set forth in Section 3.05 of the Disclosure Schedule that are not
obtained, each Material Contract shall continue in full force and effect without any penalty or other
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adverse consequence, (iii) none of the Company and the Subsidiaries is in breach of, or default under, any Material Contract, and
no event has occurred and no condition exists that would, with or without notice, the lapse of time, or both, constitute a breach of
or a default by the Company or any Subsidiary under any Material Contract, and (iv) to the Seller’s Knowledge, no other party
(other than the Company or any Subsidiary) to any Material Contract (A) is in breach of, or default under, such Material Contract,
or (B) has given written or oral notice that it will terminate (whether or not subject to any contingency) such Material Contract or
not renew such Material Contract beyond the expiration of its then-current term.

(©) The Seller has made available to the Purchaser true and complete copies of all Material Contracts.

(d) There is no contract, agreement or other arrangement granting any Person any preferential right to purchase any
of the Assets or any of the Shares.

SECTION 3.14. Intellectual Property.

(a) Section 3.14(a) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth a true and complete list, as of the date hereof, of (i) all
patents and patent applications, registered trademarks and trademark applications, registered copyrights and copyright applications
and registered domain names included in the Owned Intellectual Property and (ii) other Owned Intellectual Property material to the
Business of the Company and Subsidiaries, other than confidential and proprietary information that is not material to the operation
of the Business as it is currently conducted by the Company or any Subsidiary.

(b) Section 3.14(b) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth, as of the date hereof, in each case to the extent material to
the operation of the Business as it is currently conducted by the Company or any Subsidiary, all (i) Company IP Agreements,
including those involving Licensed Intellectual Property, other than commercially available off the-shelf computer software
licensed pursuant to shrink-wrap or click wrap licenses that is not material to the operation of the Business as it is currently
conducted by the Company or any Subsidiary and (ii) Licensed Seller Intellectual Property, including any computer software
licensed to the Seller or an Affiliate of the Seller (other than the Company or any Subsidiary) that is currently used by the
Company or a Subsidiary as an Affiliate of such licensee in order to operate its Business as it is currently conducted.

(© The Company or a Subsidiary is the owner of, and has good and marketable title to, all such Owned Intellectual
Property set forth in Section 3.14(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, and has a valid license to use the Licensed Intellectual Property in
connection with its Business (in each case, free and clear of all Encumbrances, other than Permitted Encumbrances). The
Company or a Subsidiary will own, via an assignment or transfer to the Company or a Subsidiary at or prior to the Closing, the
Company Intellectual Property that is described in Section 3.14(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, and other than the Licensed Seller
Intellectual Property (which will not be assigned or otherwise transferred to the Company or any Subsidiary at or prior to the
Closing and
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will not be licensed to the Company or any Subsidiary by the Seller or its Affiliates post-Closing) will be entitled to use all
Company Intellectual Property in the continued operation of its Business after the Closing without limitation, subject only to the
terms of any applicable Company IP Agreements, and, except for the Licensed Seller Intellectual Property (which will not be
assigned or otherwise transferred to the Company or any Subsidiary at or prior to the Closing), the Company Intellectual Property
is all of the Intellectual Property necessary for or material to the operation of the Business as currently conducted by the Company
and the Subsidiaries; provided, however, that the Purchaser and Parent expressly acknowledge that the Company and the
Subsidiaries will not continue to receive any rights in or to any Licensed Seller Intellectual Property after the Closing. To the
Seller’s Knowledge, the Owned Intellectual Property set forth in Section 3.14(a) of the Disclosure Schedule has not been adjudged
invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, and is valid and enforceable.

(d) Except as is not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the
Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (i) neither the Company nor any of the Subsidiaries has, within the previous 18
months, received written notice of any infringement or misappropriation by the Company or any of the Subsidiaries of any
Intellectual Property of any other Person or by any other Person of any Owned Intellectual Property, (ii) to the Seller’s Knowledge,
the Company and the Subsidiaries are not infringing or misappropriating, and have not infringed or misappropriated within the
previous 18 months, the Intellectual Property of any other Person and (iii) to the Seller’s Knowledge, no Person is engaging in any
activity that infringes, misappropriates or otherwise violates the Owned Intellectual Property. This Section 3.14(d) constitutes the
sole representation and warranty of the Seller under this Agreement with respect to any actual or alleged infringement,
misappropriation or other violation by the Seller, the Company or any Subsidiary of the Intellectual Property of any other Person.

(e) Except as is not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the
Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, (i) the Owned Intellectual Property was either (A) developed by employees of the
Company and the Subsidiaries within the scope of their employment, (B) developed by independent contractors or consultants who
have assigned all of their rights in and to such Owned Intellectual Property to the Company or one of the Subsidiaries under
written contracts, or (C) otherwise acquired by the Company or one of the Subsidiaries under a valid written contract; and (ii) the
Company or one of the Subsidiaries has taken reasonable steps to protect and preserve the confidentiality of all trade secrets and
other confidential information included in the Company Intellectual Property (including by requiring employees and consultants
who have access to such information to execute valid and binding written confidentiality and non-use agreements or agreements
that contain similar obligations) in accordance with protection procedures customarily used in the industry to protect rights of like
importance.
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SECTION 3.15. Real Property.
(a) None of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries owns any interest in any Real Property.

(b) Section 3.15(b) of the Disclosure Schedule lists, as of the date hereof, the street address of each location of
Leased Real Property. The Company or a Subsidiary, as the case may be, has (or, upon consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and the Transition Services Agreement, the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate of Parent, as
the case may be, will have) valid and subsisting leasehold interests in or rights to use all of the Leased Real Property.

SECTION 3.16. Assets.

(a) Except with respect to Retained Names, Fiber and any Assets that constitute Real Property, the Company or a
Subsidiary, as the case may be, has (or, upon consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Transition
Services Agreement, the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliate of Parent, as the case may be, will have) good and valid title to, or,
in the case of leased or licensed Assets, valid and subsisting leasehold interests in or rights to use, respectively, all the tangible
personal property reflected on the unaudited condensed, combined and consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the
Subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended as of December 31, 2014 or acquired thereafter (other than any personal property which has
been disposed of in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice), free and clear of all Encumbrances, except
Permitted Encumbrances. The Company or a Subsidiary, as the case may be, has a Valid Right to the Fiber reflected on the
unaudited condensed, combined and consolidated balance sheet of the Company and the Subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended as of
December 31, 2014 or acquired thereafter.

(b) The tangible personal property Assets (including the Fiber) conform in all material respects to all requirements
of applicable Law relating to their use and operation, have been maintained in the ordinary course of business and consistent with
past practice and are in good operating condition and repair, ordinary wear and tear excepted, in each case except as would not
reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the Company and the Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. The
tangible personal property Assets (including the Fiber) are all of the tangible personal property assets necessary for or, in any
material respect, used in the operation of the Business as currently conducted by the Company and the Subsidiaries.

(© The description of the Fiber as of March 31, 2015 (including the location and routes, the route miles and unused
and total fiber miles of the Fiber on a county-by-county basis and the description of the Company’s and the Subsidiaries’
ownership thereof or Valid Right thereto) set forth in Section 3.16(c) of the Disclosure Schedule and in the electronic data file
relating to the Fiber provided by the Seller to Parent and the Purchaser prior to the date hereof is complete and correct in all
material respects. The Company and the Subsidiaries have a Valid Right to the Fiber described in Section 3.16
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(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, and Section 3.16(c) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth the approximate aggregate amount of
route miles and fiber miles of Fiber (A) owned by the Company or any Subsidiary and (B) which the Company or any Subsidiary
otherwise has a Valid Right to use in the operation of the Business as it is currently conducted by the Company and the
Subsidiaries, in each case as of March 31, 2015. The Company and the Subsidiaries have a Valid Right, or otherwise have the
right, to use all equipment necessary, in any material respect, to operate the fiber optic network of the Company and the
Subsidiaries as currently operated by the Company and the Subsidiaries.

SECTION. 3.17. Employee Benefit Matters.

(a) Plans and Material Documents. Section 3.17(a) of the Disclosure Schedule lists (i) all employee benefit plans (as
defined in Section 3(3) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”)) and all bonus, stock
option, stock purchase, restricted stock, incentive, deferred compensation, retiree medical or life insurance, supplemental
retirement, severance or other benefit plans, programs or arrangements, and all employment, termination, severance or other
contracts or agreements to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a party, with respect to which the Company or any Subsidiary
has any obligation or which are maintained, contributed to or sponsored by the Company or any Subsidiary for the benefit of any
current or former employee, officer or director of the Company or any Subsidiary, (ii) each employee benefit plan for which the
Company or any Subsidiary could incur liability under Section 4069 of ERISA in the event such plan has been or were to be
terminated, (iii) any plan in respect of which the Company or any Subsidiary could incur liability under Section 4212(c) of ERISA,
and (iv) any plans, programs, contracts, arrangements or understandings between the Seller or any of its Affiliates and any
employee of the Company or any Subsidiary, including any plans, programs, contracts, arrangements or understandings relating to
the sale of the Company (collectively, the “Plans”). Except as set forth in Section 3.17(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, each Plan
maintained or sponsored by the Company or any Subsidiary (the “Company Plans”) is in writing and, except with respect to any
Company Plan that is a Multiemployer Plan, the Seller has furnished to the Purchaser a complete and accurate copy of each
Company Plan and a complete and accurate copy of each material document prepared in connection with each such Company
Plan, including a copy of (A) each trust or other funding arrangement, (B) each summary plan description and summary of
material modifications, (C) the most recently filed IRS Form 5500, (D) the most recently received IRS determination letter for
each such Company Plan, and (E) the most recently prepared actuarial report and financial statement in connection with each such
Company Plan. None of the Company and the Subsidiaries has any express or implied commitment, whether legally enforceable or
not, (I) to create, incur liability with respect to, or cause to exist, any other employee benefit plan, program or arrangement, (II) to
enter into any contract or agreement to provide compensation or benefits to any individual, or (IIT) to modify, change or terminate
any Company Plan, other than with respect to a modification, change or termination required by ERISA or the Code.
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(b) Absence of Certain Types of Plans. Except as listed in Section 3.17(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, none of the
Company Plans is a multiemployer plan (within the meaning of Section 3(37) or 4001(a)(3) of ERISA) (a “Multiemployer Plan”)
or a single employer pension plan (within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(15) of ERISA) for which the Company or any
Subsidiary could incur liability under Section 4063 or 4064 of ERISA (a “Multiple Employer Plan”). None of the Company Plans
provides for or promises retiree medical, disability or life insurance benefits to any current or former employee, officer or director
of the Company or any Subsidiary other than as required under Section 4980B of the Code or any similar applicable state or local
law. Each of the Company Plans is subject only to the Laws of the United States or a political subdivision thereof.

(© Compliance with Applicable Law. Except as set forth in Section 3.17(c) of the Disclosure Schedule, each
Company Plan is now and always has been operated in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of all applicable
Law, including ERISA and the Code, and, to the Seller’s Knowledge, all Persons who participate in the operation of such
Company Plans and all Company Plan “fiduciaries” (within the meaning of Section 3(21) of ERISA) have always acted in all
material respects in accordance with the provisions of all applicable Law, including ERISA and the Code. To the Seller’s
Knowledge, the Company and each Subsidiary has performed all obligations required to be performed by it under, is not in any
respect in default under or in violation of, and has no Knowledge of any default or violation by any party to, any Company Plan.
No Action is pending or, to the Seller’s Knowledge, threatened with respect to any Company Plan (other than claims for benefits in
the ordinary course) and no fact or event exists that would reasonably be expected to give rise to any such Action.

(d) Qualification of Certain Plans. Except with respect to any Company Plan that is a Multiemployer Plan, each
Company Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code or Section 401(k) of the Code has received a
favorable determination letter from the IRS that it is so qualified or has received an opinion or advisory letter from the IRS on
which it may rely, and each trust established in connection with any Company Plan that is intended to be exempt from federal
income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code has received a determination letter from the IRS that it is so exempt or has
received an opinion or advisory letter from the IRS on which it may rely, and no fact or event has occurred since the date of such
determination, opinion or advisory letter from the IRS that could reasonably be expected to adversely affect the qualified status of
any such Company Plan or the exempt status of any such trust. Each trust maintained or contributed to by the Company or any
Subsidiary that is intended to be qualified as a voluntary employees’ beneficiary association and that is intended to be exempt from
federal income taxation under Section 501(c)(9) of the Code has received a favorable determination letter from the IRS that it is so
qualified and so exempt, and no fact or event has occurred since the date of such determination by the IRS to adversely affect such
qualified or exempt status.
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(e) Absence of Certain Liabilities and Events. To the Seller’s Knowledge, there has been no prohibited transaction
(within the meaning of Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code) with respect to any Company Plan, which is not
otherwise exempt under Section 408 of ERISA, and that would reasonably be expected to subject the Company or a Subsidiary to
any material liability. None of the Company and the Subsidiaries has incurred any liability for any penalty or tax arising under
Section 4971, 4972, 4980, 4980B or 6652 of the Code or any liability under Section 502 of ERISA, and no fact or event exists that
could reasonably be expected to give rise to any such liability. None of the Company and the Subsidiaries has incurred any liability
under, arising out of or by operation of Title IV of ERISA (other than liability for premiums to the Pension Benefit Guaranty
Corporation arising in the ordinary course), including any liability in connection with (i) the termination or reorganization of any
employee benefit plan subject to Title IV of ERISA or (ii) the withdrawal from any Multiemployer Plan or Multiple Employer
Plan, and no fact or event exists that could give rise to any such liability. No complete or partial termination has occurred within
the six years preceding the date hereof with respect to any Company Plan. No reportable event (within the meaning of Section
4043 of ERISA) has occurred or is expected to occur with respect to any Company Plan subject to Title IV of ERISA. Except with
respect to any Company Plan that is a Multiemployer Plan, no Company Plan failed to meet the minimum funding standards
(within the meaning of Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code), whether or not waived, as of the most recently ended
plan year of such Company Plan. None of the assets of the Company or any Subsidiary is the subject of any lien arising under
Section 302(f) of ERISA or Section 412(n) of the Code; none of the Company and the Subsidiaries has been required to post any
security under Section 307 of ERISA or Section 401(a)(29) of the Code; and no fact or event exists which could reasonably be
expected to give rise to any such lien or requirement to post any such security.

® Company Plan Contributions and Funding. All contributions, premiums or payments required to be made with
respect to any Company Plan have been made on or before their due dates. With respect to any such contributions made by the
Company or any Subsidiary (the “Company Contributions”), such Company Contributions have been fully deducted for income
tax purposes, to the extent permissible under applicable Law, and no deduction with respect to any Company Contribution has
been challenged or disallowed by any Governmental Authority, and no fact or event exists that would reasonably be expected to
give rise to any such challenge or disallowance.

(g) Section 409A Plans. Section 3.17(g) of the Disclosure Schedule sets forth each Company Plan that is a
nonqualified deferred compensation plan, within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code (each, a “Section 409A Plan”), and
identifies each Section 409A Plan in connection with which the Company or any Subsidiary may have liability with respect to
current or former employees, contractors or directors.

(h) Controlled Group Liability. Except as set forth in Section 3.17(h) of the Disclosure Schedule, with respect to the

Company and any other Commonly Controlled Entity, there does not exist, nor do any circumstances exist that would reasonably
be
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expected to result in, any Controlled Group Liability that would reasonably be expected to become a liability at or after the Closing
of the Company, the Purchaser or any Person that, together with the Purchaser, is treated as a single employer under Section
414(b), (c), (m) or (o) of the Code.

@) Change of Control Payments. Other than the Change of Control Payments, there are no other change of control,
bonus or other similar payments that are payable to any employee of the Company or the Subsidiaries in connection with, relating
to or as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

)] The representations and warranties set forth in this Section 3.17 are the Seller’s sole and exclusive representations
and warranties regarding employee benefit matters.

SECTION 3.18. Labor and Employment Matters. (a) Except as set forth in Section 3.18(a) of the Disclosure Schedule,
none of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries is a party to any collective bargaining agreement or other labor union contract applicable
to Persons employed by the Company or any Subsidiary, and, to the Seller’s Knowledge, currently there are no organizational campaigns,
petitions or other unionization activities seeking recognition of a collective bargaining unit which could affect the Company or any
Subsidiary; (b) to the Seller’s Knowledge, there are no controversies, strikes, slowdowns or work stoppages pending or threatened
between the Company or any Subsidiary and any of their respective employees, and none of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries has
experienced any such controversy, strike, slowdown or work stoppage within the past three years; (c) to the Seller’s Knowledge, none of
the Company and the Subsidiaries has breached or otherwise failed to comply with the provisions of any collective bargaining or union
contract, and there are no grievances outstanding against the Company or any Subsidiary under any such agreement or contract which
would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; (d) to the Seller’s Knowledge, there are no unfair labor practice
complaints pending against the Company or any Subsidiary before the National Labor Relations Board or any other Governmental
Authority or any current union representation questions involving employees of the Company or any Subsidiary which would reasonably
be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; (e) to the Seller’s Knowledge, the Company and each Subsidiary is currently in
compliance, in all material respects, with all applicable Laws relating to the employment of labor, including those related to worker
classification, wages, hours, collective bargaining, worker authorization under immigration Laws, workers’ compensation, occupation,
health and safety standards and the payment and withholding of Taxes and other sums as required by the appropriate Governmental
Authority and has withheld and paid to the appropriate Governmental Authority or is holding for payment not yet due to such
Governmental Authority all amounts required to be withheld from employees of the Company or Subsidiary and is not liable for any
arrears of wages, Taxes, penalties or other sums for failure to comply with any of the foregoing; (f) to the Seller’s Knowledge, the
Company and each Subsidiary has paid in full to all their respective employees or adequately accrued for in accordance with GAAP all
wages, salaries, commissions, bonuses, benefits and other compensation due to or on behalf of such employees; (g) to the Seller’s
Knowledge, there is no claim with respect to worker classification or the payment of wages, salary or overtime pay
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that has been asserted or is now pending or threatened before any Governmental Authority with respect to any Persons currently or
formerly employed by the Company or any Subsidiary; (h) none of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries is a party to, or otherwise
bound by, any consent decree with, or citation by, any Governmental Authority relating to employees or employment practices; (i) except
as set forth in Section 3.18(i) of the Disclosure Schedule, to the Seller’s Knowledge, there is no charge or proceeding with respect to a
violation of any occupational safety or health standard that has been asserted or is now pending or threatened with respect to the Company
or any Subsidiary; and (j) except as set forth in Section 3.18(j) of the Disclosure Schedule, to the Seller’s Knowledge, there is no charge of
discrimination in employment or employment practices, for any reason, including age, gender, race, religion or other legally protected
category, which has been asserted or is now pending or threatened before the United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission,
or any other Governmental Authority in any jurisdiction in which the Company or any Subsidiary has employed or currently employs any
Person. The representations and warranties set forth in this Section 3.18 are the Seller’s sole and exclusive representations and warranties
regarding labor and employment matters.

SECTION 3.19. Taxes.

(a) (i) All Income Tax Returns and other material Tax Returns required to be filed by or with respect to the Company
and each Subsidiary (including any consolidated federal income Tax Return of the Seller and any state, local or other Tax Return
that includes the Company or any Subsidiary on a consolidated, combined or unitary basis) have been filed; (ii) all material Taxes
required to be shown on such Tax Returns or otherwise due in respect of the Company or any Subsidiary have been paid; (iii) all
such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete in all material respects; (iv) no material adjustment or deficiency relating to such
Taxes has been proposed in writing by any Governmental Authority insofar as it would relate to the activities or income of the
Company or any Subsidiary that has not been fully resolved and paid in full; (v) to the Seller’s Knowledge, there are no pending or
threatened Actions for the assessment or collection of Taxes against the Company or any Subsidiary; (vi) there are no Tax liens on
any assets of the Company or any Subsidiary arising from the failure to pay a Tax which is delinquent; (vii) neither the Seller nor
any Affiliate of the Seller is a party to or maintains any agreement or arrangement that would result, upon or in connection with the
consummation of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement (either alone or in combination with other events or actions),
in the payment by the Company or any Subsidiary of any “excess parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the
Code (without regard to Section 280G(b)(4) of the Code); (viii) the Company and the Subsidiaries have each withheld, collected
and deposited all material Taxes that are required to be withheld, collected and deposited under applicable Law; and (ix) no written
notice has been received from any jurisdiction in which Tax Returns have not been filed by the Company or any Subsidiary to the
effect that the filing of Tax Returns may be required.

(b) (i) Except as set forth in Section 3.19(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, there are no outstanding waivers or
agreements extending the statute of limitations for any
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period with respect to any Tax to which the Company or any Subsidiary may be subject; (ii) no power of attorney that is currently
in force has been granted with respect to any matter relating to Taxes of the Company or any Subsidiary that would have
continuing effect after the Closing Date; (iii) neither the Company nor any of the Subsidiaries is currently the subject of an Action
with respect to Taxes by any Governmental Authority; and (iv) the relevant statute of limitations is closed with respect to all
Income Tax Returns of the Company and the Subsidiaries for all years through December 31, 2009.

(© Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has constituted a “distributing corporation” or “controlled corporation”
(within the meaning of Section 355(a)(1)(A) of the Code) in (i) any distribution of stock qualifying or intended to qualify for tax-
free treatment under Section 355 of the Code within the two-year period ending on the date of this Agreement or (ii) a distribution
that could otherwise constitute part of a “plan” or “series of related transactions” (within the meaning of Section 355(e) of the
Code) in conjunction with any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(d) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary has ever participated in a “listed” transaction within the meaning of
Section 1.6011-4(b) of the Regulations.

(e) Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary (i) is a party to or bound by or has any obligation under any Tax
indemnification, sharing or similar agreement or arrangement, (ii) is, or has been after August 31, 2007, a member of any
consolidated, combined, unitary or similar group for Tax purposes, other than a group of which the Seller is the common parent
corporation, (iii) since August 31, 2007, has entered into a closing agreement pursuant to Section 7121 of the Code or any
predecessor provision or any similar provision of state or local Law or (iv) has any liability for Taxes of any Person as a successor
or transferee arising on or after August 31, 2007.

® Neither the Company nor any Subsidiary will be required to include any material item of income in, or exclude
any material deduction in calculating, taxable income for any taxable period ending after the Closing Date as a result of any
(i) except as set forth in Section 3.19(f) of the Disclosure Schedule, change in method of accounting for a Pre-Closing Period or
the pre-Closing portion of any Straddle Period (other than any change in method of accounting that is required as a result of the
consummation of the transactions contemplated under this Agreement) or (ii) installment sale or open transaction disposition made
outside the ordinary course of business on or prior to the Closing Date.

(8 The Company and each Subsidiary has complied in all material respects with the record maintenance and other
requirements of Section 482 of the Code in connection with related party transactions.

(h) Except for certain representations related to Taxes in Section 3.17, the representations and warranties set forth in
this Section 3.19 are the Seller’s sole and exclusive representations and warranties regarding Tax matters.
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SECTION 3.20 Insurance. Section 3.20 of the Disclosure Schedules sets forth a list, as of the date of this Agreement, of
all material insurance policies maintained by the Company and the Subsidiaries, or with respect to which the Company or any Subsidiary
is a named insured or otherwise the beneficiary of coverage (collectively, the “Insurance Policies”). The Insurance Policies are in full
force and effect on the date of this Agreement and (a) all premiums due on the Insurance Policies (i) have been paid as of the date of this
Agreement and (ii) as of the Closing, have been paid in the ordinary course of business to the extent then due and payable, (b) no notice of
cancellation or termination for failure to pay the required premium has been received with respect thereto within the previous 18 months,
and (c) the Company and the Subsidiaries have complied with all of the terms and conditions of such Insurance Policies, except, in each
case, as is not, and would not reasonably be expected to be, individually or in the aggregate, material to the Company and the Subsidiaries,
taken as a whole. There are no pending or, to the Seller’s Knowledge, threatened material claims with respect to the Company and the
Subsidiaries under such policies.

SECTION 3.21. Affiliate Transactions; Intercompany Arrangements. (a) Except as disclosed in Section 3.13(a)(vii) of the
Disclosure Schedule, or as would not reasonably be expected, individually or in the aggregate, to be material to the Company and the
Subsidiaries taken as a whole, there are no contracts or agreements between or among the Company or any Subsidiary, on the one hand,
and the Seller or any officer, director, or Affiliate (other than the Company or any Subsidiary) of the Seller, or any officer or director of the
Company or any Subsidiary, or any immediate family member of any of the foregoing, on the other hand, except for (i) employment or
compensatory arrangements with directors, officers or stockholders of the Company or the Subsidiaries, (ii) Intercompany Indebtedness

and (iii) Excluded Contracts.

(b) As of the Closing Date, there are no (i) amounts due or payable, or obligations to provide consideration of any nature,
or (ii) amounts receivable, or rights to receive consideration of any nature, under any contract or agreement between or among the
Company or any Subsidiary, on the one hand, and the Seller or any officer, director, or Affiliate (other than the Company and
Subsidiaries) of the Seller, on the other hand.

SECTION 3.22. Brokers. Except for J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, no broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any
brokerage, finder’s or other fee or commission in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Ancillary
Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Seller. The Seller is solely responsible for the fees and expenses of J.P.
Morgan Securities LLC.

SECTION 3.23. Illegal Payments. None of the Company, any of the Subsidiaries, or, to the Seller’s Knowledge, any of
their respective officers, directors or employees, in their capacity as such officers, directors or employees, as applicable, has, in respect of
the Company or any Subsidiary, offered, made, or received on behalf of any of them, any illegal payment or contribution of any kind,
directly or indirectly, including illegal payments, gifts, or gratuities, to any Person (including any official, employee, or agent of any
Governmental Authority or any candidate for any office of any Governmental Authority). To the
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Seller’s Knowledge, there have been no false or fictitious entries made in the books or records of the Company or the Subsidiaries relating
to any payment prohibited by Law, and none of the Company nor any of the Subsidiaries has established or maintained any fund for use in
making any such payments.

SECTION 3.24. No Other Representations and Warranties. Except for the representations and warranties contained in this
Article III (including the related portions of the Disclosure Schedule), the Ancillary Agreement or in any certificate, instrument or
document delivered by or on behalf of the Seller hereunder or thereunder (collectively, the “Seller Representations™), none of the Seller,
the Company and the Subsidiaries or any other Person has made or makes any other express or implied representation or warranty, either
written or oral, on behalf of the Seller, the Company, any Subsidiary or Nova NextGen Solutions, including any representation or warranty
as to the accuracy or completeness of any information regarding the Company and Subsidiaries furnished or made available to the
Purchaser and Parent and their directors, officers, employees, consultants, financial advisors, counsel, accountants and other agents
(including any information, documents or material made available to Parent or the Purchaser in the electronic documentation site
established on behalf of the Seller containing certain due diligence documentation, management presentations or in any other form in
expectation of the transactions contemplated hereby), as to any projections, estimates or budgets pertaining to the Company or any
Subsidiary or as to the future revenue, expenses, expenditures, profitability or success of the Company or any Subsidiary, or any
representation or warranty arising from statute or otherwise in Law. All representations and warranties set forth in this Agreement are
contractual in nature only and subject to the sole and exclusive remedies expressly set forth herein.

ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
OF THE PURCHASER AND PARENT

The Purchaser and Parent, jointly and severally, hereby represent and warrant to the Seller as of the date hereof that:

SECTION 4.01. Organization and Authority of the Purchaser and Parent. Each of the Purchaser and Parent is a
corporation validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation and has all necessary corporate
power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement (to the extent a party thereto), to carry out, as applicable, its
obligations hereunder and thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and delivery
by each of the Purchaser and Parent of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement (to the extent a party thereto), the performance by
each of the Purchaser and Parent of, as applicable, its obligations hereunder and thereunder and the consummation by each of the
Purchaser and Parent of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on
the part of each of the Purchaser and Parent, respectively (including its stockholders, if applicable). This Agreement has been, and upon its
execution the Ancillary Agreement to which

38



the Purchaser is a party shall have been, duly executed and delivered by each of the Purchaser and Parent, as applicable, and (assuming
due authorization, execution and delivery thereof by the Seller) this Agreement constitutes, and upon its execution the Ancillary
Agreement to which the Purchaser is a party shall constitute, legal, valid and binding obligations of each of the Purchaser and Parent, as
applicable, enforceable against the Purchaser and Parent, respectively, in accordance with their respective terms, subject to the effect of
any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency (including all Laws relating to fraudulent transfers), reorganization, moratorium or similar Laws
affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally and subject to the effect of general principles of equity (regardless of whether considered
in a proceeding at Law or in equity).

SECTION 4.02. No Conflict. Assuming, in the case of clauses (b) and (c) below, compliance with the pre-merger
notification and waiting period requirements of the HSR Act and the making and obtaining of all filings, notifications, consents,
approvals, authorizations and other actions referred to in Section 4.03, the execution, delivery and performance by each of the Purchaser
and Parent of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement (to the extent a party thereto) do not and will not (a) violate, conflict with or
result in the breach of any provision of the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of the Purchaser or Parent, (b) conflict with or violate
any Law or Governmental Order applicable to the Purchaser or Parent or any of their respective assets, properties or businesses, or (c)
conflict with, or result in any breach of, constitute a default (or event which with the giving of notice or lapse of time, or both, would
become a default) under, require any consent under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration, suspension,
revocation or cancellation of, any note, bond, mortgage or indenture, contract, agreement, lease, sublease, license, permit, franchise or
other instrument or arrangement to which the Purchaser or Parent is a party, except, in the case of clauses (b) and (c), as would not
adversely affect the ability of the Purchaser or Parent to carry out its obligations under, and to consummate the transactions contemplated
by, this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreement.

SECTION 4.03. Governmental Consents and Approvals. The execution, delivery and performance by each of the
Purchaser and Parent of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement to which the Purchaser is a party do not and will not require any
consent, approval, authorization or other order of, action by, filing with, or notification to any Governmental Authority, except (a) the pre-
merger notification and waiting period requirements of the HSR Act and (b) the filing of the FCC/State PUC Filings, and receipt of any
required FCC/State PUC Approvals.

SECTION 4.04. Communications Licenses Qualifications. Other than obtaining the FCC/State PUC Approvals, each of
Parent and the Purchaser is legally, financially and otherwise qualified under applicable Law (as in effect on the date hereof) to, as of the
Closing Date, acquire control of the Company Communications Licenses and all assets and facilities authorized by the Company
Communications Licenses. There are no facts known to Parent or the Purchaser, after due inquiry, that would disqualify either as the
transferee of the Company Communications Licenses, and no waiver or exemption, whether temporary or permanent, of applicable Laws
is necessary for the FCC/State PUC Approvals to be obtained.
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Parent and the Purchaser have no reason to believe, after due inquiry, that the FCC/State PUC Filings might be challenged or might not be
granted by the FCC or the applicable State PUC in the ordinary course due to any fact or circumstance relating to Parent or the Purchaser
or any of their Affiliates or any of their respective officers, directors, shareholders, members or partners.

SECTION 4.05. Investment Purpose. The Purchaser is acquiring the Shares solely for the purpose of investment and not
with a view to, or for offer or sale in connection with, any distribution thereof. The Purchaser acknowledges that the Shares are not
registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws, and that the Shares may not be transferred or sold except pursuant to the
registration provisions of the Securities Act or pursuant to an applicable exemption therefrom and subject to state securities laws and
regulations, as applicable. The Purchaser is able to bear the economic risk of holding the Shares for an indefinite period, and has sufficient
knowledge and experience in financial and business matters so as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risk of its investment.

SECTION 4.06. Financing. The Purchaser (a) has access to sufficient funds (including through availability of Parent or
its Affiliates under their respective credit or similar debt facilities), and (b) on the Closing Date, will have sufficient cash in immediately
available funds, to pay the Purchase Price, to consummate all of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement upon the terms
contemplated hereby and to pay all related fees and expenses associated therewith and to satisfy all of its other obligations under this
Agreement.

SECTION 4.07. Litigation. No Action by or against the Purchaser or Parent is pending or, to the knowledge of the
Purchaser and Parent, threatened, which could affect the legality, validity or enforceability of this Agreement, the Ancillary Agreement or
the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

SECTION 4.08. Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any brokerage, finder’s or other fee or
commission in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Parent
or the Purchaser.

SECTION 4.09. Solvency. Neither Parent nor the Purchaser is entering into this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby with the actual intent to hinder, delay or defraud either present or future creditors. After giving effect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, at and immediately after the Closing, each of Parent, the Purchaser and their respective
subsidiaries (a) will be solvent (in that (i) the fair value of such Person’s assets will not be less than the sum of such Person’s debts and (ii)
the present fair saleable value of such Person’s assets will not be less than the amount required to pay such Person’s probable liability on
such Person’s existing debts as they mature or become due), (b) will not have unreasonably small capital with which to engage in such
Person’s business and (c) will not have incurred debts beyond such Person’s ability to pay as they mature or become due.

SECTION 4.10. Independent Investigation. Parent and the Purchaser have conducted their own independent
investigation, review and analysis of the business, results of operations, financial condition and assets of the Company and the
Subsidiaries. Each of Parent
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and the Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that in making its decision to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby, it has relied solely upon its own investigation and the Seller Representations. Each of Parent and the Purchaser
acknowledges and agrees that, except for the Seller Representations, (a) none of the Seller, the Company and the Subsidiaries or any other
Person is making or has made any other express or implied representation or warranty, either written or oral, on behalf of the Seller, Nova
NextGen Solutions or the Company or any Subsidiary, including any representation or warranty as to the Business or the accuracy or
completeness of any information regarding the Company and the Subsidiaries furnished or made available to the Purchaser and Parent and
their directors, officers, employees, consultants, financial advisors, counsel, accountants and other agents (including any information,
documents or material made available to Parent or the Purchaser in the electronic documentation site established on behalf of the Seller
containing certain due diligence documentation, management presentations or in any other form in expectation of the transactions
contemplated hereby), as to any projections, estimates or budgets pertaining to the Company or any Subsidiary or as to the future revenue,
expenses, expenditures, profitability or success of the Company or any Subsidiary, or any representation or warranty arising from statute
or otherwise in Law and (b) it has not been induced by and is not relying upon any other representations or warranties that may have been
made by any Person, and acknowledges and agrees that the Seller has specifically disclaimed and does hereby specifically disclaim any
such other representation or warranty made by any Person. The Purchaser is acquiring the Company subject only to the specific Seller
Representations, as further limited by the specifically bargained-for exclusive remedies as set forth in Article IX.

ARTICLE V
ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS
SECTION 5.01. Conduct of Business. The Seller covenants and agrees that:

(a) Except as described in Section 5.01(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, as otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement (including as permitted by Section 5.01(b) and as contemplated by Section 5.18) or as consented to in writing by Parent
(which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), from the date hereof until the earlier of the time of the
Closing and the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, it will cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to conduct
their business in the ordinary course and consistent with past practice, including with respect to capital expenditures, accounts
payable and accounts receivable and the management of the working capital and the deferred or unearned revenue of the Company
and the Subsidiaries. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as described in Section 5.01(a) of the Disclosure
Schedule, as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement (including as permitted by Section 5.01(b)) or as consented to in
writing by Parent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), from the date hereof until the earlier
of the time of the Closing and the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, the Seller shall cause the Company and
each Subsidiary to (i) use their reasonable efforts to (A) preserve intact their business organizations and
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the business organization of their Business in the ordinary course and consistent with past practice, (B) keep available to the
Purchaser the current services of the present senior employees of the Company and each Subsidiary in the ordinary course and
consistent with past practice (other than any resignation or any termination for cause of any such employee), (C) maintain all of the
Assets in good operating condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, (D) comply in all material respects with, and conduct the
Business in compliance in all material respects with, all applicable Laws, (E) continue in full force and effect without material
modification all existing policies or binders of insurance currently maintained in respect of the Company and each Subsidiary and
their Business, and (F) preserve their current relationships with their customers, suppliers and other Persons with which they have
had significant business relationships; (ii) exercise any rights of renewal pursuant to the terms of any of the leases or subleases set
forth in Section 3.15(b) of the Disclosure Schedule which by their terms would otherwise expire; (iii) incur and fund capital
expenditures in respect of the Business in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice; and (iv) not engage in
any practice, take any action, fail to take any action or enter into any transaction which would reasonably be expected to cause the
conditions in Section 8.02(a) or Section 8.02(f) to fail to be satisfied or result in a material breach of any covenant made by the
Seller in this Agreement.

(b) Except as described in Section 5.01(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, as otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement (including as contemplated by Section 5.18) or as consented to in writing by Parent (which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), from the date hereof until the earlier of the time of the Closing and the
termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, the Seller shall cause the Company and each of the Subsidiaries not to:

()] declare or pay any dividend or distribution on the Shares (other than any such dividend or distribution in
cash or cash equivalents), or redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of the Capital Stock of the Company (other than redemptions
from employees in connection with a termination of service as required by a Plan in effect as of the date hereof);

(ii) amend its Organizational Documents;
(iii) effect any liquidation or dissolution;
@iv) other than issuances or sales by any Subsidiary to the Company or to another Subsidiary, subdivide,

reclassify, recapitalize, split, combine, exchange, issue or sell any of the Capital Stock of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries
or any securities convertible into any such Capital Stock, or any options, warrants or other rights to purchase any such Capital
Stock;

) create or permit or allow to exist any Encumbrance on the Shares, other than Permitted Encumbrances on
the Shares existing as of the date hereof in connection
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with the Seller Credit Facility, which Encumbrances shall be released at or prior to the Closing;

(vi) other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice, (A) amend or modify in
any material respect, or terminate (other than a termination in accordance with its terms), any Material Contract or (B) enter into
any agreement or arrangement that, if entered into prior to the date hereof, would have been a Material Contract;

(vii) directly or indirectly acquire by merging or consolidating with, or agreeing to merge or consolidate
with, or purchase substantially all the assets of, or otherwise acquire, any corporation, partnership, firm, limited liability company,
association, joint venture, or other business organization or entity or any interest therein;

(viii) other than (A) with respect to Intercompany Indebtedness or (B) in the ordinary course of business and
consistent with past practice, make any loan, advance, or capital contribution to, or any investment in, any Person other than the
Company or any of the Subsidiaries;

(ix) other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice (including with respect to
obsolete, damaged or surplus equipment), sell, assign, license, lease, sublease, grant an indefeasible right to use, transfer,
mortgage, pledge, or otherwise grant any Encumbrance (other than Permitted Encumbrances) on or dispose of any of its assets or
properties (including Intellectual Property), except for assets or properties which, individually or in the aggregate, have a fair
market value of less than $500,000;

x) other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice or as permitted by clause
(xviii) below, acquire, whether in one transaction or a series of related transactions, any assets or properties, except for assets or
properties which have an aggregate purchase price of less than $10 million for a single transaction or $10 million in the aggregate;

(xi) change its fiscal year, revalue any of its material assets or, other than as required by GAAP or by
changes in GAAP, make any change in its accounting principles or practices;

(xii) other than as required by applicable Law, (A) file any amended material Tax Return, (B) make or
change any material Tax election, (C) settle or compromise any Action, proposed adjustment or Claim relating to a material
amount of Taxes, or (D) change any Tax accounting method;

(xiii) other than in the ordinary course of business or with respect to Actions instituted by the Company or
any of the Subsidiaries or to enforce the provisions of this Agreement, institute or settle any Action or knowingly waive or release
any rights or claims (A) for amounts which, individually or in the aggregate, exceed $1 million (net of any amounts covered under
the Seller’s or the Company’s or any of the Subsidiaries’ insurance policies, other than self-insurance), or (B) where the settlement,
waiver, or release involves
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injunctive or equitable relief against the Company or any of the Subsidiaries (other than any immaterial injunctive or equitable
relief that is merely incidental to a primary obligation for monetary damages);

(xiv) other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice or as expressly provided
by this Agreement, amend or modify in any material respect, or terminate, any of the Required Permits held by it as of the date
hereof;

(xv) other than as required by applicable Law, this Agreement, or the terms of any written agreement or Plan
in effect as of the date hereof, (A) increase in any material manner the compensation or benefits of, or enter into any new bonus,
incentive, employee benefit, severance, or termination agreement or arrangement with, any of its employees, (B) take any action to
accelerate the time of payment or vesting of any compensation or benefits of any employee of the Company or the Subsidiaries
under any Plan maintained by the Company or any Subsidiary, (C) establish, adopt, enter into, modify, amend or terminate any
Company Plan or collective bargaining or other labor agreement or arrangement applicable to any persons employed by the
Company or any Subsidiary, or (D) grant to any employee of the Company or the Subsidiaries any increase in severance, change in
control, or termination pay;

(xvi) (A) transfer any individual who, as of the date of this Agreement, does not devote a majority of his or
her working time to performing services on behalf of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to a position in which such individual
will be considered an employee of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries as of the Closing Date, or (B) transfer any individual
who, as of the date of this Agreement, devotes a majority of his or her working time to performing services on behalf of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries to a position in which such individual will not be considered an employee of the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries as of the Closing Date;

(xvii) directly or indirectly incur any Indebtedness, other than in connection with (A) any guarantees by the
Company or the Subsidiaries in respect of borrowings and other obligations under the Seller Credit Facility, which guarantees shall
in each case be released at or prior to the Closing in accordance with Section 5.10, (B) any letters of credit issued pursuant to the
Seller Credit Facility on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary after the date hereof, or (C) any obligations under the Seller
Surety Bond Facility, which obligations described in clauses (B) and (C) in respect of letters of credit or surety bonds issued on
behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary as principal after the date hereof shall in each case (x) be incurred in the ordinary course
of business and consistent with past practice and (y) be released at or prior to the Closing, in each case of clauses (x) and (y), in
accordance with Section 5.10;

(xviii) other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice, make any capital
expenditure or incur any obligations or liabilities in connection therewith;
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(xix) engage, in any material respect, in (A) any practice which would reasonably be expected to have the
effect of accelerating to pre-Closing periods collections of receivables or revenue that would otherwise be expected (in the
ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice) to be made in post-Closing periods, or (B) any practice which would
reasonably be expected to have the effect of postponing to post-Closing periods payments by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries that would otherwise be expected (in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice) to be made in
pre-Closing periods;

(xx) enter into any written agreement or arrangement between the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, on
the one hand, and any Affiliate of the Seller or the Company (other than the Company or the Subsidiaries), or any officer or
director of the Seller, the Company or any Subsidiary, on the other hand, other than (A) in respect of Intercompany Indebtedness or
(B) any Excluded Contract;

(xxi) materially change the credit or risk policies used by the Company and the Subsidiaries in the conduct of
the Business; or

(xxii) agree or commit to do any of the foregoing.
SECTION 5.02. Access to Information.

(a) From the date of this Agreement until the earlier of the time of the Closing and the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Article X, upon reasonable notice, the Seller shall cause each of its officers, employees, agents, representatives,
accountants and counsel, and shall cause the Company and the Subsidiaries and each of the Company’s and the Subsidiaries’
officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives, accountants and counsel to: (i) afford the officers, employees, agents,
accountants, counsel, financing sources and representatives of Parent and the Purchaser reasonable access, during normal business
hours, under reasonable circumstances and at mutually agreed locations, to the offices, properties, plants, other facilities, books
and records of the Company and each Subsidiary and to those officers, employees, agents, accountants and counsel of any of the
Seller, the Company or the Subsidiaries who have knowledge relating to any of the Company or the Subsidiaries or their Business
and (ii) furnish to the officers, employees, agents, accountants, counsel, financing sources and representatives of Parent and the
Purchaser such additional financial and operating data and other information (to the extent in the possession of the Seller or the
Company or a Subsidiary) regarding the assets, properties, liabilities and goodwill of the Company, the Subsidiaries and their
Business (or legible copies thereof) as Parent and the Purchaser may from time to time reasonably request. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Seller shall not be required to provide any such access or disclose any such
information to the Purchaser or Parent or any such other person if such disclosure would, in the reasonable judgment of the Seller
based on advice of outside counsel, (A) jeopardize any attorney-client or other legal privilege or (B) create any undue risk of
violating any applicable Law, including antitrust Laws. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seller shall use reasonable efforts to
make reasonable and appropriate substitute disclosure
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arrangements which would allow it to disclose to Parent and the Purchaser information of the types described in clauses (A) and
(B) above without waiving any legal privilege or creating any undue risk of violating any applicable Law, as applicable. Without
limitation of Section 5.01, for the avoidance of doubt, (x) nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to give to Parent
or the Purchaser, directly or indirectly, any rights to control or direct the operations of the Company or any Subsidiary prior to the
Closing Date, and (y) prior to the Closing Date, the Seller shall exercise, consistent with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, complete control and supervision of the operations of the Company and the Subsidiaries. Parent and the Purchaser
hereby agree that they are not authorized to and shall not (and shall not permit any of their Affiliates or any of their respective
employees, officers, counsel, accountants, consultants, financing sources or other representatives or agents to) contact any
competitor, supplier, distributor, or customer of the Company, any Subsidiary or Nova NextGen Solutions with respect to this
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby prior to the Closing without the prior written consent of the Seller and,
if the Seller so elects, only in the presence of an agent or representative specified by the Seller.

(b) In order to facilitate the resolution of any claims made against or incurred by the Seller or its Affiliates in respect
of the Company or the Subsidiaries prior to the Closing, in respect of Nova NextGen Solutions or for any other reasonable
purpose, including the Seller’s SEC reporting obligations, for a period of seven years after the Closing Date, the Purchaser shall (i)
retain the books and records relating to the Company, the Subsidiaries, their Business and their operations (and, to the extent not
retained by the Seller, and in the possession of the Company or the Subsidiaries, any books and records relating to Nova NextGen
Solutions and its business and operations) relating to periods prior to the Closing in a manner reasonably consistent with the prior
practice of the Company and the Subsidiaries and (ii) upon reasonable notice, afford the officers, employees, agents and
representatives of the Seller reasonable access (including the right to make, at the Seller’s expense, photocopies), during normal
business hours, under reasonable circumstances and at mutually agreed locations, to such books and records. After the Closing, the
Seller may, upon reasonable notice to Parent, during regular business hours, contact the Company and the Subsidiaries directly to
request information as may reasonably be required to resolve any matter related to Nova NextGen Solutions; provided that such
requests do not unreasonably interfere with the normal operations of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

(© In order to facilitate the resolution of any claims made against or incurred by Parent, the Purchaser, the Company
or any Subsidiary after the Closing or for any other reasonable purpose, for a period of seven years following the Closing Date, the
Seller shall (i) retain the books and records of the Seller which relate to the Company, the Subsidiaries, their Business and their
operations or to Nova NextGen Solutions and its operations for periods prior to the Closing and which shall not otherwise have
been delivered to Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or any Subsidiary and (ii) upon reasonable notice, afford the officers,
employees, agents and representatives of Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or a Subsidiary reasonable access (including the right
to
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make photocopies, at the expense of Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or such Subsidiary, as applicable), during normal business
hours, under reasonable circumstances and at mutually agreed locations, to such books and records.

(d) From the date of this Agreement until the earlier of the time of the Closing and the termination of this Agreement
pursuant to Article X, as promptly as reasonably practicable, and, in any event, within 15 Business Days, after the end of each
calendar month, the Seller shall deliver (or shall cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to deliver) to Parent and the Purchaser
consolidated financial statements for the Company and the Subsidiaries for such calendar month in form consistent with the
Financial Statements; provided that such obligation does not unreasonably interfere with the normal operations of the Company
and the Subsidiaries.

(e) Following the Closing, Parent and the Purchaser will, and will cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to, use
reasonable efforts to ensure that the reporting timelines and procedures, including the delivery of all applicable financial
information to the Seller, adhered to by the Company and the Subsidiaries prior to the Closing and as required by the Seller as part
of its monthly closing process are complied with in all material respects for the Seller’s reporting period that includes the Closing
Date. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) Parent and the Purchaser will cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to submit to the Seller
a Hyperion trial balance and an Essbase work-in-process file and will use reasonable efforts to cause the Company and the
Subsidiaries to submit to the Seller a monthly representations letter and management questionnaire substantially similar in form
and content as the files and materials previously submitted by the Company and the Subsidiaries and (ii) after the Closing, the
Seller and its auditors may, upon reasonable notice to Parent, during regular business hours, contact the Company and the
Subsidiaries directly to request financial and other information as may reasonably be required to satisfy applicable auditor requests
or to comply with the Seller’s standard closing procedures or internal controls function as required for the period ending on the
fiscal month-end that includes the Closing Date as contemplated by this Section 5.02; provided that such requests do not
unreasonably interfere with the normal operations of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

SECTION 5.03. Confidentiality. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that (i) the Non-Disclosure Agreement

remains in full force and effect and (ii) the Non-Disclosure Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force and effect from and after
the Closing. From and after the Closing Date until (except with respect to trade secrets) the date that is three years after the Closing Date,
the Seller shall, and shall cause its agents, representatives, Affiliates, employees, officers and directors to: (a) except as provided in clause
(c) below, treat and hold as confidential (and not disclose or provide access to any Person to) all information relating to trade secrets,
processes, Owned Intellectual Property (including patent applications), product development, price, customer and supplier lists, pricing
and marketing plans, policies and strategies, details of client and consultant contracts, operations methods, product development
techniques, business acquisition plans, new personnel acquisition plans and all other confidential or proprietary information with respect
to the Company and each Subsidiary
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and their Business; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seller, its Affiliates and their respective agents,
representatives, employees, officers and directors shall be free to use any information retained in their unaided memory (including general
ideas, concepts, know-how or techniques contained therein) other than where such use is expressly in violation of another provision of this
Agreement, provided that they shall maintain the confidentiality of the information subject to the foregoing confidentiality restrictions and
the foregoing shall not be deemed to grant to the Seller, their Affiliates or any of their respective agents, representatives, employees,
officers or directors a license, (b) in the event that the Seller or any such agent, representative, Affiliate, employee, officer or director
becomes legally compelled to disclose any such information, provide Parent with prompt written notice of such requirement so that
Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or a Subsidiary may seek a protective order or other remedy or waive compliance with this Section
5.03, (c) in the event that such protective order or other remedy is not timely obtained, or Parent waives compliance with this Section 5.03,
furnish only that portion of such confidential information which is legally required to be provided and exercise its reasonable efforts to
obtain assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded such information, and (d) promptly furnish (prior to, at, or as soon as
practicable following, the Closing) to the Company, Parent or the Purchaser any and all copies (in whatever form or medium) of all such
confidential information then in the possession of the Seller or any of its agents, representatives, Affiliates, employees, officers or
directors or, except as otherwise required or permitted by Section 5.02(c) or to the extent necessary to comply with any applicable Laws,
rules or regulations, destroy any and all additional copies then in the possession of the Seller or any of its agents, representatives,
Affiliates, employees, officers or directors of such information and of any analyses, compilations, studies or other documents prepared, in
whole or in part, on the basis thereof; provided, however, that this sentence shall not apply to any information that (A) at the time of
disclosure, is available publicly and was not disclosed in breach of this Agreement or the Non-Disclosure Agreement by the Seller, its
agents, representatives, Affiliates, employees, officers or directors or (B) is lawfully obtained or developed by the Seller, any of its
Affiliates or any of their respective agents, representatives, employees, officers or directors from and after the Closing from sources which
are not legally or contractually prohibited from disclosing such information; and provided further that, with respect to Intellectual
Property, specific detailed information shall not be deemed to be within the foregoing exception (A) merely because a principle of
operation is embraced in general disclosures in the public domain. In addition, with respect to Intellectual Property, any combination of
features shall not be deemed to be within the foregoing exception (A) merely because the individual features are in the public domain
unless the combination itself and its principle of operation are in the public domain.

SECTION 5.04. Regulatory and Other Authorizations; Notices and Consents.

(a) Each of Parent, the Purchaser and the Seller shall, and the Seller shall cause each of the Company and the
Subsidiaries to, use its reasonable efforts to obtain (or enable the Company and the Subsidiaries to obtain) all authorizations,
consents, orders, waivers and approvals under the HSR Act, all FCC/State PUC Approvals and all other authorizations, consents,
orders, waivers and approvals of Governmental Authorities and
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officials that may be or become necessary for the execution and delivery of, and the performance of all obligations pursuant to, and
the consummation of all transactions contemplated by, this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreement (the “Governmental Filings”),
and each party will cooperate fully with the other parties in promptly seeking to obtain all such authorizations, consents, orders,
waivers and approvals. Each of Parent, the Purchaser and the Seller also shall (including, with respect to the Seller, by causing the
Company and the Subsidiaries to) file with the appropriate Governmental Authorities in a timely manner all notices required by
applicable Law in connection with this Agreement, the Ancillary Agreement, and the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby. Subject to Section 5.04(c) with respect to FCC/State PUC Filings, each party hereto shall pay all filing fees or other
similar amounts required to be paid by it in connection with the submission of any Governmental Filing by such party.

(b) In furtherance and not in limitation of Section 5.04(a), Parent and the Seller shall make an appropriate filing of a
Notification and Reporting Form pursuant to the HSR Act as promptly as reasonably practicable and, in any event, within 15
Business Days after the date of this Agreement. Each such party shall supply as promptly as reasonably practicable to the
appropriate Governmental Authorities any additional information and documentary material that may be requested pursuant to the
HSR Act. The Purchaser and Parent shall use reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, any and all steps and to make, or
cause to be made, any and all undertakings necessary to avoid or eliminate each and every impediment under any applicable
federal or state antitrust Law that may be asserted by any Governmental Authority with respect to the acquisition of the Shares so
as to enable the Closing Date to occur as promptly as practicable and, in any event, no later than the End Date; provided, however,
that the Purchaser and Parent shall not be required to take any action that would, alone or in conjunction with any other actions
required in connection with any HSR Act, FCC or State PUC review, (i) have (A) a Material Adverse Effect or (B) a material
adverse effect on the business, assets, results of operations or financial condition of Parent and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole,
(ii) involve the sale, divestiture, licensing, holding separate, or other disposition (and whether through the establishment of a trust
or otherwise) of any assets, operations, businesses, divisions, or customers of Parent or any of its subsidiaries or (iii) prevent the
Purchaser and the Company and Subsidiaries from operating following the Closing in any state in which they currently operate.
The Seller, Parent, the Purchaser and their respective Affiliates shall not extend any waiting period or comparable period under the
HSR Act or enter into any agreement with any Governmental Authority not to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby,
except with the prior written consent of the other parties hereto (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld).

(©) In furtherance and not in limitation of Section 5.04(a), the parties shall prepare and file the FCC/State PUC
Filings as promptly as reasonably practicable and, in any event, within 30 calendar days after the date of this Agreement, and any
other necessary or appropriate instruments or documents (in each case, in a form mutually approved by the parties, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
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or delayed). Thereafter, the parties shall prosecute the applicable FCC/State PUC Filings with all reasonable diligence to obtain the
requisite FCC/State PUC Approvals. Each party shall supply as promptly as reasonably practicable to the FCC or the appropriate
State PUC any additional information and documentary material that may be requested by such Governmental Authority in
connection with the FCC/State PUC Filings. Each party shall be solely responsible to pay its expenses with respect to the
preparation, filing and prosecution of the FCC/State PUC Filings, except that Parent shall pay all of the filing fees in connection
with the FCC/State PUC Filings or reimburse the Seller for its payment of any such fees as Reimbursable Expenses. The parties
shall cooperate to oppose any petitions to deny or other objections filed with respect to the FCC/State PUC Filings to the extent
such petition or objection relates to such party. Each party shall use reasonable efforts not to (i) take any action that would, or (ii)
fail to take any action the failure of which to take would, reasonably be expected to have the effect of materially delaying the
receipt of the FCC/State PUC Approvals. From the date of this Agreement until the earlier of the time of the Closing and the
termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, Parent and the Purchaser shall maintain the qualifications necessary to hold
the Company Communications Licenses.

(d) Each party to this Agreement shall promptly notify the other party of any communication it or any of its
Affiliates receives from any Governmental Authority relating to the matters that are the subject of this Section 5.04 and permit the
other party to review in advance (and shall consider any comments made by the reviewing party in relation to) any proposed
communication by such party to any Governmental Authority relating to such matters. None of the parties to this Agreement shall
agree to participate in any substantive meeting, telephone call or discussion with any Governmental Authority in respect of any
submissions, filings, investigations, or any other inquiry relating to such matters unless it consults with the other party in advance
and, to the extent permitted by such Governmental Authority, gives the other party (or their external legal counsel in order to
address any concerns relating to confidential or competitively sensitive information) the opportunity to attend and participate at
such meeting, telephone call or discussion. The parties to this Agreement shall, and shall cause their respective Affiliates to,
provide each other with copies of all material correspondence, filings or communications between them or any of their respective
representatives, on the one hand, and any Governmental Authority or members of its staff, on the other hand, with respect to this
Agreement and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, in each case to the extent reasonably requested by the other party
hereto; provided, however, that materials may be redacted (i) to remove references concerning the valuation of the Company and
the Subsidiaries; (ii) as necessary to comply with contractual arrangements or applicable Laws; and (iii) as necessary to address
reasonable attorney-client or other privilege or confidentiality concerns.

(e) The Seller shall, or shall cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to, give promptly such notices to third parties
and use its or their reasonable efforts to obtain such third party consents and estoppel certificates necessary or desirable in
connection with
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the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including all of the third party consents set forth on Section 3.05 of the
Disclosure Schedule.

) Parent and the Purchaser shall cooperate and use reasonable efforts to assist the Seller in giving such notices and
obtaining such consents and estoppel certificates described in clause (e) above; provided, however, that neither Parent nor the
Purchaser shall have any obligation to give any guarantee or other consideration of any nature in connection with any such notice,
consent or estoppel certificate or to consent to any change in the terms of any agreement or arrangement which Parent or the
Purchaser in their sole discretion may deem materially adverse to the interests of Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or any
Subsidiary or their Business.

(g) The Seller, Parent and the Purchaser agree that, in the event that any consent, approval or authorization necessary
or desirable to preserve for the Company or any Subsidiary or their Business any right or benefit under any lease, license, contract,
commitment or other agreement or arrangement to which the Company or any Subsidiary is a party (including any Material
Contract) or is otherwise entitled to the benefit of is not obtained prior to the Closing, the Seller will, subsequent to the Closing,
cooperate with Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or such Subsidiary in attempting to obtain such consent, approval or
authorization as promptly thereafter as practicable. If such consent, approval or authorization cannot be obtained, the Seller shall
use its reasonable efforts to provide the Purchaser or the Company or such Subsidiary, as the case may be, with the rights and
benefits of the affected lease, license, contract, commitment or other agreement or arrangement for the term of such lease, license,
contract or other agreement or arrangement, and, if the Seller provides such rights and benefits, the Company or such Subsidiary,
as the case may be, shall assume the obligations and burdens thereunder.

SECTION 5.05. Intellectual Property.

(a) The Purchaser and Parent agree that, with respect to the Licensed Seller Intellectual Property that is set forth in
Section 3.14(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, Parent and the Purchaser shall either (i) on or prior to the Closing Date, obtain directly
from the third-party licensor of such Licensed Seller Intellectual Property any applicable license rights for the Company and the
Subsidiaries to use such Licensed Seller Intellectual Property from and after the Closing Date, or (ii) cause the Company and the
Subsidiaries to no longer use such Licensed Seller Intellectual Property from and after the Closing Date pursuant to the Seller’s or
its Affiliates’ license rights with respect thereto.

(b) Parent and the Purchaser agree that (i) except for (A) the trademarks constituting Owned Intellectual Property, if
any, and (B) during the Transition Period, the Seller Marks (as defined below), Parent and the Purchaser have, and after the
Closing will have, no right, title, interest, license or any other right whatsoever in or to the trademarks of the Seller or any of its
Affiliates, including (x) trademarks related to any business of the Seller or any of its Affiliates other than the Business of the
Company and Subsidiaries, (y) the name “Quanta” or “InfraSource”, or any service marks, trademarks, trade names, identifying
symbols, logos, emblems, signs or insignia related thereto or
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containing or comprising the foregoing and (z) any derivations, translations, modifications or alterations thereof, and any word,
name or mark confusingly similar thereto (collectively, the “Seller Marks”); provided that, during the Transition Period, Parent and
the Purchaser shall have the right to use the Seller Marks solely to the extent of any such Seller Marks affixed or otherwise
displayed on any materials acquired by Parent and the Purchaser or any of their Affiliates in the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, prior to the removal thereof in accordance with the following sentence, (ii) after the end of the Transition Period,
Parent and the Purchaser will have no right to use the Seller Marks (including on any posters, pamphlets, stickers, training
material, templates, models, instructions, audio or visual recordings, guidelines, printed and electronic materials, and other works
of authorship) and (iii) neither Parent, the Purchaser nor any of their respective Affiliates will hold itself out as having any
affiliation with the Seller or any of its Affiliates. As promptly as practicable, but in no event later than six months after the Closing
Date, Parent and the Purchaser will remove, strike over or otherwise obliterate all Seller Marks from all materials owned by Parent
and the Purchaser or any of their Affiliates (including any vehicles, business cards, schedules, stationery, packaging materials,
displays, signs, promotional materials, manuals, forms, computer software, technical guidelines, standards and procedures). For
purposes of this Section 5.05, “Transition Period” means (1) for letterhead, the period from and after the Closing Date to the date
that is one Business Day after the Closing Date, (2) for vehicles, the period from and after the Closing Date to the date that is 30
days after the Closing Date and (3) for materials other than letterhead and vehicles, the period from and after the Closing Date to
the earlier of (I) the date that is six months after the Closing Date and (II) the date on which Parent and the Purchaser shall have
completed the removal of all Seller Marks from materials owned by Parent and the Purchaser or any of their Affiliates in
accordance with the immediately preceding sentence. Further, during the Transition Period, (x) any and all goodwill generated by
use of the Seller Marks by Parent and the Purchaser shall inure to the benefit of the Seller and (y) all uses of the Seller Mark by
Parent or the Purchaser shall be only with respect to goods and services of a level of quality equal to or greater than the quality of
goods and services with respect to which the Seller Marks were used in the Seller’s businesses (other than the Business) prior to
the Closing.

(© As promptly as practicable following the Closing, but in no event later than six months after the Closing Date,
Parent and the Purchaser shall cause the Company and each Subsidiary to, as applicable, change its corporate or company name to
remove any reference to the name “Quanta” or “InfraSource” or any other Retained Name or Seller Mark used by the Seller or any
of its Affiliates and file in all jurisdictions in which the Company or such Subsidiary is qualified to do business all documents
necessary to reflect such change of name or to terminate its qualification in such jurisdiction under such name.
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SECTION 5.06. Releases.

(a) From and after the Closing, the Seller, on behalf of itself and each of its Affiliates (excluding the Company and
the Subsidiaries), hereby releases and forever discharges the Company and the Subsidiaries, and each of their respective
individual, joint or mutual, past and present officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents, successors and assigns, in
their respective capacities as such (collectively, the “Company Releasees™), from any and all Claims, demands, actions,
obligations, contracts, agreements, debts and Liabilities whatsoever, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, both
at Law and in equity, which the Seller or any of its Affiliates (other than the Company and the Subsidiaries) now has, have ever
had or may hereafter have against the respective Company Releasees by virtue of, or in any manner related to, any actions or
inactions with respect to the Company, the Subsidiaries or the operation of their Business arising prior to or contemporaneously
with the Closing or on account of or arising out of any such matter, cause or event occurring contemporaneously with or prior to
the Closing, whether or not relating to claims pending on, or asserted after, the Closing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in
this Section 5.06(a) shall in any way limit or otherwise restrict any rights the Seller or any of its Affiliates may have against the
Purchaser or Parent or any of their respective Affiliates arising out of, relating to or in connection with this Agreement or the
Ancillary Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby.

(b) From and after the Closing, the Purchaser, on behalf of itself and the Company and each of the Subsidiaries,
hereby releases and forever discharges the Seller and its Affiliates (and, with respect to the Seller, its stockholders), and each of
their respective individual, joint or mutual, past and present officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents, successors
and assigns in their respective capacities as such (collectively, the “Seller Releasees”) from any and all Claims, demands, actions,
obligations, contracts, agreements, debts and Liabilities whatsoever, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, both
at Law and in equity, which any of the Purchaser, the Company or any of the Subsidiaries now has, have ever had or may hereafter
have against the respective Seller Releasees by virtue of, or in any manner related to, any actions or inactions with respect to the
Company, the Subsidiaries or the operation of their Business arising prior to or contemporaneously with the Closing or on account
of or arising out of any such matter, cause or event occurring contemporaneously with or prior to the Closing, whether or not
relating to claims pending on, or asserted after, the Closing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 5.06(b) shall in
any way limit or otherwise restrict any rights Parent, the Purchaser or any of their Affiliates may have against the Seller or its
Affiliates arising out of, relating to or in connection with this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby.

SECTION 5.07. Intercompany Arrangements. At or prior to the Closing, the Seller shall cause any contract or agreement
described in clause (i) of the definition of “Excluded Contract” to be terminated or otherwise amended or modified to exclude the
Company and the
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Subsidiaries as a party thereto (with respect to any such contracts or agreements that constitute Credit Support Instruments, to the extent
that Parent and the Purchaser have satisfied their obligations pursuant to Section 5.10 with respect thereto and, to such extent, in
accordance with Section 5.10). Except as provided otherwise by Section 5.10, the Seller shall bear all costs and expenses incurred in
connection with any such termination, amendment or modification described in the immediately preceding sentence. The Intercompany
Indebtedness described in clause (ii) of the definition of Intercompany Indebtedness will be contributed to equity or forgiven at or prior to
the Closing.

SECTION 5.08. Transition Services. Following the Closing, the Seller shall provide, or cause to be provided, to the
Company and the Subsidiaries certain services that are currently provided by the Seller and its Affiliates to their Business, all as more
fully set forth in a transition services agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Transition Services
Agreement”) to be entered into by the Seller and the Purchaser as of the Closing.

SECTION 5.09. Vehicle Leases. At or prior to Closing, (a) Parent and the Purchaser shall (i) cause each Leased Vehicle to
be purchased from the respective lessor of such Leased Vehicle by the Purchaser or one of its Affiliates and (ii) cause each such lessor to
release the Seller and its Affiliates, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Seller, from all obligations with respect to the
Leased Vehicles and (b) the Seller shall cooperate and use reasonable efforts to assist Parent and the Purchaser in purchasing such Leased
Vehicles and obtaining such releases from such lessors.

SECTION 5.10. Release from Credit Support Instruments.

(a) At or prior to the Closing, the Purchaser and Parent shall use reasonable efforts (and the Seller shall cooperate
and use reasonable efforts to assist Parent and the Purchaser) to (i) secure the unconditional release, as of the Closing Date, of the
Seller and its Affiliates (including, if applicable, the Company and Subsidiaries) from the credit support instruments relating to the
Company and the Subsidiaries set forth in Section 5.10(a) of the Disclosure Schedule and any Additional Credit Support
Instruments (collectively, the “Credit Support Instruments”) and the removal of the Company and Subsidiaries as parties to the
Retained Credit Instruments, including effecting such release and removal by entering into the alternative arrangements described
in the following clause (ii), and (ii) enter into alternative arrangements (including guarantees or other credit support) so that Parent
and the Purchaser (or an Affiliate of the Purchaser) or a surety or letter of credit issuer for the benefit of Parent and the Purchaser
shall be solely responsible for the obligations of such Credit Support Instruments in respect of the Company and the Subsidiaries;
provided, however, that in no event shall reasonable efforts require the Purchaser or its Affiliates to (A) agree to change the terms
of any Material Contract to which such credit support applies in any manner that is materially adverse to the Purchaser or any of its
Affiliates (including the Company and the Subsidiaries), (B) agree to any material restriction in the operations of their respective
businesses (including the Business) except for covenants and restrictions that are
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customary in connection with such Credit Support Instruments or such other credit support documentation contemplated by this
Section 5.10 or (C) make any payments or expenditures (other than any payments in respect of and pursuant to the terms of the
replacement parent guarantees, replacement surety bonds or replacement letters of credit obtained on behalf of Parent and its
Affiliates or other credit support required in connection with surety bonds or letters of credit of Parent and its Affiliates, including
the Company and the Subsidiaries at and after the Closing), other than immaterial and de minimis payments or expenditures and
ordinary processing and administrative fees and legal and other professional fees incurred in connection with the alternative
arrangements contemplated by clause (ii) above. All such payments or expenditures incurred in connection with any alternative
Purchaser. To the extent the parties have been unable to obtain the unconditional release of the Seller and its Affiliates from the
Credit Support Instruments and the removal of the Company and Subsidiaries as parties to the Retained Credit Instruments in
accordance with clause (i) above prior to the Closing and the Closing occurs, (x) Parent and the Purchaser shall jointly and
severally indemnify and hold harmless the Seller and its Affiliates from and against any and all Losses relating to the Company or
any Subsidiary in respect of obligations arising from or relating to such Credit Support Instruments and (y) the Purchaser and
Parent shall continue to use reasonable efforts (and the Seller shall cooperate and continue to use reasonable efforts to assist Parent
and the Purchaser) to secure such release of the Seller and its Affiliates from such Credit Support Instruments and the removal of
the Company and Subsidiaries as parties to the Retained Credit Instruments as contemplated by this Section 5.10 as promptly as
reasonably practicable.

(b) At or prior to the Closing, the Seller shall use reasonable efforts (and Parent and the Purchaser shall cooperate
and use reasonable efforts to assist the Seller) to secure the unconditional release, as of the Closing Date, of the Company and the
Subsidiaries from, and the removal, as of the Closing Date, of the Company and the Subsidiaries as parties to, each of (i) the Seller
Credit Facility and any security, pledge or other agreement entered into by the Company or any Subsidiary in connection therewith
and (ii) the Seller Surety Bond Facility and other Surety Credit Documents (as defined in the Seller Surety Bond Facility) other
than the Credit Support Instruments (collectively, the “Retained Credit Instruments”); provided, however, that in no event shall
reasonable efforts require the Seller to make any payments or expenditures, other than immaterial and de minimis payments or
expenditures and ordinary processing and administrative fees and legal and other professional fees. Any such payments or
expenditures incurred by the Seller in connection with securing the release of the Company and the Subsidiaries from the Retained
Credit Instruments shall be borne by the Seller. To the extent the parties have been unable to obtain such release for any Retained
Credit Instrument prior to the Closing and the Closing occurs, (i) the Seller shall indemnify and hold harmless Parent, the
Purchaser and their Affiliates from and against any and all Losses relating to the Seller and its Affiliates (other than the Company
and the Subsidiaries) in respect of obligations arising from or relating to such Retained Credit Instruments of the Seller or any of
its Affiliates (other than the Company and the Subsidiaries) and (ii) the Seller shall
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continue to use reasonable efforts (and Parent and the Purchaser shall cooperate and continue to use reasonable efforts to assist the
Seller) to secure the unconditional release of the Company and the Subsidiaries from such Retained Credit Instruments as promptly
as reasonably practicable.

(© In the event that, after the date of this Agreement and prior to the earlier of the time of the Closing and the
termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, the Seller or its Affiliates shall, to the extent permitted in accordance with
Support Instruments that constitute parent guarantees on behalf of or for the benefit of the Company and the Subsidiaries, the
Seller and its Affiliates shall use reasonable efforts to, to the extent possible, enter into such definitive agreements or other
documentation with respect thereto as shall permit, as of the Closing Date and without any additional payments or expenditures by
the parties hereto, (i) Parent or the Purchaser (or an Affiliate of the Purchaser) to assume or otherwise become solely responsible
for the obligations of such Additional Credit Support Instrument in respect of credit support for the Company and the Subsidiaries
and (ii) Seller and its Affiliates (other than the Company and the Subsidiaries) to be unconditionally released therefrom.

SECTION 5.11. Director and Officer Indemnification and Insurance.

(a) The Purchaser agrees that all rights to indemnification, advancement of expenses and exculpation by the
Company and Subsidiaries now existing in favor of each Person who is now, or has been at any time prior to the date hereof or
who becomes prior to the Closing Date, an officer or director of the Company or any Subsidiary, as provided in the certificate of
incorporation or by-laws, limited liability company agreement or other governing instrument of the Company or such Subsidiary,
as applicable, in each case as in effect on the date of this Agreement, or pursuant to any other agreements in effect on the date
hereof and disclosed in Section 5.11(a) of the Disclosure Schedule, shall survive the Closing and shall continue in full force and
effect in accordance with their respective terms.

(b) Parent and the Purchaser shall either (i) cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to obtain as of the Closing Date
“tail” insurance policies with a claims period of six years from the Closing Date, with aggregate coverage in the amount set forth
in Section 5.11(b) of the Disclosure Schedule, and containing terms and conditions that are not less advantageous to the directors
and officers of the Company and Subsidiaries, as the policies of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Seller
for the benefit of the Company or such Subsidiary as in effect on the date of this Agreement (a correct and complete copy of which
has been made available to Parent and the Purchaser), or (ii) maintain in effect for a period of six years after the Closing Date, for
the benefit of the Company and the Subsidiaries, the policies of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance currently maintained by
Parent or the Purchaser, as applicable, so long as such policies provide at least the same coverage and amounts, and contain terms
and conditions that are not less advantageous to the directors and officers of the
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Company or such Subsidiary, when compared to the insurance maintained by the Seller for the benefit of the Company or such
Subsidiary as in effect on the date of this Agreement, in each case with respect to claims arising out of or relating to events which
occurred on or prior to the Closing Date (including in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement).

(© The obligations of Parent, the Purchaser and the Company and Subsidiaries under this Section 5.11 shall not be
terminated or modified in such a manner as to adversely affect any director or officer to whom this Section 5.11 applies without the
consent of such affected director or officer (it being expressly agreed that the directors and officers to whom this Section 5.11
applies shall be third-party beneficiaries of this Section 5.11, each of whom may enforce the provisions of this Section 5.11).

(d) In the event that Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or any Subsidiary or any of their respective successors or
assigns (i) consolidates with or merges into any other Person and shall not be the continuing or surviving corporation or entity in
such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any Person, then, in either such
case, proper provision shall be made so that the successors and assigns of Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or such Subsidiary,
as the case may be, shall assume all of the obligations set forth in this Section 5.11.

SECTION 5.12. Disclosure Schedule. Inclusion of any item in the Disclosure Schedule: (a) does not represent a
determination by the Seller that such item is material, nor shall it be deemed to establish a standard of materiality now or in the future (it
being the intent that the Seller shall not be penalized for having disclosed more than may be required by the applicable provision of this
Agreement), (b) does not represent a determination by the Seller that such item did not arise in the ordinary course of business and (c)
shall not constitute, or be deemed to be, an admission of liability concerning such item by the Seller. The information disclosed in each
Section of the Disclosure Schedule (i) is intended to qualify the representations and warranties contained in Article III of this Agreement
referencing or corresponding with such Section of the Disclosure Schedule, the covenants contained in this Article V referencing or
corresponding with such Section of the Disclosure Schedule, and the other provisions of this Agreement referencing or corresponding
with such Section of the Disclosure Schedule and (ii) shall not be deemed to expand in any way the scope of any of such representations,
warranties or covenants on the part of the Seller. Information disclosed in any Section of the Disclosure Schedule shall constitute
disclosure for purposes of each other Section of this Agreement to the extent that it is reasonably apparent from the face of such disclosure
that such disclosure would also qualify such other Section of this Agreement. Nothing in the Disclosure Schedule constitutes an admission
of any liability or obligation of the Seller or any of its Affiliates, including the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, to any third Person, or
an admission to any third Person against the interest of the Seller or any of its Affiliates, including the Company or any of the
Subsidiaries. Any item or information disclosed in the Disclosure Schedule is provided confidentially on the terms and subject to the
conditions of this Agreement. Prior to the Closing, (A) the Seller shall reasonably promptly notify the Purchaser if the Seller obtains
knowledge that any of the representations or warranties made by the Seller in this
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Agreement were not true and correct in all material respects or of any material errors in, or omissions from, the Disclosure Schedule and
(B) Parent and the Purchaser shall reasonably promptly notify the Seller if any of them obtains knowledge that any of the representations
or warranties made by such party in this Agreement were not true and correct in all material respects. For the avoidance of doubt, no
disclosure by any party pursuant to this Section 5.12 shall be deemed to amend or supplement the Disclosure Schedule or to prevent or
cure any breach of any representation or warranty and no such disclosure shall be considered in determining whether any of the conditions
set forth in Section 8.02 have been satisfied.

SECTION 5.13. Rights to Attorney-Client Privileged Communications; Waiver of Conflicts. It is acknowledged and
agreed by all parties, by and on behalf of themselves and their respective Affiliates, that Duane Morris LLP and Wilkinson Barker Knauer,
LLP (collectively, “Pre-Closing Counsel”) have represented the interests of the Seller, the Company and the Subsidiaries, as applicable, in
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Purchaser and Parent, by and on behalf of themselves and their
respective Affiliates, and, subsequent to the Closing, the Company and the Subsidiaries, agree that any attorney-client privilege, attorney
work-product protection, and expectation of client confidence attaching as a result of Pre-Closing Counsel’s representation of the
Company, any Subsidiary or the Seller in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and all communications,
information and documents covered by such privilege or protection, shall belong exclusively to and be controlled exclusively by the Seller
and such privileges may not be waived by or on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary. Notwithstanding the transfer of Shares as
contemplated hereunder, none of such privileges and protections, communications, information or documents covered by such privileges
or protections shall pass to or be claimed by the Purchaser, Parent, the Company or any Subsidiary on or after the Closing.
Notwithstanding any current or prior representation of the Company or any Subsidiary by Pre-Closing Counsel, such Pre-Closing Counsel
shall be allowed to represent the Seller and its Affiliates in existing or future matters or disputes adverse to the Purchaser, Parent, the
Company or any Subsidiary relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. The Purchaser and Parent, for and on
behalf of themselves and their respective Affiliates, and, on and after the Closing, the Company and the Subsidiaries, hereby (i) waive any
conflicts that may arise in connection with such representation and (ii) agree that Pre-Closing Counsel may represent the Seller and its
Affiliates in any such matter or dispute, even though the interests of the Seller or such Affiliate may be directly adverse to the interest of
the Purchaser, Parent and their respective Affiliates, and on and after the Closing, the Company and the Subsidiaries.

SECTION 5.14. Closing. From the date hereof until the Closing, each party hereto shall use reasonable efforts to take
such actions as are necessary to expeditiously satisfy the closing conditions set forth in Article VIII hereof.

SECTION 5.15. Further Action. Each of the parties hereto shall use all reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all
appropriate action, do or cause to be done all things necessary, proper or advisable under applicable Law, and to execute and deliver such
documents and other papers, as may be required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
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and the Ancillary Agreement to which it is a party and consummate and make effective the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

SECTION 5.16. Exclusivity. From the date of this Agreement until the earlier of the time of the Closing and the
termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, neither the Seller nor any of its Affiliates, officers, employees, directors, agents or
other representatives will (a) solicit, initiate, encourage or accept any other inquiries, proposals or offers from any Person relating to an
Alternative Acquisition Proposal, (b) participate in any discussions, conversations, negotiations or other communications with any Person
regarding, or furnish to any Person other than Parent any information with respect to, or otherwise cooperate in any way, assist or
participate in, facilitate or encourage any effort or attempt by any Person to seek to enter into an Alternative Acquisition Proposal, or (c)
enter into any agreement or arrangement with any Person for or with respect to any Alternative Acquisition Proposal.

SECTION 5.17. Non-Competition; Non-Solicitation.

(a) In consideration of the benefits of this Agreement to the Seller and in order to induce Parent and the Purchaser to
enter into this Agreement, the Seller hereby covenants and agrees that, effective upon the Closing, for a period of three years
following the date of this Agreement, neither the Seller nor any of its Affiliates shall, without the prior written consent of Parent,
directly or indirectly, own more than 5% of the outstanding Capital Stock of or a controlling interest in, or manage, operate or act
in a similar arrangement for (in each case, other than solely in the capacity of an owner of 5% or less of the outstanding Capital
Stock of), any other Person that does the following (collectively, “Competitor Business”): (i) leases, subleases, licenses, grants an
indefeasible right of use, rents or otherwise sells or grants any rights to use fiber optic cabling or networks, whether as dark fiber
or as lit services, or (ii) offers, sells or provides any bandwidth services (including wavelength or similar services) or fiber optic
networks, in each case to commercial, non-profit or K-12 customers in any of the counties where the Assets are located as of the
Closing Date as set forth in Section 3.16(c) of the Disclosure Schedule or any counties adjacent thereto; provided that the
restrictions contained in this Section 5.17(a) shall not restrict the Seller or any of its Affiliates from (A) performing their
obligations under this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements, (B) acquiring any Person or business that (x) subject to the
limitation set forth in clause (y) below, primarily provides electric power or gas utility services (whether organized as a utility,
cooperative or otherwise) or (y) engages in any Competitor Business, so long as such Competitor Business does not contribute
more than 25% of the average of the sum of (1) the operating income and (2) depreciation and amortization of such acquired
Person or business on a consolidated basis for the two completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date of the definitive
agreement to enter into the acquisition, (C) engineering, planning, designing, building or maintaining, or retaining or using any
third party to engineer, plan, design, build or maintain, any asset for use by, or to be owned by, any Person other than the Seller or
any of its Affiliates, (D) managing, operating or acting in a similar arrangement with respect to any Person in any geographical
area other than the counties where the Assets are located as of the
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Closing Date as set forth in Section 3.16(c) of the Disclosure Schedule or any counties adjacent thereto, (E) acquiring any fiber
assets pursuant to any lien rights, customer bankruptcy or other settlement with respect to any planning, designing, building,
construction or maintenance services provided for a customer or (F) any other services performed for any customer(s) in a
Competitor Business contributing revenues not in excess of $5 million in the aggregate in any fiscal year of the Seller.

(b) In consideration of the benefits of this Agreement to the Seller and in order to induce Parent and the Purchaser to
enter into this Agreement, the Seller hereby covenants and agrees that, effective upon the Closing, for a period of three years
following the date of this Agreement, neither the Seller nor any of its Affiliates shall, without the prior written consent of Parent,
directly or indirectly solicit any officer of the Company or any Subsidiary or any manager or employee of the Company or any
Subsidiary (each, a “Restricted Person”) to terminate his or her employment with the Company or such Subsidiary.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the restrictions in the immediately preceding sentence shall not apply to the placement of general
advertisements or the use of general search firm services with respect to a particular geographic or technical area, but which are
not targeted, directly or indirectly, towards any Restricted Persons.

(©) The Seller acknowledges and agrees that Parent and the Purchaser, in addition to any other rights and remedies
each such party may have at law or in equity, shall be entitled to seek an order of specific performance, injunction, restraining
order or such other temporary, preliminary or permanent equitable relief restraining a breaching party from committing any
violation of the covenants and obligations contained in this Section 5.17, without the necessity of posting a bond or any other
financial assurance. If any provision of this Section 5.17 shall be adjudged to be excessively broad as to duration, geographic
scope, activity or subject, or is held to be unreasonable, arbitrary, against public policy or an otherwise unenforceable restriction
with respect to any particular jurisdiction, the parties hereto intend that such provision(s) shall be deemed modified to the
minimum degree necessary to make such provision(s) valid and enforceable under applicable Law and that such modified
provision(s) shall thereafter be enforced to the fullest extent possible. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the
non-prevailing party or parties any and all fees, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred by the
prevailing party in any Action to enforce this Section 5.17. The parties acknowledge and agree that (i) the restrictions set forth in
this Section 5.17 are part of the essence of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and (ii) Parent and the Purchaser
would not have entered into this Agreement but for the inclusion of the restrictions set forth in this Section 5.17. The Seller
acknowledges and agrees that the restrictions set forth in this Section 5.17 are reasonable as to duration, geographic scope, activity
and subject and are necessary to protect the business and financial interest of Parent and the Purchaser acquired pursuant to this
Agreement.

SECTION 5.18. Excluded Equity Interests. Prior to the Closing, the Seller shall cause the Company and any applicable
Subsidiaries to distribute, transfer or otherwise
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convey to the Seller or any Affiliate thereof (other than the Company or any Subsidiary) all of the Capital Stock owned, directly or
indirectly, by the Company or any such Subsidiary, as applicable, in Nova NextGen Solutions.

SECTION 5.19. Earnings and Profits. From the date of this Agreement until the earlier of the time of the Closing and the
termination of this Agreement pursuant to Article X, the Seller shall cause an accounting firm designated by the Seller and reasonably
satisfactory to Parent and the Purchaser (the “Reporting Firm”) to prepare a report (including reasonably detailed supporting
documentation), prior to Closing, setting forth the Reporting Firm’s calculation of the amount of Company E&P (the “Company E&P
Report™), and Parent and the Purchaser shall cooperate and use reasonable efforts to assist the Reporting Firm in preparing such Company
E&P Report. The Seller shall direct the Reporting Firm to provide Parent and the Purchaser a copy of the Company E&P Report
(including the supporting documentation with respect thereto) no later than the date that is three Business Days prior to the Closing Date.
The Seller and Parent shall each be responsible for 50% of the fees and expenses of the Reporting Firm with respect to the Company E&P
Report. The parties agree to regularly consult with each other and the Reporting Firm with respect to the methodologies, assumptions,
estimates and conclusions used in the preparation of, or to be reflected in, the Company E&P Report. Notwithstanding the foregoing or
anything herein to the contrary, the Seller shall have no Liability for any Losses arising from or relating to the Company E&P Report, the
calculation of Company E&P or the use of or reliance on the Company E&P Report by any of Parent, the Purchaser and their Affiliates.

ARTICLE VI
EMPLOYEE MATTERS
SECTION 6.01. Benefits.
(a) As of the Closing Date, each then-current employee of the Company and the Subsidiaries (a “Transferred

Employee”) shall cease to be covered by the Plans (other than the Company Plans) and shall be covered by the employee benefit
plans of Parent. The medical, dental and health plans of Parent applicable to each Transferred Employee (A) shall not contain any
exclusions for pre-existing conditions (other than conditions which barred coverage under the corresponding Plans), (B) shall
cover as of the Closing Date each Transferred Employee (including any dependents) who was covered by a comparable Plan
immediately prior to the Closing Date and (C) shall credit each Transferred Employee for the plan year of the Seller in which the
Closing Date occurs with all deductibles and co-payments applicable to the portion of such plan year occurring prior to the Closing
Date. In addition, Parent shall grant each Transferred Employee full credit for all periods of employment with the Seller, the
Company and the Subsidiaries for eligibility, vesting and accrual purposes under the employee benefit plans of Parent applicable to
such Transferred Employee (except that this sentence shall not obligate Parent to grant benefit accrual service under any defined
benefit pension plan for any period of employment occurring prior to the Closing Date); provided, however, that such crediting of
service shall not operate to duplicate any benefit to any such employee
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or the funding for any such benefit. The Seller shall retain, and shall indemnify Parent and its Affiliates (including after the
Closing, the Company and the Subsidiaries), from and against (x) all Controlled Group Liability (including, for the avoidance of
doubt, all liabilities or potential liabilities disclosed on Section 3.17(h) of the Disclosure Schedule), and (y) all liabilities with
respect to the Plans (other than the Company Plans), in respect of each of clauses (x) and (y), regardless of whether arising from or
relating to periods occurring before or after the Closing.

(b) Parent will accept, maintain and pay out, in the ordinary course consistent with past practice and in accordance
with the terms of relevant Plan, the 2015 incentive bonus plans and practices that the Seller and the Company and Subsidiaries
have in place with respect to the applicable participants at the Company and Subsidiaries (with the cash portion of such Plans paid
in cash and the stock portion to be granted under such plans paid, at Parent’s option, in cash or Parent stock), provided that the
amounts in respect of such Plans have been reflected in the Financial Statements and accrued as a current liability of the Company
and the Subsidiaries.

(© Parent will be responsible for any obligation with respect to the Transferred Employees under the Worker
Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act or similar law, rule or regulation and for any obligations or liabilities relating to any
termination of the Transferred Employees arising or accruing on or after the Closing Date.

(d) The parties agree that Change of Control Payments in the aggregate amount determined and calculated in
accordance with Section 1.01(v) of the Disclosure Schedule shall be paid to such employees of the Company or the Subsidiaries,
and in such amounts and in such manner of consideration, as set forth on Section 1.01(v), of the Disclosure Schedule, and the Seller
shall take such actions with respect thereto as are specified on Section 1.01(v) of the Disclosure Schedule; provided that each such
employee who is due to receive any Change of Control Payment shall be required to enter into a customary release, substantially in
the form set forth in Section 6.01(d) of the Disclosure Schedule, provided by Parent prior to and in connection with such
employee’s receipt of such Change of Control Payment. Following the Closing Date, Parent and the Purchaser shall, or shall cause
the Company or a Subsidiary to, pay all Change of Control Payments (except for any Change of Control Payments that were paid
at or prior to the Closing) in full.

(e) The Seller shall cooperate with Parent and the Purchaser and use reasonable efforts to assist Parent and the
Purchaser in their efforts, in connection with the Closing, to have each Transferred Employee execute and complete the customary
onboarding documentation (including a confidentiality and non-compete agreement) of Parent and otherwise acknowledge and
become bound by Parent’s customary employment policies that apply to similarly situated employees of Parent.

® Notwithstanding any other provision herein to the contrary, no provision of this Agreement shall (i) create any
third party beneficiary rights or obligations in any
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person (including for the avoidance of doubt any Transferred Employee) other than the parties hereto or any right to employment

or continued employment or to a particular term or condition of employment with Parent or any of its Affiliates, (ii) be construed

or deemed to establish, amend or modify any benefit or compensation plan, program, agreement, contract, policy or arrangement,

or (iii) limit the ability of Parent or any of its Affiliates to amend, modify or terminate any benefit or compensation plan, program,
agreement, contract, policy or arrangement at any time assumed, established, sponsored or maintained by any of them.

ARTICLE VII
TAX MATTERS
SECTION 7.01. Indemnity.
(a) The Seller agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Parent, the Purchaser, the Company and each Subsidiary from

and against any and all Losses arising out of or resulting from Excluded Taxes.

(b) Where permitted by applicable Law, the Seller and the Purchaser agree to cause the Company and each
Subsidiary to terminate its taxable period as of the end of the Closing Date. In the case of Taxes that are payable with respect to a
Straddle Period, the portion of any such Tax that is allocable to the portion of the Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date shall
be:

)] in the case of Taxes imposed on a periodic basis with respect to the assets of the Company or a Subsidiary
(e.g., property Taxes), deemed to be the amount of such Taxes for the entire period (or, in the case of such Taxes
determined on an arrears basis, the amount of such Taxes for the immediately preceding period), multiplied by a fraction
the numerator of which is the number of calendar days in the period ending on the Closing Date and the denominator of
which is the number of calendar days in the entire Straddle Period.

(ii) in the case of any other Taxes (including any Taxes based upon income, receipts or payroll but other than
Conveyance Taxes, which are the subject of Section 7.07), deemed equal to the amount which would be payable if the
taxable year ended on the Closing Date. In the case of any Tax based upon or measured by capital (including net worth or
long-term debt) or intangibles, any amount thereof required to be allocated under this Section 7.01(b) shall be computed by
reference to the level of such items on the Closing Date. All determinations necessary to effect the foregoing allocations
shall be made in a manner consistent with prior practice of the Company and the Subsidiaries.

(iii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the amount of any expenses or costs (including any
compensation or bonuses) incurred by the Company and the Subsidiaries in connection with the consummation of the
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transactions contemplated under this Agreement, in each case to the extent deductible under applicable Law, shall be taken
as a deduction on the Tax Returns filed by or with respect to the Company and Subsidiaries for the taxable period ending
on the Closing Date and, in the case of any Tax Returns filed for a Straddle Period, such deductions shall be allocable to the
portion of the Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date. For this purpose, the safe harbor of Revenue Procedure 2011-29,
2011-18 IRB 746 shall be applied in determining the deductible amount of “success-based fees.”

(© Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, (i) the Seller shall not be liable for any
claim for indemnification for Non-Income Taxes pursuant to Section 7.01(a), unless and until the aggregate amount of Non-
Income Taxes which may be recovered from the Seller equals or exceeds $100,000 whereupon Parent, the Purchaser, the Company
and the Subsidiaries shall be entitled to indemnification only to the extent of the amount, if any, that exceeds $100,000, (ii) the
Seller shall not be liable for any claim for indemnification for Taxes attributable to actions taken by, or at the direction of, Parent,
the Purchaser or any of their Affiliates that are effective on the Closing Date and not contemplated by this Agreement and (iii) the
maximum amount of Excluded Taxes (other than any Taxes of the Seller or any consolidated combined, unitary, affiliated or
similar group of which the Seller is the common parent) which may be recovered from the Seller under Section 7.01(a) shall be an
amount equal to 25% of the Purchase Price and, in the case of any Taxes of the Seller or any consolidated, combined, unitary,
affiliated or similar group of which the Seller is the common parent, shall be the Purchase Price.

(d) The Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Seller and its Affiliates against Taxes of the Company
and the Subsidiaries for any Post-Closing Period and, with respect to any Straddle Period, any such Taxes that are allocable to the
portion of the Straddle Period beginning after the Closing Date as determined under Section 7.01(b), in each case except for Taxes
for which the Seller is obligated to indemnify Parent, the Purchaser, the Company or a Subsidiary under Section 7.01(a).

SECTION 7.02. Returns and Payments.

(a) After the Closing, the Seller, at its sole expense, shall prepare and file or otherwise furnish in proper form to the
appropriate Governmental Authority (or cause to be prepared and filed or so furnished) in a timely manner all Tax Returns
(including Income Tax Returns) that are not Stand-Alone Returns for any Pre-Closing Period and any Straddle Period and all
Income Tax Returns that are Stand-Alone Returns for any Pre-Closing Period, in each case relating to the Company and the
Subsidiaries that are required to be filed after the Closing Date (taking into account applicable extensions). Except as otherwise
required by applicable Law, such Tax Returns of the Company and the Subsidiaries (or, in the case of any Tax Return filed on a
consolidated, combined, unitary or affiliated basis, with respect to the portion of any such return related to the Company and the
Subsidiaries) shall be prepared in a manner consistent with past
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practices employed with respect to the Seller, the Company and the Subsidiaries. With respect to any Income Tax Return that is a
Stand-Alone Return, the Seller shall provide the Purchaser and its authorized representatives with a copy of such completed Stand-
Alone Return, together with appropriate supporting information and schedules at least 20 Business Days prior to the due date
(including any extension thereof) for the filing of such Stand-Alone Return, and the Purchaser and its authorized representatives
shall have the right to review and comment on such Stand-Alone Return prior to the filing of such Stand-Alone Return, provided
that in the case of a Stand-Alone Return that is due within 30 Business Days after the Closing Date (including extensions thereof),
the Seller shall provide a copy of such Stand-Alone Return (along with supporting information and schedules) and the Purchaser
shall review and comment, as soon as practical before the filing due date. If the Seller and the Purchaser are unable to agree with
respect to comments made by the Purchaser, the Seller and the Purchaser shall submit any such dispute to the Independent
Accounting Firm which shall resolve any such dispute, and the decision of the Independent Accounting Firm shall be final,
conclusive and binding. If the Independent Accounting Firm is unable to resolve the dispute at least three Business Days prior to
the filing due date of the Stand-Alone Return at issue, such Stand-Alone Return shall be filed as prepared by the Seller, subject to
subsequent amendment as may be necessary to reflect the decision of the Independent Accounting Firm and the obligations of the
parties hereunder shall be appropriately adjusted. The fees and expenses of the Independent Accounting Firm shall be paid one-
half by the Seller and one-half by the Purchaser.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 7.02(a), the Purchaser (or, if applicable, Parent), at its sole expense,
shall prepare and file or otherwise furnish in proper form to the appropriate Governmental Authority (or cause to be prepared and
filed or so furnished) in a timely manner all other Tax Returns relating to the Company and the Subsidiaries for any Pre-Closing
Period or any Straddle Period that are required to be filed after the Closing Date taking into account applicable extensions (for the
avoidance of doubt, such Tax Returns shall not include any Tax Return filed by a consolidated, combined, unitary or affiliated
group that includes the Seller or any of its Affiliates (other than the Subsidiaries), on the one hand, and the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, on the other hand). Except to the extent otherwise required under applicable Law, such Tax Returns described under
this Section 7.02(b) shall be prepared in a manner consistent with past practices employed with respect to the Company and the
Subsidiaries. The Purchaser shall provide the Seller and its authorized representatives with a copy of such completed Tax Returns
and, if applicable, a statement certifying the amount of Tax shown on such Tax Return that is allocable to the Seller pursuant to
Section 7.01, together with appropriate supporting information and schedules at least 20 Business Days prior to the due date
(including any extension thereof) for the filing of such Tax Return, and the Seller and its authorized representatives shall have the
right to review and comment on such Tax Return and statement prior to the filing of such Tax Return, provided that in the case of a
Tax Return that is due within 30 Business Days after the Closing Date (including extensions thereof), the Purchaser shall provide a
copy of such Tax Return (along with supporting information and schedules) and statement and the Seller shall
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review and comment, as soon as practical before the filing due date. If the Seller and the Purchaser are unable to agree with respect
to comments made by the Seller, the Seller and the Purchaser shall submit any such dispute to the Independent Accounting Firm
which shall resolve any such dispute and the decision of the Independent Accounting Firm shall be final, conclusive and binding.
If the Independent Accounting Firm is unable to resolve the dispute at least three Business Days prior to the filing due date of the
Tax Return at issue, such Tax Return shall be filed as prepared by the Purchaser (or Parent), subject to subsequent amendment as
may be necessary to reflect the decision of the Independent Accounting Firm and the obligations of the parties hereunder shall be
appropriately adjusted. The fees and expenses of the Independent Accounting Firm shall be paid one-half by the Seller and one-
half by the Purchaser.

(© The Seller shall pay, or cause to be paid, all unpaid Taxes shown due and payable (as agreed to by the Seller and
the Purchaser or as determined by the Independent Accounting Firm, as the case may be) on any Tax Returns prepared and filed by
the Seller pursuant to Section 7.02(a) with respect to the Company and the Subsidiaries. The Purchaser shall pay, or cause to be
paid, all unpaid Taxes shown due and payable (as agreed to by the Seller and the Purchaser or as determined by the Independent
Accounting Firm, as the case may be) on Tax Returns prepared and filed by the Purchaser (or Parent) pursuant to Section 7.02(b)
with respect to the Company and the Subsidiaries (subject to its right of indemnification from the Seller by the date set forth in
Section 7.05 for Taxes for a Pre-Closing Period or, in the case of a Straddle Period, allocable to the portion of the period ending on
the Closing Date pursuant to Section 7.01(a) and Section 7.01(b), provided that the limitations of Section 7.01(c) shall not apply).

SECTION 7.03. Refunds. Any Tax refund or overpayment (including any interest with respect thereto) relating to the

Company or any Subsidiary for any Pre-Closing Period, including the portion of any such refund or overpayment attributable to Taxes that
are allocable to the pre-Closing portion of any Straddle Period under Section 7.01(b), shall be the property of the Seller, and if received by,
or credited to, the Purchaser, an Affiliate of the Purchaser, the Company or any Subsidiary shall be paid over promptly to the Seller (net of
any income Taxes or other expenses incurred with respect to the receipt or realization of such refund or overpayment). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, any Tax refund (or equivalent benefit to the Seller through a reduction in Tax liability) for any Pre-Closing Period arising
out of the carryback of a loss, credit or other Tax attribute arising or incurred by the Company or any Subsidiary in any Post-Closing
Period, which under applicable Law is required to be carried back to a Pre-Closing Period, shall be the property of the Purchaser and, if
received by the Seller or an Affiliate of the Seller, shall be paid over promptly to the Purchaser (net of any income Taxes or other expenses
incurred with respect to the receipt or realization of such refund or overpayment). Unless otherwise required under applicable Law, the
Purchaser shall, and shall cause the Company and Subsidiaries, not to carry back any loss, credit or other Tax attribute arising or incurred
by the Company or any Subsidiary in any Post-Closing Period to a Pre-Closing Period.
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SECTION 7.04. Contests.

(a) After the Closing, the Purchaser shall promptly notify the Seller in writing of any written notice of the
commencement of any Action or proposed assessment or Claim made against, or with respect to, the Purchaser, its Affiliates or the
Company or any Subsidiary which (i) relates to a Pre-Closing Period or a Straddle Period of the Company or any Subsidiary or (ii)
if determined adversely to the taxpayer, could be grounds for indemnification under this Article VII (a “Tax Action”); provided,
however, that the failure to give such notice will not affect the Purchaser’s right to indemnification under this Article VII except to
the extent that such failure prejudices the Seller.

(b) In the case of a Tax Action (other than a Tax Action that relates to a Straddle Period with respect to a Stand-
Alone Return), the Seller (and its authorized representatives) shall have the right, at its expense, to control the conduct of the Tax
Action; the Purchaser (and its authorized representatives) may also, at its expense, participate in, but not control, any such Tax
Action that is solely related to a Stand-Alone Return and, if the Seller does not assume the defense of a Tax Action, the Purchaser
(or its authorized representative) may defend the same in such manner as it may deem appropriate. In the case of a Tax Action that
relates to a Straddle Period with respect to a Stand-Alone Return, the Purchaser (and its authorized representatives) shall have the
right, at its expense, to control the Tax Action; the Seller (and its authorized representatives) may also, at its expense, participate
in, but not control, any such Tax Action and, if the Purchaser (or its authorized representative) does not assume the defense of any
such Tax Action, the Seller (and its authorized representatives) may defend the same in such manner as it may deem appropriate.

(© Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 7.04, with respect to any taxable period that begins
before the Closing Date, neither the Purchaser nor the Seller shall enter into any compromise or agree to settle any Tax Action
which would adversely affect the other party for such taxable period or a subsequent taxable period without the written consent of
the other party, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. The Purchaser and the Seller agree to
cooperate, and the Purchaser agrees to cause the Company and the Subsidiaries to cooperate, in the defense against or compromise
of any Tax Action.

SECTION 7.05. Time of Payment. Payment by the Seller of any amounts due under this Article VII in respect of Taxes

shall be made at least three Business Days before the due date of the applicable Tax Return required to be filed by Parent or the Purchaser
pursuant to Section 7.02(b) for which the Seller is responsible under Section 7.01(a) and Section 7.01(b) or within ten Business Days
following an agreement between the Seller and the Purchaser that an indemnity amount is payable, a non-appealable final assessment of a
Tax by a Governmental Authority, or a “determination” as defined in Section 1313(a) of the Code.

SECTION 7.06. Tax Cooperation and Exchange of Information. The Seller and the Purchaser shall provide each other

with such cooperation and information as either of them reasonably may request of the other (and the Purchaser shall cause the Company
and the
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Subsidiaries to provide such cooperation and information) in (a) filing any Tax Return, amended Tax Return or claim for refund, (b)
determining a liability for Taxes or a right to a refund of Taxes, or (c) participating in or conducting any audit or other proceeding in
respect of Taxes. Such cooperation and information shall include providing copies of relevant Tax Returns or portions thereof to the extent
related to the Company and the Subsidiaries, together with related work papers and documents relating to rulings or other determinations
by Governmental Authorities. The Seller and the Purchaser shall make themselves (and their respective employees) reasonably available
on a mutually convenient basis to provide explanations of any documents or information provided under this Section 7.06.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 5.02, each of the Seller and the Purchaser shall retain all Tax Returns, work papers
and all material records or other documents in its possession (or in the possession of its Affiliates) relating to Tax matters of the Company
or any Subsidiary for any taxable period that includes the Closing Date and for all prior taxable periods until the later of (i) the expiration
of the statute of limitations of the taxable periods to which such Tax Returns and other documents relate, without regard to extensions and
(ii) six years following the due date (without extension) for such Tax Returns. After such time, before the Seller or the Purchaser shall
dispose of any such documents in its possession (or in the possession of its Affiliates), the other party shall be given an opportunity, after
90 days prior written notice, to remove and retain all or any part of such documents that relate solely to the Company and the Subsidiaries
as such other party may select (at such other party’s expense). Any information obtained under this Section 7.06 shall be kept confidential,
except as may be otherwise necessary in connection with the filing of Tax Returns or claims for refund or handling a Tax Action.

SECTION 7.07. Conveyance Taxes. Any Conveyance Taxes imposed in connection with the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement shall be borne 50% by the Purchaser and 50% by the Seller as Reimbursable Expenses. The parties will cooperate to
file all necessary Tax Returns and other documentation with respect to all such Conveyance Taxes and, if required by applicable Laws,
will join in the execution of any such Tax Returns and other documentation. The parties shall take any reasonable action that may be
available to reduce or eliminate any Conveyance Taxes.

SECTION 7.08. No Section 338 Election. The Purchaser and the Seller agree that no election shall be made under
Sections 338(g) or Section 338(h)(10) of the Code with respect to the sale of the Shares under this Agreement, nor shall any similar
elections be made under applicable state or local Laws.

SECTION 7.09. Miscellaneous.

(a) The Seller and the Purchaser agree to treat all payments made by either of them to or for the benefit of the other
(including any payments to the Company or any Subsidiary) under this Article VII, under other indemnity provisions of this
Agreement and for any misrepresentations or breaches of warranties or covenants as adjustments to the Purchase Price or, if
applicable, as capital contributions from the Seller to the Company immediately prior to the Closing for Tax purposes and that such
treatment shall govern for purposes hereof.
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(b) All payments payable under any Tax sharing agreement or arrangement between the Seller and the Company or
any Subsidiary for any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date shall be calculated on a basis consistent with past
practice and shall be payable in full prior to the Closing. Any such Tax sharing agreement or arrangement between the Seller and
the Company or any Subsidiary shall be terminated on or prior to the Closing.

(© Notwithstanding any provisions in this Agreement to the contrary, the obligations of the Seller to indemnify and
hold harmless Parent, the Purchaser, the Company and the Subsidiaries pursuant to this Article VII, and the representations and
warranties dealing with Tax matters, including those contained in Section 3.19, shall terminate at the close of business on the 30th
day following the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations with respect to the Tax liabilities in question (giving effect to
any waiver, mitigation or extension thereof). If written notice of a claim has been given to the Seller in good faith prior to the
expiration of the relevant obligation, representation or warranty described in the immediately preceding sentence, then the relevant
obligation, representation or warranty shall survive as to such claim, until such claim has been finally resolved.

(d) Except as otherwise required under this Agreement, applicable Law, or in settlement of a Tax audit or similar
proceeding initiated by a Governmental Authority, none of Parent, the Purchaser, their Affiliates, the Company and the
Subsidiaries shall amend any Tax Return (or file an original Tax Return) of the Company or any Subsidiary with respect to a Pre-
Closing Period or Straddle Period.

(e) None of Parent, the Purchaser, their Affiliates, the Company and the Subsidiaries shall make, revoke or modify
any Tax election of the Company or any Subsidiary with respect to any Pre-Closing Period or any Straddle Period to the extent
such action could reasonably be expected to increase the Seller’s liability (including under this Agreement).

® Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties with respect
to indemnification for any and all Tax matters shall be governed solely by this Article VII; provided, however, that Section 9.07
shall apply to this Article VII.

ARTICLE VIII
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

SECTION 8.01. Conditions to Obligations of the Seller. The obligations of the Seller to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to the fulfillment or written waiver, at or prior to the Closing, of each of the following
conditions:

(a) Representations, Warranties and Covenants. (i) The Purchaser Fundamental Representations shall be true and
correct (without regard to the terms
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“material,” “material adverse effect” and other similar qualifications based upon materiality) in all material respects as of the
Closing Date with the same effect as though made at and as of such date (except those representations and warranties that address
matters only as of a specified date, which shall be so true and correct in all material respects as of that specified date), (ii) the other
representations and warranties of the Purchaser or Parent contained in this Agreement shall be true and correct (without regard to
the terms “material,” “material adverse effect” and other similar qualifications based upon materiality) in all respects as of the
Closing Date with the same effect as though made at and as of such date (except those representations and warranties that address
matters only as of a specified date, which shall be so true and correct in all respects as of that specified date), except where the
failure of such representations and warranties to be true and correct would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material
adverse effect on the Purchaser’s or Parent’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and (iii) the covenants
and agreements contained in this Agreement to be complied with by Parent or the Purchaser on or before the Closing shall have
been complied with in all material respects;

(b) HSR Act. Any waiting period (and any extension thereof) under the HSR Act applicable to the purchase of the
Shares contemplated by this Agreement shall have expired or shall have been terminated;

(© Approvals of Governmental Authorities. The FCC/State PUC Approvals and other approvals required to be
obtained from a Governmental Authority in connection with the Closing, as set forth in Section 8.01(c)(i) of the Disclosure
Schedule (collectively, the “Closing Approvals™), shall have been obtained, and, with respect to the other FCC/State PUC

Approvals”), such Additional Approvals shall have been obtained or, if not obtained, the Communications License, Permit or other
right related to such Additional Approvals shall have been withdrawn or terminated;

(d) No Proceeding or Litigation. No Action shall have been (i) threatened in writing by any Governmental Authority
or (ii) commenced by any Governmental Authority, in each case, that threatens or seeks, respectively, to impose any conditions,
Liabilities, restrictions or requirements (including the taking of, or requirement to omit the taking of, actions) that has resulted in,
or would reasonably be expected to result in, any Governmental Order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) having any
of the effects set forth in clauses (i), (ii) or (iii) of Section 5.04(b);

(e) No Order. No Governmental Authority shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any Law or
Governmental Order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) that prevents, prohibits or makes illegal the purchase of the
Shares contemplated by this Agreement;

® Purchase Price. The Purchaser shall have delivered the Purchase Price by wire transfer in immediately available
funds to the Purchase Price Bank Account; and
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(g) Credit Support Instruments. The Seller and each of its Affiliates, as applicable, shall have been released from the
Credit Support Instruments and the Company and the Subsidiaries, as applicable, shall have been released and removed as parties
from each of the Retained Credit Instruments, in each case as contemplated by Section 5.10.

SECTION 8.02. Conditions to Obligations of Parent and the Purchaser. The obligations of Parent and the Purchaser to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be subject to the fulfillment or written waiver, at or prior to the
Closing, of each of the following conditions:

(a) Representations, Warranties and Covenants. (i) The Seller Fundamental Representations and the representations
and warranties of the Seller contained in Section 3.07 (Financial Information) shall be true and correct (without regard to the terms
“material,” “Material Adverse Effect” and other similar qualifications based upon materiality) in all material respects as of the
Closing Date with the same effect as though made at and as of such date (except those representations and warranties that address
matters only as of a specified date, which shall be so true and correct in all material respects as of that specified date), (ii) the
representations and warranties of the Seller contained in Section 3.08 (Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities) shall be true and correct
in all material respects (except with respect to clause (c) of Section 3.08, which shall be true and correct in all respects) as of the
Closing Date with the same effect as though made at and as of such date, (iii) the other representations and warranties of the Seller
contained in Article IIT of this Agreement shall be true and correct (without regard to the terms “material,” “Material Adverse
Effect” and other similar qualifications based upon materiality) in all respects as of the Closing Date with the same effect as
though made at and as of such date (except those representations and warranties that address matters only as of a specified date,
which shall be so true and correct in all respects as of that specified date), except where the failure of such representations and
warranties to be true and correct would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect, and (iv) the
covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement to be complied with by the Seller on or before the Closing shall have been
complied with in all material respects;

(b) HSR Act. Any waiting period (and any extension thereof) under the HSR Act applicable to the purchase of the
Shares contemplated by this Agreement shall have expired or shall have been terminated;

(© Approvals of Governmental Authorities. The Closing Approvals shall have been obtained and the Additional
Approvals shall have been obtained or, if not obtained, the Communications License, Permit or other right related to such
Additional Approvals shall have been withdrawn or terminated;

(d) No Proceeding or Litigation. No Action shall have been (i) threatened in writing by any Governmental Authority
or (ii) commenced by any Governmental Authority, in each case, that threatens or seeks, respectively, to impose any conditions,
Liabilities, restrictions or requirements (including the taking of, or requirement to omit
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the taking of, actions) that has resulted in, or would reasonably be expected to result in, any Governmental Order (whether
temporary, preliminary or permanent) having any of the effects set forth in clauses (i), (ii) or (iii) of Section 5.04(b);

(e) No Order. No Governmental Authority shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any Law or
Governmental Order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) that prevents, prohibits or makes illegal the purchase of the
Shares contemplated by this Agreement;

® No Material Adverse Effect. No event or events shall have occurred since the date of this Agreement which,
individually or in the aggregate, have had a Material Adverse Effect; and

(g) Credit Support Instruments. The Seller and each of its Affiliates, as applicable, shall have been released from the
Credit Support Instruments and the Company and the Subsidiaries, as applicable, shall have been released and removed as parties
from each of the Retained Credit Instruments, in each case as contemplated by Section 5.10.

SECTION 8.03. Frustration of Closing Conditions. None of the Seller, Parent or the Purchaser may rely on the failure of
any condition set forth in Section 8.01 or Section 8.02, as the case may be, to be satisfied if such failure was caused by such party’s failure
to comply with the terms of this Agreement, including Section 5.04 and Section 5.10.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION
SECTION 9.01. Survival of Representations and Warranties.

(a) The representations and warranties of the Seller contained in this Agreement shall survive the Closing until the
first anniversary of the Closing Date; provided, however, that (i) the Seller Fundamental Representations shall survive indefinitely,
(ii) the representations and warranties contained in Section 3.19 (Taxes) shall survive as provided in Section 7.09(c), (iii) the
representations and warranties contained in Section 3.12 (Environmental Matters) and Section 3.17(e) (Employee Benefit Matters -
Absence of Certain Liabilities and Events) shall survive until the second anniversary of the Closing and (iv) the representations
and warranties contained in Section 3.07 (Financial Information), Section 3.08 (Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities) and Section
3.11 (Compliance with Laws; Permits) shall survive until 18 months after the Closing Date. If written notice of a claim has been
given by the Purchaser to the Seller in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and in good faith prior to the expiration of the
applicable representations and warranties, then the relevant representations and warranties shall survive as to such claim, until such
claim has been finally resolved.
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(b) The representations and warranties of the Purchaser and Parent contained in this Agreement shall survive the
Closing until the first anniversary of the Closing Date; provided, however, that the Purchaser Fundamental Representations shall
survive indefinitely. If written notice of a claim has been given by the Seller to Parent or the Purchaser in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement and in good faith prior to the expiration of the applicable representations and warranties, then the relevant
representations and warranties shall survive as to such claim, until such claim has been finally resolved.

SECTION 9.02. Indemnification by the Seller. The Seller shall indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser, Parent and

their Affiliates, officers, directors, employees, agents, successors and assigns (each a “Purchaser Indemnified Party”) from and against any
and all Liabilities, losses, damages, claims, out-of-pocket costs and expenses, interest, awards, judgments and penalties (including
attorneys’ and consultants’ fees and expenses) actually suffered or incurred by them (including any Action brought or otherwise initiated
by any of them) (hereinafter a “Loss™) arising out of or resulting from:

(a) the breach as of the date hereof or as of the Closing Date of any representation or warranty made by the Seller
contained in this Agreement or in any certificate delivered by the Seller hereunder (it being agreed that for purposes of determining
the amount of any Loss with respect thereto, all such representations and warranties of the Seller (other than the Seller
Fundamental Representations and Section 3.09(b) and with respect to the scope of any disclosures required on the Disclosure
Schedule) that are qualified as to materiality shall be deemed to be not so qualified);

(b) the breach of any covenant or agreement by the Seller contained in this Agreement or the Ancillary Agreement;
or

(©) Nova NextGen Solutions, whether arising prior to, on or after the Closing Date; provided that, for the avoidance
of doubt, the Seller shall not be liable pursuant to this Section 9.02(c) for any Liabilities or Losses resulting from the ownership or
operation of the Business by Parent and its Affiliates (including the Company and the Subsidiaries) after the Closing (including
any such Liabilities or Losses that (i) relate to or result from any breach, default, violation or occurrence occurring after the
Closing or arising from an event, circumstance or condition occurring or existing after the Closing that did not exist prior to the
Closing, (ii) relate to a warranty or indemnity for which the underlying circumstances relating to the warranty or indemnity claim
arose after the Closing, (iii) accrue or relate to the operations of the Business after the Closing, or (iv) are required to be performed
after the Closing (and are not required to be performed on or prior to the Closing Date and did not arise from an event,
circumstance or condition occurring or existing prior to the Closing)).

To the extent that the Seller’s undertakings set forth in this Section 9.02 may be unenforceable, the Seller shall contribute the maximum
amount (subject to Section 9.04) that it is permitted to contribute under applicable Law to the payment and satisfaction of all such Losses
incurred by the Purchaser Indemnified Parties.

73



SECTION 9.03. Indemnification by the Purchaser. The Purchaser and Parent, jointly and severally, shall indemnify and
hold harmless the Seller and its Affiliates and stockholders and the Seller’s and its Affiliates’ respective officers, directors, employees,
agents, successors and assigns (each a “Seller Indemnified Party”) from and against any and all Losses arising out of or resulting from:

(a) the breach as of the date hereof or as of the Closing Date of any representation or warranty made by the
Purchaser or Parent contained in this Agreement or in any certificate delivered by the Purchaser or Parent hereunder (it being
agreed that for purposes of determining the amount of any Loss with respect thereto, all such representations and warranties of the
Purchaser or Parent (other than the Purchaser Fundamental Representations) that are qualified as to materiality shall be deemed to
be not so qualified);

(b) the breach of any covenant or agreement by the Purchaser or Parent contained in this Agreement or the Ancillary
Agreement; or

(© any use by Parent, the Purchaser or their Affiliates (including the Company and the Subsidiaries) of the Retained
Names after the Closing, except for claims that the Retained Names infringe the Intellectual Property of any third party.

To the extent that the Purchaser’s and Parent’s undertakings set forth in this Section 9.03 may be unenforceable, each of the Purchaser and
Parent shall contribute the maximum amount (subject to Section 9.04) that it is permitted to contribute under applicable Law to the
payment and satisfaction of all such Losses incurred by the Seller Indemnified Parties.

SECTION 9.04. Limits on Indemnification. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement: (a) an
Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for any claim for indemnification pursuant to Section 9.02(a) or Section 9.03(a) (other than
indemnification in respect of Seller Fundamental Representations or Purchaser Fundamental Representations, respectively) unless and
until the aggregate amount of indemnifiable Losses which may be recovered from the Indemnifying Party equals or exceeds $7.5 million,
whereupon the Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for indemnification except to the extent that the aggregate amount of such Losses
exceeds $7.5 million; (b) the maximum amount of indemnifiable Losses which may be recovered from an Indemnifying Party arising out
of or resulting from the causes set forth in Section 9.02(a) or Section 9.03(a) (other than indemnification in respect of Seller Fundamental
Representations or Purchaser Fundamental Representations, respectively) as the case may be, shall be an amount equal to 7.5% of the
Purchase Price; (c) the maximum amount of indemnifiable Losses which may be recovered from an Indemnifying Party arising out of or
resulting from the causes set forth in Section 9.02(a) or Section 9.03(a) for indemnification in respect of Seller Fundamental
Representations or Purchaser Fundamental Representations, respectively, as the case may be, shall be an amount equal to the Purchase
Price; (d) an Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for any Losses pursuant to Section 9.02(a) or Section 9.03(a), other than for
indemnifiable Losses in excess of $50,000 resulting from a single claim or aggregate claims arising from the same facts, event or
circumstances; and (e) the maximum amount of indemnifiable Losses which may be recovered
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from an Indemnifying Party arising out of or resulting from the causes set forth in Section 9.02 or Section 9.03, as the case may be, shall
be an amount equal to the Purchase Price. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this Section 9.04 shall not apply to
indemnification in respect of the obligations of the parties pursuant to Section 5.10.

SECTION 9.05. Notice of Loss; Third Party Claims.

(a) An Indemnified Party shall give the Indemnifying Party notice of any matter that an Indemnified Party has
determined has given or could give rise to a right of indemnification under this Agreement, within 30 days of such determination,
stating the amount of the Loss, if known, and method of computation thereof, and containing a reference to the provisions of this
Agreement in respect of which such right of indemnification is claimed or arises.

(b) If an Indemnified Party shall receive notice of any Action, audit, demand or assessment (each, a “Third Party
Claim”) against it or which may give rise to a claim for Loss under this Article IX, promptly, but in no event later than 30 days
after the receipt of such notice, the Indemnified Party shall give the Indemnifying Party notice of such Third Party Claim;
provided, however, that the failure to provide such notice shall not release the Indemnifying Party from any of its obligations under
this Article IX except to the extent that the Indemnifying Party is prejudiced by such failure and shall not relieve the Indemnifying
Party from any other obligation or Liability that it may have to any Indemnified Party otherwise than under this Article IX. If the
Indemnifying Party acknowledges in writing its obligation to indemnify the Indemnified Party hereunder against any Losses that
may result from such Third Party Claim, then the Indemnifying Party shall be entitled to assume and control the defense of such
Third Party Claim at its expense and through counsel of its choice if it gives notice of its intention to do so to the Indemnified
Party within 30 days of the receipt of notice from the Indemnified Party of such Third Party Claim; provided, however, that if there
exists a conflict of interest that the Indemnified Party’s outside counsel shall have advised the Indemnified Party would make it
inappropriate for the same counsel to represent both the Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying Party, then the Indemnified Party
shall be entitled to retain its own counsel in each jurisdiction for which the Indemnified Party so determines counsel is required, at
the expense of the Indemnifying Party; provided, however, that the Indemnifying Party will not be required to pay the fees and
disbursements of more than one counsel for all Indemnified Parties in any jurisdiction in any single Action. In the event that the
Indemnifying Party exercises the right to undertake any such defense against any such Third Party Claim as provided above, the
Indemnified Party shall cooperate with the Indemnifying Party in such defense and make available to the Indemnifying Party,
during normal business hours and on reasonable advance notice, and at the Indemnifying Party’s expense, all witnesses, pertinent
records, materials and information in the Indemnified Party’s possession or under the Indemnified Party’s control relating thereto
as is reasonably required by the Indemnifying Party. If the Indemnifying Party elects to direct the defense of any such claim or
proceeding, then the Indemnifying Party shall have the right to settle any Third Party Claim (i) (A) for which
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it obtains a full release of the Indemnified Party in respect of such Third Party Claim and (B) which settlement does not impose
upon any Indemnified Party any injunctive or equitable relief (other than any immaterial injunctive or equitable relief that is
merely incidental to a primary obligation for monetary damages), or (ii) to which settlement the Indemnified Party consents in
writing (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed). If, within 30 days after the receipt of the notice of such Third
Party Claim, the Indemnifying Party does not notify the Indemnified Party that it elects to undertake the defense of such Third
Party Claim, the Indemnified Party shall have the right to contest, settle or compromise such Third Party Claim but shall not
thereby waive any right to indemnity therefor pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, that no Indemnified Party may settle
or compromise any claim or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to which indemnification is being sought hereunder
under any circumstances without the prior written consent of the Indemnifying Party (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
or delayed), unless such settlement, compromise or consent (A) includes an unconditional release of the Indemnifying Party from
all liability arising out of such claim and (B) does not impose upon the Indemnifying Party any injunctive or equitable relief (other
than any immaterial injunctive or equitable relief that is merely incidental to a primary obligation for monetary damages). In such
event, the Indemnifying Party shall cooperate with the Indemnified Party in such defense and make available to the Indemnified
Party, during normal business hours and on reasonable advance notice, at the Indemnifying Party’s expense, all such witnesses,
records, materials and information in the Indemnifying Party’s possession or under the Indemnifying Party’s control relating
thereto as is reasonably required by the Indemnified Party. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 9.05 to the contrary, if a Third
Party Claim relates to or arises in connection with any criminal Action or any Action seeking equitable or remedial relief, the
Indemnified Party shall be entitled to jointly control the defense thereof with the Indemnifying Party for so long as such Action is
continuing.

SECTION 9.06. Exclusive Remedy. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that, except with respect to common law
fraud (excluding any concept of “constructive fraud”) and except for the right to specifically enforce the provisions of this Agreement as
provided in Section 5.17 and Section 11.10, following the Closing, the provisions of Section 5.10, Section 6.01, Article VII and this
Article IX shall be the sole and exclusive remedies of the Seller Indemnified Parties and the Purchaser Indemnified Parties for any Loss
and any and all claims arising under, out of, or related to this Agreement or the sale and purchase of the Company and Subsidiaries, and no
Person will have any other entitlement, remedy or recourse, whether in contract, tort or otherwise. In furtherance of the foregoing, each
party hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted under Law, any and all rights, claims and causes of action for any breach of any
representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or obligation set forth herein or otherwise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement it
may have against the other parties hereto and their Affiliates (and, with respect to the Seller, its stockholders) and each of their respective
officers, directors, employees, agents, successors and assigns arising under or based upon any Law, except pursuant to the indemnification
provisions set forth in Article VII or this Article IX or the provisions in Section 5.10 or Section 6.01. The provisions of this Section 9.06,
together with the provisions of Section 5.10 and Section 6.01 and the limited remedies provided
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in Article VII and this Article IX, were specifically bargained for between Parent, the Purchaser and the Seller and were taken into
account by Parent, the Purchaser and the Seller in arriving at the Purchase Price. The Seller has specifically relied upon the provisions of
this Section 9.06, together with the provisions of Section 5.10 and Section 6.01 and the limited remedies provided in Article VII and this
Article IX, in agreeing to the Purchase Price and in agreeing to provide the specific representations and warranties set forth herein.

SECTION 9.07. Certain Other Indemnification Matters.

(a) The Losses giving rise to any indemnification obligation hereunder (including Article VII) shall be reduced by
any third party insurance proceeds or other payments actually received by the Indemnified Party in satisfaction of any such Losses
and by any Tax benefits attributable to such Losses actually realized in the year the Loss is incurred or sustained for federal income
Tax purposes or the immediate following taxable year by the Indemnified Party. Any Indemnified Party that becomes aware of
Losses for which it intends to seek indemnification hereunder shall use reasonable efforts to collect any amounts to which it
reasonably may be entitled under insurance policies or indemnity, contribution or other similar agreements for any Losses.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event shall any Indemnifying Party be liable to any
Indemnified Party for any punitive damages (other than punitive damages actually paid in respect of a Third Party Claim) or loss
of business reputation or any damages based on any type of multiple relating to the breach or alleged breach of this Agreement.
Any liability for indemnification under this Agreement shall be determined without duplication of recovery by reason of the state
of facts giving rise to such liability constituting a breach of more than one representation, warranty, covenant or agreement. Each
Indemnified Party shall take, and cause its Affiliates to take, reasonable efforts to mitigate any Loss upon becoming aware of any
event or circumstance that would be reasonably expected to, or does, give rise thereto (including by pursuing any insurance
claims), including incurring costs only to the minimum extent necessary to remedy the breach that gives rise to such Loss.

ARTICLE X
TERMINATION
SECTION 10.01. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing:

(a) by Parent if the Seller shall have breached any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements
contained in this Agreement which would give rise to the failure of a condition set forth in Article VIII, which breach cannot be or
has not been cured within 10 Business Days after the giving of written notice by Parent or the Purchaser specifying such breach;
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(b) by the Seller if Parent or the Purchaser shall have breached any of its representations, warranties, covenants or
agreements contained in this Agreement which would give rise to the failure of a condition set forth in Article VIII, which breach
cannot be or has not been cured within 10 Business Days after the giving of written notice by the Seller specifying such breach;

(© by either the Seller or Parent if the Closing shall not have occurred by September 30, 2015 (the “Initial End
Date”); provided, however, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 10.01(c) shall not be available to any party
whose failure to fulfill any obligation under this Agreement shall have been the cause of, or shall have resulted in, the failure of the
Closing to occur or a condition to Closing to be satisfied on or prior to such date; provided further that if, as of the Initial End
Date, (i) any condition set forth in Section 8.01(b), Section 8.01(c), Section 8.01(g), Section 8.02(b), Section 8.02(c) or Section
8.02(g) has not been waived or satisfied, (ii) all of the other conditions to Closing set forth in Article VIII shall have been satisfied
or waived (other than those conditions which by their terms cannot be satisfied until at or immediately prior to the Closing, but
which conditions would be satisfied if the Closing Date were the Initial End Date), and (iii) either of the Seller, on the one hand, or
Parent and the Purchaser, on the other hand, notifies the other parties hereto in writing that it desires to extend the Initial End Date
in order to satisfy the applicable condition or conditions set forth in Section 8.01(b), Section 8.01(c), Section 8.01(g), Section
8.02(b), Section 8.02(c) or Section 8.02(g), then the End Date shall be the earliest to occur of (x) December 14, 2015, (y) the date
upon which a Governmental Authority shall have entered an order enjoining the parties from consummating the Closing and such
order shall have become final and non-appealable, and (z) in the case of any such extension to satisfy a condition set forth in
Section 8.01(c) or Section 8.02(c), the date upon which the FCC or any State PUC shall have entered an order denying an
FCC/State PUC Filing associated with a non-waived Closing Approval under Section 8.01(c) or Section 8.02(c) and such order
shall have become final and non-appealable;

(d) by either Parent or the Seller in the event that any Governmental Authority shall have issued any Law or
Governmental Order or taken any other action restraining, enjoining or otherwise preventing, prohibiting or making illegal the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and, in any such case, such Law or Governmental Order or
other action shall have become final and nonappealable; or

(e) by the mutual written consent of the Seller and Parent.

SECTION 10.02. Effect of Termination. In the event of termination of this Agreement as provided in Section 10.01, this

Agreement shall forthwith become void and there shall be no liability on the part of any party hereto pursuant to this Agreement except (a)
as set forth in Section 5.03 and Atrticle XI and (b) that nothing herein shall relieve either party from liability for any breach of this
Agreement prior to termination. For the avoidance of doubt, the Non-Disclosure Agreement shall survive the termination of this
Agreement for any reason.
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ARTICLE XI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 11.01. Expenses. Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, (a) all costs and expenses, including fees
and disbursements of counsel, financial advisors and accountants, incurred in connection with this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement shall be paid by the party incurring such costs and expenses, whether or not the Closing shall have
occurred and (b) the Seller will pay any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Company or Subsidiaries (including fees and
disbursements of counsel, financial advisors and accountants to the Company and the Subsidiaries) in connection with this Agreement.

SECTION 11.02. Notices. All notices, requests, claims, demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made (i) if delivered in person, upon delivery, (ii) if delivered by an internationally
recognized overnight courier service, on the next Business Day following the date of delivery to and acceptance by such courier service,
(iii) if delivered by facsimile, on the date of such delivery if delivered on a Business Day during normal business hours (or, if not, on the
next Business Day), provided that (A) the relevant delivery report or computer record, as applicable, indicates a full and successful
delivery, and (B) such delivery is immediately followed by delivery pursuant to clauses (i) or (ii) above, or (iv) if delivered by registered
or certified mail (postage prepaid, return receipt requested), five Business Days following the date of deposit thereof in the United States
mail. All notices, requests, claims, demands and other communications hereunder shall be delivered to the respective parties hereto at the
following addresses (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 11.02):

(a) if to the Seller:

Quanta Services, Inc.

2800 Post Oak Blvd., Suite 2600
Houston, TX 77056-6175
Facsimile: (713) 629-7639
Attention: General Counsel

with a copy to:

Duane Morris LLP

1330 Post Oak Blvd., Suite 800
Houston, TX 77056-3166
Facsimile: (713) 583-9179
Attention: Shelton M. Vaughan
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(b) if to the Purchaser or Parent:

Crown Castle International Corp.
1220 Augusta Drive, Suite 600
Houston, Texas 77057
Facsimile: (713) 570-3053
Attention: CFO (Jay Brown)
General Counsel (E. Blake Hawk)

with a copy to:

Cravath, Swaine & Moore, LLP
Worldwide Plaza
825 Eighth Avenue
New York, NY 10019
Facsimile: (212) 474-3700
Attention: Stephen L. Burns
Johnny G. Skumpija

SECTION 11.03. Public Announcements. None of the parties hereto shall make, or cause to be made, any press release or
public announcement in respect of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby or otherwise communicate with any news
media with respect thereto without the prior written consent of the other parties (not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed)
unless otherwise required by Law or applicable stock exchange rule or regulation (based upon the advice of counsel), and, to the extent
permitted by applicable Law, the parties hereto shall cooperate as to the timing and contents of any such press release, public
announcement or communication.

SECTION 11.04. Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being
enforced by any Law or public policy, all other terms and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect
for so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to
any party hereto. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties
hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an
acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent
possible.

SECTION 11.05. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the Ancillary Agreement and the Non-Disclosure Agreement
constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto with respect to the sale and purchase of the Company and Subsidiaries and the other
subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede all prior agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, between the Seller and the
Purchaser or Parent with respect to the sale and purchase of the Company and Subsidiaries and the other subject matter hereof and thereof.
The parties shall not be bound by any stipulations, representations, agreements or promises, oral or otherwise, not printed in written form
in this Agreement, the Ancillary Agreement or the Non-
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Disclosure Agreement. The parties hereto have voluntarily agreed to define their rights, liabilities and obligations in respect of the sale and
purchase of the Company and Subsidiaries exclusively in contract pursuant to the express terms and provisions of this Agreement; and the
parties hereto expressly disclaim that they are owed any duties or are entitled to any remedies not expressly set forth in this Agreement.
Furthermore, each of the parties hereby acknowledges that this Agreement embodies the justifiable expectations of sophisticated parties
derived from arm’s length negotiations; all parties to this Agreement specifically acknowledge that no party has any special relationship
with another party that would justify any expectation beyond that of an ordinary buyer and an ordinary seller in an arm’s length
transaction. The sole and exclusive remedies for any breach of the terms and provisions of this Agreement (including any representations
and warranties set forth herein, made in connection herewith or as an inducement to enter into this Agreement) or any claim or cause of
action otherwise arising out of or related to the sale and purchase of the Company and Subsidiaries shall be those remedies available at
law or in equity for breach of contract only (as such contractual remedies have been further limited or excluded pursuant to the express
terms of this Agreement); and the parties hereby agree that neither party hereto shall have any remedies or cause of action in, whether in
contract or in tort, for any statements, communications, disclosures, failures to disclose, representations or warranties not set forth in this
Agreement, the Ancillary Agreement or any certificate, instrument or document delivered hereunder.

SECTION 11.06. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by operation of law or otherwise without the express
written consent of the Seller and Parent (which consent may be granted or withheld in the sole discretion of the Seller or Parent, as
applicable) and any such assignment or attempted assignment without such consent shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Purchaser may assign this Agreement to one or more Affiliates of Parent without the consent of the Seller, provided that any such
assignment by the Purchaser shall not relieve the Purchaser of any liability or obligation hereunder.

SECTION 11.07. Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except (a) by an instrument in writing
signed by, or on behalf of, the Seller and Parent or (b) by a waiver in accordance with Section 11.08.

SECTION 11.08. Waiver. The Seller, on the one hand, and Parent and the Purchaser, on the other hand, may (a) extend
the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts of the other party contained herein, (b) waive any inaccuracies in the
representations and warranties of the other party contained herein or in any certificate delivered by the other party pursuant hereto, or (c)
waive compliance with any of the agreements of the other party or conditions to such party’s obligations contained herein. Any such
extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed by the party to be bound thereby. Any waiver of any
term or condition shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach or a subsequent waiver of the same term or condition, or a
waiver of any other term or condition of this Agreement. The failure of the Seller, Parent or the Purchaser to assert any of its rights
hereunder shall not constitute a waiver of any of such rights.
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SECTION 11.09. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except for the provisions of Article IX relating to indemnified parties and
pursuant to Section 5.11 and Section 11.15, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit of the parties hereto and
their respective successors and permitted assigns and nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other
Person, including any union or any employee or former employee of the Seller, any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any
nature whatsoever, including any rights of employment for any specified period, under or by reason of this Agreement.

SECTION 11.10. Specific Performance. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that they would be irreparably
damaged if any of the provisions of this Agreement are not performed in accordance with their specific terms and that any breach of this
Agreement by any party hereto could not be adequately compensated by monetary damages alone and that the parties hereto would not
have any adequate remedy at Law. Accordingly, in addition to any other right or remedy to which the parties hereto may be entitled, at
Law or in equity, they shall be entitled to enforce any provision of this Agreement by a decree of specific performance and to seek
temporary, preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, without any requirement to post or provide any bond or other security in
connection therewith, to prevent breaches or threatened breaches of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

SECTION 11.11. Governing Law. THE INTERNAL LAW (AND NOT THE LAW OF CONFLICTS) OF THE STATE
OF NEW YORK SHALL GOVERN ALL QUESTIONS CONCERNING THE CONSTRUCTION, VALIDITY, AND
INTERPRETATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THE PERFORMANCE OF THE OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED BY THIS
AGREEMENT AND ALL CLAIMS OR CAUSES OF ACTION (WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT) THAT MAY BE BASED
UPON, ARISE OUT OF OR RELATE TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE NEGOTIATION, EXECUTION OR PERFORMANCE OF
THIS AGREEMENT (INCLUDING ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED UPON, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO
ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY MADE IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR AS AN
INDUCEMENT TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT). SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 7.02 (WHICH SHALL
GOVERN ANY DISPUTE ARISING THEREUNDER IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS TERMS), THE PARTIES AGREE THAT
JURISDICTION AND VENUE IN ANY SUIT, ACTION, OR PROCEEDING BROUGHT BY ANY PARTY IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS AGREEMENT, THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY, OR THE PERFORMANCE OF THE OBLIGATIONS
IMPOSED HEREUNDER SHALL PROPERLY AND EXCLUSIVELY LIE IN THE COURTS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
SITTING IN THE COUNTY OF NEW YORK, NEW YORK AND IN FEDERAL COURT FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF
NEW YORK AND ANY APPELLATE COURT FROM ANY THEREOF. EACH PARTY ALSO AGREES NOT TO BRING ANY
SUIT, ACTION, OR PROCEEDING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED
HEREBY, OR THE PERFORMANCE OF THE OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED HEREUNDER IN ANY OTHER COURT. BY
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THIS AGREEMENT, EACH PARTY IRREVOCABLY SUBMITS TO THE JURISDICTION OF
SUCH COURTS FOR ITSELF AND IN RESPECT OF ITS PROPERTY WITH RESPECT TO ANY SUCH SUIT, ACTION, OR
PROCEEDING. THE PARTIES IRREVOCABLY AGREE
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THAT VENUE WOULD BE PROPER IN SUCH COURT, AND HEREBY WAIVE ANY OBJECTION THAT ANY SUCH COURT IS
AN IMPROPER OR INCONVENIENT FORUM FOR THE RESOLUTION OF SUCH SUIT, ACTION, OR PROCEEDING. EACH OF
THE PARTIES FURTHER AGREES THAT THE MAILING BY CERTIFIED OR REGISTERED MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT
REQUESTED, OF ANY PROCESS REQUIRED BY ANY SUCH COURT TO THE NOTICE ADDRESS SET FORTH WITH
RESPECT THERETO IN SECTION 11.02 SHALL CONSTITUTE VALID AND LAWFUL SERVICE OF PROCESS AGAINST
THEM, WITHOUT NECESSITY FOR SERVICE BY ANY OTHER MEANS PROVIDED BY STATUTE OR RULE OF COURT.

SECTION 11.12. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVES TO THE
FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT
TO ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO
HEREBY (A) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS
REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION,
SEE TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS BEEN INCLUDED TO ENTER INTO
THIS AGREEMENT AND TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT, AS APPLICABLE, BY, AMONG OTHER
THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 11.12.

SECTION 11.13. Currency. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all references to currency, monetary values
and dollars set forth herein shall mean United States (U.S.) dollars and all payments hereunder shall be made in United States dollars.

SECTION 11.14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed and delivered (including by facsimile transmission) in
one or more counterparts, and by the different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be
an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

SECTION 11.15. Non-Recourse. All claims or causes of action (whether in contract or in tort, at law or in equity) that
may be based upon, arise out of or relate to this Agreement, or the negotiation, execution or performance of this Agreement (including any
representation or warranty made in or in connection with this Agreement or as an inducement to enter into this Agreement), may be made
only against the entities that are expressly identified as parties hereto. No Person who is not a named party to this Agreement, including
any director, officer, employee, incorporator, member, partner, stockholder, Affiliate, agent, attorney or representative of any named party
to this Agreement (“Non-Party Affiliates), shall have any liability (whether in contract or in tort, at law or in equity, or based upon any
theory that seeks to impose liability of an entity party against its owners or affiliates) for any obligations or liabilities arising under, in
connection with or related to this Agreement or for any claim based on, in respect of, or by reason of this Agreement or its negotiation or
execution; and each party hereto
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waives and releases all such liabilities, claims and obligations against any such Non-Party Affiliates. Non-Party Affiliates are expressly
intended as third party beneficiaries of this provision of this Agreement.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Seller, Parent and the Purchaser have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date
first written above by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

QUANTA SERVICES, INC.

By: /s/ Nicholas M. Grindstaff
Name: Nicholas M. Grindstaff
Title: Vice President - Finance

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

By: /s/ E. Blake Hawk
Name: E. Blake Hawk
Title: Executive Vice President

CC SCN Fiber LLC

By: /s/ E. Blake Hawk
Name: E. Blake Hawk
Title: Executive Vice President
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification

For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2015

I, W. Benjamin Moreland, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp. (“registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 2015

/s/ W. Benjamin Moreland

W. Benjamin Moreland
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification

For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2015

I, Jay A. Brown, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp. (“registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 8, 2015

/s/ Jay A. Brown

Jay A. Brown
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp., a Delaware Corporation (“Company”), for the period ending March 31,
2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (“Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company hereby certifies pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of such officer's knowledge:

1) the Report complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company as
of March 31, 2015 (the last date of the period covered by the Report).

/s/ W. Benjamin Moreland

W. Benjamin Moreland
President and Chief Executive Officer

May 8, 2015

/s/ Jay A. Brown

Jay A. Brown
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

May 8, 2015

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to Crown Castle International Corp.
and will be retained by Crown Castle International Corp. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



